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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON SPECIAL PURPOSE AUDITED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

To the Board of Directors of Piombino Steel Limited 

1. This report is issued in accordance with the terms of our agreement.

Opinion 
2. We have audited the accompanying Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements of Piombino Steel

Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim balance sheet as at September
30, 2025, and the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income, the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim cash flows statement and the Special Purpose Audited Condensed
Interim statement of changes in equity for the period then ended, and notes to the Special Purpose Audited Condensed
Interim financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereafter referred at as “Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements”).

3. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Special
Purpose Audited Condensed Interim financial statements are prepared in all material respects, in accordance with the basis
set out in Note II of the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim financial statements and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at September
30, 2025, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the period ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion 
4. We conducted our audit of the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements in accordance with the

Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 143(10) of the Companies Act,2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Special Purpose
Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter 
5. We draw attention to the following:

a. Note II to the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements, which describes the Basis of 
Preparation. The Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements dealt with by this report 
have been prepared specifically in connection with the proposed restructuring activities at the Parent 
Company level. These financial statements have been prepared for the period from April 1, 2025 to September
30, 2025.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Management’s Responsibility for the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements 
6. The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Special Purpose Audited

Condensed Interim Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Basis of
Preparation set out in Note 3.1 to the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements for the purpose
set out in paragraph Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution and Use section below and the accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in

Annexure 12
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accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
7. In preparing the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements, the management and Board of Directors 

are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

  
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements 
8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial 

Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim financial statements. 

 
9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also:  
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness on the 
Company’s internal controls. 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by management.  
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Special 
Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial 
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial 
Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
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10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit. 

 
11. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

Restriction on Use 
12. This report has been issued at the request of the Board of Directors of the Company to whom it is addressed for the purpose 

set out in paragraph 5 (a) above and should not be otherwise used or shown to or otherwise distributed to any other party 
or used for any other purpose except with our prior consent in writing. Shah Gupta & Company, Chartered Accountants 
neither accept nor assume any duty, responsibility or liability to any other party or for any other purpose. 

 
 

For SHAH GUPTA & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No – 109574W 
 
 
 
 
Parth P Patel 
Partner 
M. No.172670 
UDIN: 25172670BMKVKU2826 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: November 26, 2025 
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PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 

Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Balance Sheet as at September 30, 2025 

CIN No. - U27320MH2018PLC374653 

Particulars 
Asat 

Notes 
seetember 30, 2025 

I ASSETS 

(1) Non-current assets 

(a) Investment in subsidiary 2 8,552.01 

(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 22(8) 0.02 

(cJ Current tax assets (net) 16.96 

Total non-current assets 8,568.99 

(2) Current assets 
(a) Financial assets 

(i) Trade receivables 4 69.46 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 5 0.15 

(ii i) Other financial assets 6 2,296.91 

(bl Other current assets 24.64 

Total current assets 2,391.16 

Total assets 10,960.15 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 8 5,870.28 

(b) Other equity 9 961.89 

Total Equity 6,832.17 

liabilities 
(1) Non-current liabilities 

(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 10 435.00 

Total non-current liabilities 435.00 

(2) Current liabilities 

(a) Rnancial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 11 3,143.00 

(ii) Trade payables 

(a) Total outstanding due of micro and small enterprises 
12 

(bl 
Total outstanding due of creditors other than micro and 

69.45 
small enterprises 

(iii) Other financia l liabilities 13 480.47 

(bl Other current liabilities 14 0.06 

Total current liabilities 3,692.98 

Total liabilities 4,127.98 

Total equity and liabilities 10,960.15 

See accompanying notes forming part of the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements 

As per our attached report of even date 

For Shah Gupta & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Parth P Patel 

Partner 

~ 

't<a~stubh Kulkarni Di akumar Bhair 

Chief Executive Officer Director 

DIN: 08568679 

Rs. in crores 

Asat 
March 31, 2025 

8,550.00 

0.02 

19.S6 

8,569.58 

13.33 

151.92 

2,005.73 

24.66 

2,195.64 

10,765.22 

5,870.28 

862.03 

6,732.31 

3,521.00 

18.82 

289.58 

203.51 

4,032.91 

4,032.91 

10,765.22 

Director 

DIN : 02059903 

MohitGoyal 
Membership No.: 172670 

UDIN: 251 72670BMKVKU2826 

Place: Mumbai Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 

Date: 26th November, 2025 M. No. FC59114 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Statement of Profit and Loss for the half year ended September 30, 2025 

CIN No.· U27320MH2018PLC374653 

Particulars 

I. 

II. 

Ill. 

IV. 

v. 

VI. 

Revenue from operations 

Other income 

Total income (1+11) 

Expenses 

Purchase of stock-in-trade 

Finance costs 

Other expenses 

Total expenses 

Profit before tax (Ill-IV) 

Tax expense 

Current tax 

Deferred tax 

VII. Profit for the year (V-VI) 

VIII. Other comprehensive income/ (loss) 

IX. 

X. 

Total Other comprehensive income for the year (Vll+VIII) 

Earnings per equity share of Rs. 10 each 

Basic (in Rs) 

Diluted (in Rs) 

Notes 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

20 

For the period ended 

September 30, 2025 

45.31 

324.36 

369.68 

45.20 

190.71 

0.32 

236.23 

133.45 

33.59 

33.59 

99.86 

99.86 

0.17 

0.17 

See accompanying notes forming part of the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements 

As per our attached report of even date 
For Shah Gupta & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 109574W 

d 
Parth p Patel 
Partner 
Membership No.: 172670 
UDIN: 25172670BMKVKU2826 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 26th November, 2025 

I A A/1/1 ~ / 
I/; O ; au~ ulkami DivyakumarBhair 

Ch,ef Executive Officer / Director 
DIN: 08568679 

Company Secretary 
M. No. FCS9114 

For the period ended 

September 30, 2024 

619.18 

305.90 

925.08 

618.03 

178.18 

0.24 

796.45 

128.63 

32.37 

0.01 

32.38 

96.25 

96.25 

0.16 

0.16 

Director 
DIN: 02059903 

MohitGoyal 
Chief Financial Officer 

r 



FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2025 

{a) Equity share capital 

Particulars 

As at April 1, 2025 

As at September 30, 2025 

(bl Other equity 

Particulars 

Nature 

Opening balance as at April 1, 2025 

Profit for the period 

Closing balance as at September 30, 2025 

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2024 

(a) Equity share capital 

Pa rticulars 

As at April 1, 2024 

As at September 30, 2024 

(b) Other equity 

Particulars 

Nature 

Opening balance as at April 1, 2024 

Profi t for the period 

Closing balance as at September 30, 2024 

PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Audited Condensed Standalone Interim Statement of changes in equity for the period ended September 30, 2025 

CIN No. - U27320MH2018PLC374653 

Reserves & Surplus 

Capital Redemption Reserve Capital Reserve on account 
Retained earnings 

Reserve of business combination 

624.92 222.64 0.47 

99.86 

724.78 222.64 0.47 

Reserves & Surplus 

Capital Redemption Reserve Capital Reserve on account 
Retained earnings 

Reserve of business combination 

441.56 0.47 

96.25 

537.81 0.47 

Money received against 

share warrants 

14.00 

14.00 

Money received against 

share warrants 

14.00 

14.00 

See accompanying notes forming part of the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements 

/\s per our attached report of even date 

For Shah Gupta & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

r 
Parth P Patel 

Partner 
Membership No.: 172670 

UDIN: 25172670BMKVKU2826 

Place : Mumbai 

Date. 26th November, 2025 

~ 
,.....--;austubh Kulkarni 

Chief Executive Officer 

Company Secretary 

M. No. FCS9114 

Rs. in crores 

5,870.28 

5,870.28 

Rs. In crores 

Total 

862.03 

99.86 

961.89 I 

Rs. In crores 

6,092.92 

6,092.92 

Rs. In crores 

Total 

456.03 

96.25 

552.28 I 

uma~ 
Director 

DIN: 02059903 

f)?~i r 
Mohl! Goyal 

Chief Financial Officer 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 

Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statement of Cash Flows for the half year ended September 30, 2025 

Particulars 
For the period ended 

September 30, 2025 

A. Cash flow from operating activities 

Profit before tax 133.45 

Adjustments for : 

Interest ex:pense 190.71 

Gain on sale of financial investments designated as fair 
(0.04) 

value through profit & loss a/c 

Commission on pledge (2.23) 

Interest income (322.08) 

Operating (loss)/profit before working capital changes (0.17) 

Adjustments for: 

Increase in trade receivables (56.16) 

Decrease/(lncrease) in other assets (291.18) 

Decrease in trade payables and other liabil it ies 29.06 

Cash flow from operations (318.44) 

Income taxes paid (net of refund received) (36.35) 

Net cash used in operating activities {A) (354.79) 

B. Cash flow from investing activities 

Interest received 

Interest on Income tax refund 1.28 

Interest received on fixed deposit 0.93 

Loan to a related party 

Redemption of mutual fund 3.04 

Investment in mutual fund (3.00) 

Investment in subsidiary- equity shares (2.01) 

Loan repaid by a related party 

Bank Deposits not considered as cash and cash equivalent 151.00 

Net cash generated from investing activities (B) 151.24 

C. Cash flow from financing activities 

Proceeds from non-current borrowings 57.00 

Repayment of current borrowings (5.22) 

Interest paid 

Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 51.78 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents(A+B+C) (151.77) 

Cash and cash equivalents - opening balances 151.92 

Cash and cash equivalents - closing balances 0.15 

See accompanying notes formmg part of the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements 

As per our attached report of even date 

For Shah Gupta & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 109574W 

Parth P Patel 

Partner 

Membership No.: 172670 

UDIN: 25172670BM KVKU2826 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 26th November, 2025 

For and on b 

~ f . g 
Kaustubh Kulkarni .J1>ivyakumar Bhair 

Chief Executive Officer {,,,, Director 

DIN: 08568679 

Company Secretary 

M. No. FC59114 

Rs. in crores 

For the period ended 

September 30, 2024 

128.63 

178.18 

-
(305.90) 

0.91 

(203.26) 

31.44 

114.35 

(56.56) 

(7.14) 

(63.70) 

2.87 

(0.30) 

0.30 

2.87 

97.00 

(18.00) 

(18.91) 

60.09 

(0.74) 

1.19 

0.45 

Director 

DIN: 02059903 

MohitGoyal 

Chief Financial Officer 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Notes to the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements for the period ended 
September 30, 2025 

1. General Information 

Piombino Steel Limited ("the Company") is incorporated in India on September 21, 2018 under the Companies Act, 2013 with its 
registered office located at 6th Floor, Grande Palladium, 175, CST Road, Kolivery Village, MMRDA Area, Kalina, Santacruz East, 
Mumbai 400098. 

The Company is engaged in the business of buying, selling and otherwise trading or dealing in steel and its allied products, iron ore, 
coal, coke, brick-earth, ores, minerals and mineral substances, alloys and metal scrap of all kinds. 

lA. Recent accounting pronouncements: 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the ex isting standards under Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. It has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second 
Amendment Rules, 2025 dated August 13, 2025 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after April 1, 2025. 

Ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of liabilities as current or non-current, including debt covenants 
The amendment has removed the requirement for a right to be unconditional and instead now requires that a right to defer 
settlement must exist at the reporting date and have substance. 

Ind AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows and Ind AS 107 - Financial Instruments (Disclosures): Disclosure of supplier financial 
arrangements 
These amendments require enhanced disclosures to help users of financial statements understand the effects of supplier finance 
arrangements on an entity's liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. These amendments are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after April 01, 2025. Comparative information for earlier periods and disclosures for interim periods ending on or 
before March 31, 2026 are not required. 

Ind AS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates: Lack of exchangeability 
The amendments specify how an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how it should determine a spot 
exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments also requ ire disclosure of information that enables users of its 
financial statements to understand how the currency not being exchangeable into the other currency affects, or is expected to affect, 
the entity's financial performance, financial position and cash flows. 

The above amendments have no impact on the Company's Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements. 

lB. Material accounting policies 

I. Statement of compliance: 

The Financial Statements of the Company which comprise the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Balance Sheet as at 30th 
September, 2025, the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Statement of Profit and Loss, the Special Purpose Condensed 
Audited Interim Statement of Cash Flows and the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Statement of Changes in Equity for 
the period April 01,2025 to September 30,2025, and a summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (together hereinafter referred to as "Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements"). 

These Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition 
and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 34 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from t ime to time, the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") to the extent notified, guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) 
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India 

These Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financia l Statements have been approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting 
held on Nov 26, 2025. 

II. Basis of preparation and presentation: 

These Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements are prepared in connection with the proposed restructuring 
activities being carried out at Parent Company level. These Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements cover 
a period from April 1, 2025 to September 30, 2025. 

These Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for 
certain financial instruments measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period as explained in the accounting policies 
below. 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Notes to the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements for the period ended 
September 30, 2025 

II (a) Fair Value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation 
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes in account the characteristics of the asset or 
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement 
date. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes in account the characteristics of the asset or liability if 
market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair 
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share­
based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, fair 
value of plan assets within scope the of Ind AS 19 and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, 
such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or va lue in use in Ind AS 36. 

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into level 1,2, or 3 based on the degree to 
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements 
in its entirety, which are described as follows: 

• level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at 
the measurement date; 

• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly or indirectly; and 

• level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

These Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR') in crore rounded 
off to two decimal places as permitted by Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 except when otherwise stated. 

II (b) Current and non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. 

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria : 
• it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal operating cycle. it is held 

primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

• it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or 
• it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months 

after the reporting date. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

• it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle; 
• it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

• it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or the Company does not have an unconditional right to 
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option 
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current . 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only. 

Ill. Revenue recognition 

Sale of Goods 

The Company recognizes revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred to the customer at an amount 
that reflects the considerat ion to w hich the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 

Revenue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions, incentives, or other 
similar items in a contract when they are highly probable to be provided . The amount of revenue excludes any amount collected 
on beha lf of third parties. 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Notes to the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements for the period ended 
September 30, 2025 

The Company recognises revenue generally at the point in time when the products are delivered to customer or when it is 
delivered to a carrier for export sale, which is when the control over product is transferred to the customer. In contracts where 
freight is arranged by the Company and recovered from the customers, the same is treated as a separate performance obligation 
and revenue is recognized when such freight services are rendered. 

Interest income 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and 
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal 
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

IV. Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that 
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, 
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are incurred. 

V. Taxes: 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

Current tax 

Current tax is the amount of expected tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as determined in accordance with the 
applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Special Purpose 
Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible 
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises 
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the 
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises 
from the initial recognition of goodwill. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting year and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that 
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year in which the liability is 
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of t he 
reporting year. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

Current and deferred tax for the year 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are relating to items that are recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for 
a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination. 

Deferred tax assets and liabi lities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the 
relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

VI. Inventories 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Notes to the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim Financial Statements for the period ended 
September 30, 2025 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Cost of raw materials include cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. Cost of finished goods and work in progress include cost of direct materials and labor and a proportion of 
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost of traded goods include 
purchase cost and inward freight. 

Costs of inventories are determined on weighted average basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for 
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. 

VII . Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of past events, and it is 
probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an obligation. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the 
balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured 
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when 
the effect of the time value of money is material). 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a 
receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable 
can be measured reliably. 

VIII . Investment in subsidiary: 

Investment in subsidiary is shown at cost in accordance with option available in Ind AS 27, 'Separate Financial Statements'. Where 
the carrying amount of an investment in greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its 
recoverable amount and the difference is transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. On disposal of investment, the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

IX. Financial instruments: 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value 
through Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial 
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial assets 

a) Recognition and initial measurement 

A financial asset is initially recognised at fair value and for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to its acquisition or issue. Purchases and sales of financial assets are recogn ised on the trade date, which is the date on which the 
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

b) Classification of financial assets 

Financial assets are classified, at initial recogn ition and subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit and loss. A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets 
both of the following conditions and is not designated at FVTPL: 

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and 

• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

A debt instrument is classified as FVTOCI on ly if it meets both of the following conditions and is not recognised at FVTPL; 
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• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and 
selling financial assets; and 

• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and 
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at 
FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive 
income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The 
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL. 

In addition, on initia l recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the 
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces and 
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting year, with any gains and losses arising on 
remeasurement recognized in statement of profit and loss. The net gain or loss recognized in statement of profit and loss 
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the 'other income' line item. Dividend on 
financial assets at FVTPL is recognized when : 

• The Company's right to receive the dividends is established; 
• It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividends will flow to the entity, 
• The dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured 

reliably. 

c) Derecognition of financial assets 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it 
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. 

d) Effective interest method 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income 
over the relevant year. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all 
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or 
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter year, to the net carrying amount 
on initial recognition. 

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. 
Interest income is recognized in statement of profit and loss and is included in the 'Other income' line item. 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

a) Classification as debt or equity 

Debt and equity instruments issued by a company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the 
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

b) Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabil ities. 
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised 
in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company 's own equity instruments. 
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c) Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities 'at FVTPL' or 'other financial liabilities'. at FVTPL 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL: 

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. 

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: 

• It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or 
• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a 

recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking; or 
• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument. 

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if: 

• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; 
• the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its 

performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's documented risk management or investment 
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or 

• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entire combined contract 
to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109. 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in Statement 
of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial 
liability and is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss. For Liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable 
to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. 

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they 
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financia l liability derecognised and the consideration pa id and payable 
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Derecognition of financial liabilities 

The Company de recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have 
expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an 
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification 
of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for 
as an ext inguishment of the original financial liability and the recognit ion of a new financial liability. The difference between the 
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration pa id and payable is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

X. Segment reporting: 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. 
The Board of directors of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker which reviews and assesses the 
financial performance and makes the strategic decisions. 

XI. Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity 
of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent consists of cash and short-term deposits, as defined 
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management. 

XII. Earnings per share: 
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Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for treasury 
shares, bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split (consolidation 
of shares). 

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges 
to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average 
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares 
which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares including the treasury shares held by the 
Company to satisfy the exercise of the share options by the employees. 

XIII. Business Combination 

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control shall be accounted for using the pooling of int erest 

method. 

lC. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements: 

In t he course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 1 above, the Company is required to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recogni zed in 
the year in which the estimate is revised if the revis ion affects only that year, or in the year of the revision and future year, if the 
revision affects current and future years. 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty: 

Impairment of investments in subsidiary 

Determining whether the investments in subsidiaries are impaired requires an estimate in the value in use of investments. In 
cons idering the value in use, the Directors have anticipated the discount rates and other factors of the underlying businesses / 
operations of the investee companies. Any subsequent changes to the cash flows due to changes in the above-mentioned factors 
could impact the carrying value of investments. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to t he extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets 
that can be recognised, based upon the likely t iming and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning 
strategies. 



Piombino Steel Limited 

Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Audited Condensed Interim financial statements 

2. Investment in Subsidiary 

Parti culars 

Unquoted 

Investment at cost 

(a} Investment in equity instruments 

Subsidiary 

Bhushan Power & Steel Llmited (Face va lue of Rs. 10 each) 

JSW Kalinga Steel Limited. 

(b) Investment in compulsory convertible debentures {CCOs} 
Unquoted 

Subsidiary 

Bhushan Power & Steel limited (Face value of Rs. 10 each) 

Total Investment 

Less: Aggregate amount of provison for impairment in value of investments 

Total 

Aggregate carrying value 

Notes 

Rs. in crores 

As at September 30, 2025 As at March 31, 2025 

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount 

10,00,00.000 100.00 10,00,00,000 100.00 

20,99,994 2.01 

8,45,00,00,000 8,450.00 8,45,00,00,000 8,450.00 

8,55,20,99,994 8,552.01 8,55,00,00,000 8,550.00 

8,552.01 8,550.00 

8,552.01 8,550.00 

a) The CCDs shall have a term of 5 (five) years commencing from the date on which the CCDs are issued and allotted i.e. March 25, 2021. The CCDs holders are entitled to receive a coupon on an annual basis at the 
rate of 6% per annum from the date of lssue and allotment of CCDs. The CCDs coupon shall be payable on end of quarter from commencement of each subsequent quarter in which the interest became due. Each 

CCD ts convertible at any time during the CCD term into one equity shares of face value of Rs. 10.The holder of CCDs subject to their discretion shall have the right to direct the company to convert any or all the 
CCOs at any time during the CCO term. 

b) The Company's investments in CCO's of Bhushan Power & Steel limited amounting to Rs.8,450 crores were classified as fair value through profit and loss in the earlier years. In terms of para 2.l(a) of Ind AS 109, 
investment as 'interest in subsidiaries· are scoped out from measurement principles of Ind AS 109. Accordingly, this investment basis Ind AS 109 and the terms should be trea ted as part of 'inte rests in subsidiaries' 
and carried at cost less impairment other than Ind AS 109. During the previous year ended March 31, 2023, based on technical note from expert obtained by the Company, it has reclassified the said investments 
from Investment in Subsidiary at FVTPL to Investment in Subsidiary at Cost. 

c) 8.32,79,940 shares (as at 31 March 2025, Ni l shares) are pledged to the Bhushan Power & Steel Limited's banker (State Sank of India) to secure refinancing of term loan faci lity (refer note 23) 

d) 20,99,994 shares invested in JSW Kalinga Steel limited on 30 Sept 2025 

3. Current tax assets (Net) 

Particulars 

Tax deducted at source (net of provision for tax) 

4. Trade receivables 

Particu lars 

Trade receivables considered good • Secured 
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 

Particulars 

Undisputed trade receivables- considered geed 

Particulars 

Undisputed trade receivables - considered good 

Less than 6 
Not yet due 

months 
0.18 

Less than 6 
Not yet due 

months 

0.18 

Asat 
September 30, 2025 

16.96 

16.96 

As at 
September 30, 2025 

69 . .46 

69,46 

Rs. in crores 

As at 
March 31, 202S 

19.56 
19.56 

Rs. in crores 

Asat 
March 31, 2025 

13.33 

13.33 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as at September 30, 2025 

I 6 months -1 year I 1-2 years I 2-3 years I Total 

I 69.20 I o.os I I 69.46 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as at 31 March 2024 

I 
6 months - I year 

I 
1·2 years 

I 
2-3 years 

I 
Total 

I 13.07 I 0.08 I I 13.33 

The credit penod on sales of goods ranges from 7 to 120 days with or without secunty. Trade receivables does not include any receivables from directors and officers of the Company. 

Deta ils of trade receivables from related parties has been described in note 23. Cred it risk management regarding trade receivables has been described in note 25.4. 

5. Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Balances with banks 

In current accounts 

In term deposit accounts with maturity less than 3 months at inception 

Asat 
Se tember 30, 2025 

0.15 

0.15 

Rs. in crores 

As at 
March 31, 2025 

0.92 

151.00 

151.92 



6. Other current financial assets (unsecured) 

Particulars 

Interest receivable accrued and due on compulsory convertible debentures (CCDs) 

Interest receivable due on compulsory convertible debentures (CCDs) 
• from related party 

Security depcsit 

Interest receivable on fixed deposit 

Others 

less: Allowance for doubtful receivables 

7. Other current assets 

Particulars 

Balance with government authorities 

less: Allowance for doubtful receivables 

8. Share capital 

Particulars 

(a) Authorised: 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each of the par value 

Preference shares of Rs. 10 each of the par value 

(bl Issued and subscribed 

Outstanding at the beginning of the period/year, fully paid up 

Less: Buy back of Equity shares 

Outstanding at the end of the period/year, fu lly paid up 

(c) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares 

As at September 30, 2025 

No. of shares Amount 

12,00,00,00,000 12,000.00 

5,00,00,00,000 5,000.00 

5,87,73,64,000 5,870.28 

5,87,73,64,000 5,870.28 

Asal 
September 30, 2025 

2,294.22 

0.27 

2.42 

2,296.91 

Asal 
September 30, 202S 

24.64 

24.64 

Rs. in crores 

Asal 

March 31, 2025 

2,005.13 

0.27 

0.13 

0.20 

2,005.73 

Rs. in crores 

Asal 
March 31, 2025 

24.66 

24.66 

Rs. in crores 

As at March 31, 2025 

No. of shares Amount 

12,00,00,00,000 12.000.00 

5,00,00,00,000 5,000.00 

6,10,00,00,000 6,092.92 

(22,26,36,000) {222.64) 

5,87,73,64,000 5,870.28 

The Company has single class of equity shares. Each holder of equity shares is ent itled for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of 
the Company a~er distribution of aH preferential amount, in propcrtion to their shareholding. 

(d) Deta ils of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company are set out below: 

Particulars 

JSW Steel Limited, the Holding Company 

JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited 

(e) Change in Promoter's shareholding as on September 30 2025· 

As at September 30, 2025 

No. of Shares 

4,85,73,64,000 

l,02,00,00,000 

%of Shares 

82.65% 

17.35,, 

As at March 31, 2025 

No. of Shilres 

4,85, 73,64,000 

1,02,00,00,000 

% of Shares 

82.65% 

17.35% 

Promoter Name 
As at September 30, 20ZS As at March 31, 2025 

% change during the year 

IJSW Steel limited, the Holding Company 

IJSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited 

9. Other equity 

Particulars 

Retained earnings 

Capital Redemption Reserve (CRR) 

capital reserve 

Money rece ived against share warrants 

(a) Retained earnings 

No. of shares I % of total shares I 
4,85,73,64,ooo I 82.65% 1 
1,02,00,00,000 I 17.351, I 

Retained earn ings are the profits/(losses) that the Company has earned till date. It is a free reserve available to the Company. 

(b) Capital reserve 

No. of shares I 
4,85,73,64,ooo I 
1,02,00,00,000 I 

Reserve is created primarily on merger as per statutory requirement. This reserve is utilised in accordance with the specific provision of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(c} Money received against share warrants 

% of total shares 

82.65% 

16.72~~ 

As at 
September 30, 2025 

724.78 
222.64 

0.47 

14.00 

96L89 

(0.63ll) 

0.00% 

Rs, in crores 

Asal 
March 31, 2025 

624.92 

222.64 

0.47 

14.00 

862.03 

The Company has issued 3,500,000,000 share warrants each to JSW Steel and JSW Shipping respectively w ith a subscription price of Rs. 0.02 per warrant. The exercise period is five years from the days of issue of 
the warrants and the warrant holders at their discretion shall be entitled to purchase one equity share of the face value of Rs. 10 each at an exercise price of Rs 10. 

(d} Capital Redemption Reserve (CRR} 

Tne Company has created a Capital Redemption Reserve (CRR) pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, Section 69, upon the buyback of equity shares durmg the financia l year. 
The amount transferred to t he Capital Redemption Reserve from reta ined earnings is Rs. 222.53 Crores. This reserve is maintained to ensure the mtegnty of the Company's capital base and is not available for 
distribution as dividends. 

The Capital Redemption Reserve 1s classified under Reserves & Surplus in the financial statements and as presented as part of the Shareholders' Equity. It can be utilized only ,n accordance with the pro•J1s1ons of the 
Companies Act and other applicable regu lations. 



10. Borrowings At amortised cost 

Particulars 

Non•current borrowings (Unsecured) 

(I} Term loans 

From related party 

Asat 
September 30, 2025 

435.00 

435.00 

Rs. in crores 

Asat 
March 31, 2025 

The Company has outstanding borrowings as on September 30, 2025 Rs. 378,00,00,000 (March 31, 2025 : Ni l} from JSW Steel Umted bearing an interest rate of 10.60% compounded annually and is repayable after 
four years from the date of respective disbursement date (i.e June 30, 2029). Hence, rec!assifed as non current. 

The Company has outstanding borrowings as on September 30, 2025 Rs. 4,00,00,000 (March 31, 2025: Nil) from JSW Steel limted bearing an interest rate of 10.85% compcunded annually and is repayable after 

four years from the date of respective disbursement date (i.e June 30, 2029). Hence, reclassifed as non current. 

The Company has outstanding borrowings as on September 30, 2025 Rs. 53,00,00,000 (March 31, 2025: Nil) from JSW Steel Umted bearing an interest rate of 10.85% compounded annually and is repayable after 
four years from the date of respective disbursement date (i.e April 30, 2027). Hence, reclassifed as non current. 

11. Borrowings 

Particulars 

Current borrowings 

Loan from related party 

Asat 
September 30, 2025 

3,143.00 

3,143.00 

Rs. in crores 

Asat 
March 31, 2025 

3,521.00 

3,521.00 

The Company has outstanding borrowings as on September 30, 2025 Rs. 2765,00,00,000 (March 31, 2025: Rs. 2766,00,00,000) Rs. from JSW Steel Limited bearing an interest rate of 10.65% compounded annually 
and is repayable after two years from the date of respective disbursement date (i.e March 20, 2026) 

The Company has outstanding borrowings as on September 30, 2025 Rs. Nil (March 31, 2025 : 378,00,00,000) from JSW Steel Limted bearing an interest rate of 10.60% compounded annually and is renewed for 
next 4 years (i.e June 30, 2029). Hence, reclassifed as non current as on September 30, 2025. 

The Company has outstanding borrowings as on September 30. 2025 Rs. 79,00,00,000 (March 31, 2025: Nil.) from JSW Steel Limited bearing an interest rate of 10.65% compounded annually and is repayable after 
two years from the date of respective disbursement da te (i.e March 20, 2026) 

The Company has outstanding borrowings as on September 30, 2025 Rs. 298,00,00,000 {March 31, 2025 : Nil.) from JSW Utkal Steel Limited bearing an interest rate of 11.00% compounded annually and is 

repayable after one year years from the date of respective disbursement date {i.e March 27, 2026) 

12. Trade payables 

Particulars 

{a) Total outstanding, dues of micro and small enterprises 

Disclosure pertaining to micro, small and medium enterprises (as per infonnation available with the Company} 

Description 

Principal amount due outstanding as at end of year 

Principal amount overdue more than 4S days 

Interest due on above and unpaid as at end of year 

Interest paid to the supplier 

Payments made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the 
year 

Interest due and payable for the year of delay 

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at end of year 

Amount of further Interest rema ining due and payable in succeeding 
year 

(bl Total outstanding. dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 

Ageing a!; at September 30, 2025 

Particulars 

MSME 

Others 

Unbilled I 
0:16 I 

As at 
September 30, 2025 

As at 
September 30, 2025 

69.45 

69.45 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

less than l year I l•Z years I 2·3 years 

69:291 I 
I 
I 

Rs. in crores 

Asat 
March 31, 2025 

As at 
March 31, 2025 

18.82 

18.82 

Total 

. 
69.45 



Ageing as at March 31 2025 

Particulars 

MSME 
Others 

Trade Payables are normally settled wi thin 180 days. 
Trade paya bles to related parties has been disclosed in note 23. 

13. Other current financial liabilities 

Particulars 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 

14. Other current liabilities 

Particulars 

Advance from customer 

Statutory liabilities 

15. Revenue from operations 

Particulars 

Sale of traded goods 

Ind AS 115 (Revenue from contracts w ith customers) 

Unbilled I 

0:01 I 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 year I 1-2 years I 

1s:1s I I 

2-3 years 

Asat 

September 30, 2025 

480.47 

480.47 

As at 

September 30, 2025 

0.06 

0.06 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2025 

45.31 

45.31 

I 
I 

Total 

18.82 

Rs. in crores 

As at 

March 31, 2025 

289.58 

289.58 

Rs. in crores 

Asat 

March 31, 2025 

203.51 

203.51 

Rs, in crores 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2024 

619.18 

619.18 

The Company recognises revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entit led in 

exchange for those goods or services. 

The Company has asses;;ed and determined the following categories for disaggrega tion of revenue in addition to that provided under segment disclosure : 

Particulars 

Revenue from contracts with customer- sale of products 
Trading of steel products 

Total revenue from operations 

India 

Outside India 

Total revenue from operations 

Timing of revenue recognition 

At a point in t ime 

Total revenue from operations 

Contract balances 

Particulars 

Trade receivables (refer note 4) 

Contract Liabilit ies 

Advance from customers 

Credit period on sa le of goods ranges from 7 to 120 days with or without security. 

16. Other income 

Particulars 

Interest Income earned• compulsory convertible debentures (CCOs) 

Interest Income earned on financial assets designated as amortised cost 

Commission earned on pledge of shares 

Bank Deposits 

Gain on disposal/ Farr Valuation of Mutua l Funds 

Other miscellaneous income 

For the period ended 
September 30, 202S 

45.31 

45.31 

45.31 

·45 ,31 

45.31 

45.31 

As at 

September 30, 2025 

69.46 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2025 

321.21 

2.23 

0.86 

0.04 

0.02 

324.36 

Rs. in crores 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2024 

619.18 

619.18 

619.18 

619.18 

619.18 

619.18 

Rs. in crores 

As at 

September 30, 2024 

320.75 

Rs. In crores 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2024 

303.04 

2.86 

305.90 



17. Purchase of stock-in-trade 

Particulars 

Purchase of traded goods 

18. Finance costs 

Particulars 

Interest on borrowings 

19. Other expenses 

Particulars 

leg a I and professional fees 

Miscellaneous expenses 

a) Remuneration to auditors included in legal and professional Fees 

Statutory audit fees (including limited reviews) 
For certification and other services 

20. Earnings per share 

Particulars 

Profit attributable to equity shareholders {Rs. in crores) (A) 

Weighted averaee number of equity shares for basic EPS (B) 

Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS (C} 

Earnings per share 

Basic EPS (Amount in Rs.) (A/6) 

Diluted EPS (Amount in Rs.) (A/8) 

21. Income Tax 

A. Income Tax expense 

Particulars 

Current tax 

Deferred tax 
Total tax expense 

For the period ended 

September 30, 2025 

45.20 

45.20 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2025 

190.71 

190.71 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2025 

0.32 

0.00 

0.32 

0.09 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2025 

99.86 

5,87,73,64,000 

5,87,73,64,000 

0.17 

0.17 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2025 

33.59 

33.59 

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit before tax at the statutory income tax rate to recognised income tax expense for the period indicated are as follows: 

Particulars 

Effective tax rate reconciliation 

Profit before tax 

Enacted tax rate in India 

U.pected income tax expense at statutory tax rate 

Tax effect of expenses not deductible in determining taxable profits 

Deferred tax 
Tax expense for the year 

Effective income tax rate 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2025 

133.4S 

25.17% 

33.59 

33.59 

25.17% 

Rs. in crores 

For the per iod ended 
September 30. 2024 

618.03 

618.03 

Rs. in crores 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2024 

178.18 

178.18 

Rs. in crores 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2024 

0.24 

0.00 

0.24 

0.10 

Rs. in crores 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2024 

96.25 
6,10,00,00,000 

6,10,00,00,000 

0.16 

0.16 

Rs. in crores 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2024 

32.37 
0.01 

32.38 

Rs. in crores 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2024 

128.63 

25.17¾ 
32.37 

0.01 

32.38 
25.17':0 



B. Deferred tax asset (net) 

Deferred tax balance in relation to 

Others 

Deferred tax balance in relation t o 

Others 

22. Related party disclosures as required by Ind AS 24 

A. Name of Related Parties 

1. Holding Company 

JSW Steel Limited 

2. Subsidiary Company 

Bhushan Power & Steel Limited 

JSW Kalinga Steel Limited 

3. Fellow Subsidiary Companies 

JSW Steel Coated Products Limited 

JSW Utkal Steel limited 

Recognised 
As at 01-Apr-25 /reversed through 

profit and loss 

0.02 
0.02 

Recognised 
As at 01-Apr-24 /reversed through 

profit and loss 

0.02 0.01 

0.02 0.01 

National Steel and Agro lndustrres I.Jmited (merged with JSW Steel Coated Products Limited wet October 3, 2024) 

NSL Green Steel recycling l imited 

4. Key Management Personnel 

Mr. Kaustubh Kulkarni 

Mr. Mohit Goyal 

Mr. Alok Kumar Mishra (upto 21'><1 September 2024) 

Mrs. Ruchika Shah (wef 22~d October 2024) 

5. Board of Directors 

Mr. ManOJ Kumar Moh ta 

Mr. Anil Kumar Singh 

Mr. Oivyakumar Bhai r 

Mr. Anunay Kumar 
Or. (Mrs.) Rakh1 Jatn 

6. Other related party 

JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited 

e. Transactions with related parties 

Particulars 

Bhushan Power & Steel Limi ted 

Interest income 

Commssion on pledge 

Divid~nd Income 

Other charges 
Guarantees and collaterals provided (no. of shares) 

JSW Steel Limited 

Loan taken 
Loan repaid 

Finance costs 

Purchase of steel products 

Rent expense 

National Steel and Agro Industries limited (Merged with JSW Steel Coated Products Limited) 

Sales of stee l products 

JSW Steel Coated Products Limited 

Sa tes of steel products 

Recovery of expenses 

NSL Green Steel Recycling Limited 
loan given 

Loan given rece ived back 

Interest income 

JSW Utkal Steel Limited 
loan taken 

Finance costs 

Director remuneration 

Remuneration to Kaustabh Ku lkarni" 

•Rs. 1000 

Chief Executive Officer 
Ch ief Financial Officer 

Company Secretary 

Company Secretary 

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 

Independent Non-Executive Director 

Independent Non-Executive Director 

Recognised /reclassified 

from other 
comprehensive income 

Recognised /reclassified 
from other 
comprehensive income 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2025 

321.21 

2.23 

0.24 

Rs. in crores 

As at 30-Sept-25 

0.02 
0.02 

As at 30- Sept-24 

0.03 

0.03 

Rs. in crores 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2024 

303.03 

8.32.79,940 shares 8,32.79,940 shares 

57.00 97.00 

18.00 

174.48 178.18 

45.20 618.03 

0.01 0.00 

619.18 

45.31 

0.20 

0.30 

0.30 

0.01 

16.43 

0.00 0.00 



Notes: 

1. Transactions are inclusive of taxes wherever applicable. 
2. The Independent Non-Executive Directors are paid remuneration by way of sitting fees. The Company paid to them by way of sitting fees during the current period is Rs. 0.042 crores {previous period Rs. 0.044 
crores), which is not included above. 
3. 8,32,79,940 shares (as at 30 Sept 2025 8,32,79,940 shares) are pledged to the Bhushan Power & Steel Umited's banker (State Bank of India) to secure refinancing of term loan facility of 4,000 crores.(refer note 
2) 

Terms and conditions 

Sales : The sales to related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and in the ordinary course of business. For the period ended 31 March, 2025, the Company has 
not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. 

Purchases : The purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail tn arm's length transactions and in the ordinary course of business, Purchase transactions are based on made on 
normal commercial terms and conditions and market rates. 

The transactions other than mentioned above ar!! also in the ordinary course of business and at arms' length basis. 
C. Balances with related parties 

Particulars 

Bhushan Power & Steel limited 

Interest receivable 

Commission on pledge of shares receivable 

Other Payables 

Pledge of equity shares {no. of shares) 

JSW Steel Limited 

Loan outstanding 
Interest payable 

Trade payables 

JSW Steel Coated Products Limited 

Trade receivables 

National Steel and Agro Industries Limited (Merged with JSW Steel Coated Products Limited) 

Trade receivables 

JSW Utkal Steel Limited 

Loan outstanding 

Interest payable 

JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited 

Interest payable 

23. Financial Instruments 

23.1 Capital Risk Management 

Rs. in crores 

Asat Asat 
September 30, 2025 March 31, 2025 

2,294.22 2,005.13 

2.23 

0.22 

8,32,79,940 shares 8,32,79,940 shares 

3,280.00 3,223.00 

463.71 289.26 

69.26 18.49 

43.47 14.41 

27.84 27.84 

298.00 298.00 

16.76 0.32 

The Company maintains a strong credit rating through optimum mix of debt and equity. The principal source of funding of the Company ,s from inter corporate loans, capital markets and investors. The Company is 
not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. The Company regularly considers other financing and refinancing opportunities to diversify its debt profile, reduce interest cost and elongate the 
maturity of its debt portfolio. The Company monitors its capital using gearing ratio, which 1s net debt, divided to total equity. Net debt includes, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash 
equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents and current investments. 

Particulars 

Borrowings 

Less: Cash and cash equivalent 

Net debt 
Total equity 

Gearing ratio 

Asat 
5eptember 30, 2025 

3,578.00 

(0.15) 

3,5n.85 
6,832.17 

0.52 
Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Company that are managed as capital and debt is defined as long and short term borrowings as disclosed in Note 10 and 11. 
23.2 Categories of financial instruments 

The accounting classification of each category of financial Instruments and their carrying amounts are set out below: 

As at September 30, 2025 

Particulars 

Financial assets 

Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Other financial assets 

Total 
Financial liabilities 

Long .:erm borrowings (including current maturities) 

Trade payables 

Other financia l liabilities 

Total 

As at March 31, 2025 

Particulars 

Financial assets 

Trade receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Other financia l assets 

Total 

Financial liabilities 

long term borrowings (including current maturities) 

Trade payables 

Other financial liabilities 

Total 

Amortised cost 

69.46 

0.15 

2,296.91 

2,366.52 

3,578.00 

69.45 
480.47 

4,127.92 

Amortised cost 

13.33 

151.92 

2,005.73 

2,170.98 

3,521.00 

18 82 

289.58 

3,829.40 

Fair value through 
Total carrying value 

profit and loss 

69.46 
0.15 

2,296.91 

2,366.52 

3,578.00 

69.45 

480.47 

4,U7.92 

Fair value through 
Total carrying value 

profit and loss 

13.33 

151.92 

2,005.73 

2,170.98 

3,521.00 

18.82 

289.58 

3,829.40 

Rs. in crores 

Asat 
March 31, 2025 

3,521.00 

(151.92) 
3,369.08 
6,732.31 

Rs. in crores 

Total fair value 

69.46 
0.15 

2,296.91 

2,366.52 

3,578.00 

69.45 

480.47 

4,U7.92 

Rs. in crores 

Total fa ir value 

13.33 

151.92 

2,005.73 

2,170.98 

3,521.CO 

18.32 

289.58 
3,829.40 



24. Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments 

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets and other financial liabilities (other than those specificallv disclosed) are considered to be the same as 
their fair values, due to their short-term nature. A significant part of the financial assets is classified as Level 2. The fair value of these assets Is marked to an active market or based on observable market data. The 
financial assets carried at fair value bv the Company are mainly Investments in debt securities, accordingly, any material volatility is not expected. 

Details of financial assets/liabilities measured at amortised cost but fair value disclosed in category-wise 

Particulars 

Long term borrowings (Including current maturities) 

Carrying value 

Fair value 

24.l Market risk management 

Level and valuation techniques 

Level 2, estimated by discounting expected 

future cash flows using a discount rate 

equivalent to the risk-free rate of return 

adjusted for credit spread considered by 

lenders for instruments of similar maturities. 

As at 
September 30, 2025 

3,578.00 

3,578.00 

Rs. in crores 

As at 
March 31. 2025 

3,521.00 

3,521.00 

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realisable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial Instrument may 

change as a result of changes in interest rates, price fluctuations, liquidity and other market changes. Future specific market movements cannot be normally predicted w ith reasonable accuracy. 

Z4.2 Interest risk management 

Interest rate risk rs the risk t hat the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in ma rket interest rates. The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk because 
funds are borrowed at fixed interest rates. The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated in rupees w ith fixed rates of interest. 

Z4.3 Liquidity risk management 
liquidity risk refers to the risk of financial distress or extraordinary high financing costs aris ing due to shortage of hqu1d funds In a situation where business conditions unexpectedly deteriorate and requiring 
financing. 

As at September 30, 2025 

Particulars 

Financial assets 
Trade receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Other financial assets 

Total 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 

< l year 

69.38 
0.15 

2,296.91 

2,366.44 

3,143.00 

1-5 years > 5 years 

0.08 

0.08 

435.00 

Rs. in crores 

Total 

69.46 

0.15 

2,296.91 

2,366.52 

3,578.00 

Trade payables _____ -69..<15-----------------,;,~ 

Other financial liabilities 

Total 

As at March 311 2025 

Particulars 

Financial assets 

Trade receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Other financial assets 

Total 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 
Trade payables 

Other financial liabilities 

Total 

24.4 Credit risk management 

480.47 
3,692.92 

< 1 year 

13.33 

151.92 

2.005.73 
2,170.98 

3,521.00 

18.82 

289.58 
3,829.40 

435.00 

1-5 years > 5 years 

480.47 

4,U7.92 

Rs. in crores 

Total 

13.33 

151.92 
2,005.73 

2,170.98 

3,521.00 

18.82 

289.58 

3,829.40 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligat ions resultir:g in financial loss to the Company. Currently, the Company has limited customer base. The Company selects 
customers after due diligence based on creditworthiness as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. 

25. Segment reporting 

The Company is in the business of steel products trading act ivity, primarily operated in India and regularly reviewed bv the Chief Operating Decision Maker for assessment of Company's performance and resource 

allocation. The information relating to revenue from external customers and location of non-current assets of its single reportable segment has been disclosed as below: 

a. Revenue from operations 

Particulars 

Domestic 

Revenue from operations have been allocated on the basis of location of customers. 

b. Non-current assets 

All non-current assets of the Company are located in India . 

C. Customer contributing more than 10% of Revenue 

Particulars 

JSW Steel Coated Products limited 

National Steel and Agro Industries Limited (merged with JSW Steel Coated Products Limited we f October 3, 2024) 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2025 

45.31 

45.31 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2025 

45.31 

45.31 

Rs. in crores 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2024 

619.18 

619.18 

Rs. in crores 

For the period ended 
September 30, 2024 

619.18 

619.18 



26. Contingent Liabilities 

The Company does not have any contingent liabilities as on September 30, 2025 (March 31, 2025 : NIL). 

27. Previous period"s figures have been reclassified/regrouped, wherever necessary, to confirm with the current period dassification in comply with requirements of the amended Schedule Ill to the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

As per our attached report of even date 

For Shah Gupta & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 109574W 

Parth P Patel 

Partner 

Membership No.: 172670 

UDIN : 25172670BMKVKU2826 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 26th November, 2025 

Chief Executive Office 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Director 

DIN : 08568679 

~ 
Director 

DIN: 02059903 

~? 1)1~ .. ,-
Ru,~ika Rushik Shah Mohit Goyal 

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 

M . No. FCS9114 
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DIRECTORS'REPORT 

The Members, 
PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED, 

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the SEVENTH ANNUAL REPORT of your Company, 
together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025. 

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
(Amount in Crores) 

Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 
i. Revenue from operations 604.59 644.86 
ii. Other income 2,285.30 595.12 
iii. Total Income (i+ii) 2,889.89 1239.98 
iv. Expenses: 
Purchase of Stock-in-trade 603.44 639.53 
Finance Cost 359.24 332.60 
Change in Inventory of Stock-in trade - 4.18 
Other expenses 4.48 2.44 
Total Expenses 967.16 978.75 
v. Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (iii-iv) 1,922.73 261.24 
vi. Tax expenses 
Current tax 62.91 66.24 
Deferred tax 0.01 0.01 

Profit/ (Loss) for the year (v-vi) 1,859.81 194.98 

2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE: 

The Company is engaged in the business of buying, selling and otherwise trading or dealing 
in steel and its allied products, iron ore, coal, coke, brick-earth, ores, minerals and mineral 
substance, alloys and metal scraps of all kinds. The Company earned revenue of Rs. 604.59 
crores from trading of steel products and Rs. 2,285.30 crores from interest and dividend 
income for the financial year under review. The Company has reported net profit for the 
F.Y. 2024-25 of Rs. 1,859.81 crores after providing for tax expense as compared to Rs. 
194.98 crores in FY 2023-24. 

3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

There were no changes in the nature of business during the period under review. 

4. DIVIDEND: 

To maintain the liquidity of funds for meeting the future financial requirements of the 
Company, the Board of Directors has decided not to declare any dividend for the financial 
year 2024-25 

5. TRANSFER TO RESERVES IN TERMS OF SECTION 134 (3) {j) OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 2013: 

Your directors do not propose to carry any amount to any reserves during the period under 
review. 
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6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 
OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL 
YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND 
THE DATE OF THIS REPORT: 

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no material changes and commitments which 
could affect the Company's financial position have occurred between the end of the 
financial year of the Company and date of this report. 

7. DEPOSITS: 

Your Company has not accepted or renewed any deposits within the meaning of section 73 
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 
and the rules made thereunder. 

8. SHARE CAPITAL: 

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.17000,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seventeen 
Thousand Crores Only) divided into 1200,00,00,000 (One Thousand Two Hundred Crores 
only) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each (Rupees Ten only) and 500,00,00,000 (Five Hundred 
Crores only) Preference Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) each. The Paid-Up Share 
Capital of the Company is Rs. 5877,36,40,000/- (Rupees five thousand eight hundred 
seventy-seven crore thirty-six la khs forty thousand only) divided into 587, 73 ,64 ,000 (Five 
Hundred eighty-seven crores seventy-three lakhs sixty-four thousand) Equity Shares of 
Rs. 10/- each. 

Issue of Equity Shares: 

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any equity shares. 

Buy Back of Equity Shares: 

The Company has bought back 22,26,36,000 equity shares on 25th March,2025. 
Accordingly, the Company's paid up capital has reduced from Rs. 6100,00,00,000/­
(Rupees Sixty-One Hundred Crore only) divided into 610,00,00,000 (Six Hundred Ten 
Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 5877,36,40,000/- (Rupees five thousand eight 
hundred seventy-seven crore thirty-six lakhs forty thousand only) divided into 
587,73,64,000 (Five Hundred eighty-seven crores seventy-three lakhs sixty-four 
thousand) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 

Subsidiary of JSW Steel Limited: 

JSW Steel Limited holds 82.65% equity and JSLPL holds 17.35% equity in the Company. 

a) Issue of Equity Shares with Differential Rights 

The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence no information 
as per provisions of Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies 
(Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 
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b) Issue of Sweat Equity Shares 

The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and 
hence no information as per provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Act read with Rule 8(13) 
of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 

c) Issue of Employee Stock Options 

The Company has not issued any equity shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme 
during the year under review and hence no information as per provisions of Section 
62(1)(b) of the Act read with Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) 
Rules, 2014 is furnished. 

9. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

a) COMPOSITION & CONSTITUTION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

The Board of your Company currently comprises of five Directors, namely Mr. Anil Kumar 
Singh (DIN: 02059903), Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair (DIN: 08568679), Mr. Manoj 
Kumar Mohta (DIN: 02339000), Mr. Anunay Kumar (DIN: 01647407), Independent 
Director and Dr. Rakhi Jain (DIN: 07138042), Independent Director. 

According to the provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. 
Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair (DIN: 08568679) is liable to retire by rotation at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible have offered himself for 
reappointment. The necessary resolution proposing the appointment of aforesaid 
Director has been incorporated in the Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting for 
your approval. 

b) BOARD MEETING & ATTENDANCE: 

During the period under review, meeting of the Board of Directors was held 7 times on 
07.05.2024, 12.07.2024, 22.10.2024, 21.01.2025, 11.03.2025, 22.03.2025 and 
27.03.2025. The detail of the participation of Directors thereat is enumerated as below: 

Sr. Name of Director No. of Meeting held No. of Meeting 
No. during tenure Attended 

1.. Mr. Anil Kumar Singh 07 06 
2. Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta 07 03 
3. Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar 07 04 

Bhair 
4. Mr. Anunay Kumar 07 06 
5. Dr. Rakhi Jain 07 07 

The intervening gap between the Board meetings was within the period prescribed under 
the Companies Act, 2013. 
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c) DECLARATION BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Board comprised of Mr. Anunay Kumar and Dr. Rakhi Jain as Independent Directors. 
The Company has received the necessary declaration from each of the Independent 
Directors in accordance with Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he/she 
meets the criteria of independence as laid out in Section 149(6) of the Act. The 
Independent Directors had 01 (One) Meeting during the period under review. 

d) CHANGES IN KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

During the period under review, there is no change in Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 
of the Company. 

10. COMPOSITION OF VARIOUS BOARD COMMITTEES 

i. Audit Committee 

Audit Committee comprises of Mr. Anunay Kumar as Chairman, Mr. Divyakumar 
Vimalkumar Bhair and Dr. Rakhi Jain as members of Audit Committee. The Board has 
approved the charter for the functioning of the Audit Committee. The Company Secretary 
acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 

During the period under review, meeting of the Audit Committee was held 06 times on 
07.05.2024, 12.07.2024, 22.10.2024, 21.01.2025, 11.03.2025 and 27.03.2024. The 
detail of the participation of members thereat is enumerated as below: 

Sr. Name of Director No. of Meeting No. of Meeting 
No. held during Attended 

tenure 
1. Mr. Anunay Kumar 06 05 
2. Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair 06 04 
3. Dr. Rakhi Jain 06 06 

ii. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr. Anunay Kumar as Chairman, 
Mr. Anil Kumar Singh and Dr. Rakhi Jain as members of the Committee. The Board has 
approved the charter for the functioning of the Committee. The Company Secretary acts 
as the Secretary to the Committee. 

During the period under review, meeting of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
was held 02 times on 07.05.2024 and 22.10.2024. The detail of the participation of 
members thereat is enumerated as below: 

Sr. Name of Director No. of Meeting No. of Meeting 
No. held during Attended 

tenure 
1. Mr. Anunay Kumar 02 01 
2. Mr. Anil Kumar Singh 02 02 
3. Dr. Rakhi Jain 02 02 
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iii. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of Dr. Rakhi Jain as Chairperson, 
Mr. Anil Kumar Singh and Mr. Anunay Kumar as members of the Committee. The Board 
has approved the charter for the functioning of the Committee. The Company Secretary 
acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 

During the period under review, the meeting of the CSR Committee of Board of Directors 
was held 01 time on 07.05.2024. The detail of the participation of members thereat is 
enumerated as below: 

Sr. Name of Director No. of Meeting No. of Meeting 
No. held during Attended 

tenure 
1. Dr. Rakhi Jain 01 01 
2. Mr. Anil Kumar Singh 01 01 
3. Mr. Anunay Kumar 01 01 

iv. Finance Committee 

The Finance Committee of the Board of Directors comprises of Mr. Anil Kumar Singh as 
Chairman, Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta and Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair as members 
of the Committee. The Board has approved the charter for the functioning of the 
Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 

During the period under review, there was no meeting of the Finance Committee of 
Board of Directors held. 

v. Risk Management Committee 

Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors was constituted on May 24, 2022 
comprising of Mr. Anunay Kumar as Chairman, Mr. Anil Kumar Singh and Dr. Rakhi Jain 
as members of the Committee. The Board had approved the charter for the functioning 
of the Committee. The Company Secretary acted as the Secretary to the Committee. 

The Company has redeemed its Listed, Rated, Unsecured, Non-redeemable, Non­
Convertible Bonds (NCBs) of Rs.10 lakhs each aggregating to Rs. 2,500 crores in full on 
its redemption date i.e. March 22, 2024 and also got approval from the BSE Limited for 
delisting of its NCBs from Stock Exchange. Hence the company has become unlisted 
company and respective provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, will no longer be 
applicable on it, therefore continuation of aforesaid Committee is no more required. 
Hence the Risk Management Committee has been dissolved w.e.f May 07, 2024. 

vi. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Board of Directors was constituted on May 24, 
2022 comprising of Dr. Rakhi Jain as Chairperson, Mr. Anunay Kumar and Mr. Anil Kumar 
Singh as members of the Committee. The Board had approved the charter for the 
functioning of the Committee. The Company Secretary acted as the Secretary to the 
Committee. 

The Company has redeemed its Listed, Rated, Unsecured, Non-redeemable, Non­
Convertible Bonds (NCBs) of Rs.10 laks each aggregating to Rs. 2,500 crore in full on 
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its redemption date i.e. March 22, 2024 and also got approval from the BSE Limited for 
delisting of its NCBs from Stock Exchange. Hence the company has become unlisted 
company and respective provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, will no longer be 
applicable on it, therefore continuation of aforesaid Committee is no more required. 
Hence the Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been dissolved w.e.f May 07, 2024. 

11. HOLDING & SUBSIDIARY COMPANY: 

JSW Steel Limited holds 83.28% equity and JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited holds 
16.72% equity in the Company. The Company is now a Subsidiary of JSW Steel Limited. 

Bhushan Power & Steel Limited is wholly owned subsidiary of your Company w.e.f. March 
26, 2021. 

Presently, the Company neither has any Joint Venture nor Associate company. 

12. NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE 
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

During the year, no other companies have become or ceased to be subsidiaries, joint 
ventures or associate companies. 

13. PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE SUBSIDIARY COMPANY: 

The members may refer to the financial statements forming part of the Annual Report as 
required under the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 for financial 
position of all Subsidiaries. 

A statement containing salient features of the financial statements of the Subsidiary 
Company in Form AOC-1 is given in 'Annexure-A' to this Report. 

14. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM & INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS: 

a) Overview 

The Company has a robust system of internal control, commensurate with the size and 
nature of its business and complexity of it operations. 

b) Internal Control: 

The Company has a proper and adequate system of Internal Control. 

c) Internal Audit: 

The Company has a strong and independent internal audit function that inculcates global 
best standards and practices of international majors into the Indian operations. The 
Internal Audit team consists of professionally qualified accountants and engineers at the 
group level. The Internal Auditors reports directly to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee. 

d) Audit Plan and Execution 

At start of the year, the Internal Audit Department prepares an Annual Audit Plan after 
considering Business and Process Risks. The frequency of the audit is decided by risk 
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ratings of areas/functions. The audit plan is carried out by the Internal team and 
reviewed periodically to include areas that have assumed significant importance in line 
with the emerging industry trend. 

e) Internal Financial Controls 

As per Section 134(5)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors have an overall 
responsibility for ensuring that the Company has implemented a robust system and 
framework of internal financial controls. 

The Company has already developed and implemented a framework for ensuring 
internal controls over financial reporting. During the year, controls were tested and no 
reportable material weakness in design and effectiveness was observed. 

15. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS' REPORT: 

A. STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

M/s. Shah Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 109574W) had 
been re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company on the 06th Annual 
General Meeting for a period of 5 years until the conclusion of 11th Annual General 
Meeting to be held in the calendar year 2029. 

Comment on Auditors' Report: 

The report of the Auditors along with notes to Schedules forms part of this Annual 
Report. The observations made by the Auditors in the Auditors' Report are self­
explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments. 

The Auditors' Report for the year under review does not contain any qualification, 
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. 

No fraud has been reported by the Auditors under Section 143(12) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 requiring disclosure in Board's Report. 

The notes on financial statements referred to in the Auditor's Report are self­
explanatory and do not call for any further comments. The Auditor's Report for the 
year under review does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark, or 
disclaimer, except that there is a modification pertaining to maintenance of audit trail, 
as explained below. 

8. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS: 

In terms of Section 204 of the Act, Board of Directors of the Company in their Meeting 
held on May 07, 2024 had appointed M/s MMJB & Associates LLP., Practicing Company 
Secretaries, as secretarial auditor to conduct a secretarial audit of the Company for 
the financial year 2024-25. 

The Secretarial Audit report for financial year 2024-25 is annexed to this report in 
form MR-3 (Annexure - 81). The Secretarial Audit report for financial year 2024-25 
of Bhushan Power & Steel Limited, wholly owned Subsidiary of the Company is also 
annexed to this report in Form MR-3 (Annexure - 82) 
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The Board, at its meeting held on April 29, 2025 has on the recommendation of the 
Audit Committee appointed M/s Makarand M Joshi & Co., Company Secretaries, as 
Secretarial Auditor to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial 
year 2025-26. 

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

All related party transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the 
Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and 
on an arms' length basis and are in accordance with provisions of Section 177, 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The details of contracts or arrangement as prescribed in Form AOC-
2 attached as Annexure - C. 

Suitable disclosure on related party transactions, as required by the Accounting Standards 
has been made in the notes to the Financial Statements. 

17. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS U/S 186: 

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 
of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the financial statements. 

18. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS: 

No orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern 
status and company's operations. 

19. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

The Disclosures pertaining to particulars of employees as required in terms of the Section 
197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are not applicable to the Company 
and hence, the disclosure on particulars of employees in terms of the aforesaid Section and 
Rules is not attached to the Directors' Report. 

20. SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

Being part of JSW group, your Company follows an Anti-Sexual Harassment JSW Group 
Policy in line with the requirements of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) 
has been set up at group level to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. 
No complaints pertaining to sexual harassment were received during the FY 2024-25. 

21. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY / VIGIL MECHANISM 

The Company has in place a mechanism in the form of the Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil 
Mechanism to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any. 

22. RISK MANAGEMENT: 

The Company has in place a mechanism to inform the Board members about the risk 
assessment and mitigation plans and periodical reviews to ensure that the critical risks are 
controlled by the management. 
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23. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy is available on the website of the Company. 
Annual report on Corporate Social responsibility is enclosed as Annexure - D. 

24. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

The applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e., SS-1 and SS-2, relating to 'Meetings of the Board 
of Directors' and 'General Meetings', respectively, have been complied with by the Company 
during the financial year under review. 

25. BOARD EVALUATION 

The Board carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, the performance of the 
Independent Directors individually as well as an evaluation of the working of the 
Committees of the Board. The performance evaluation of all the Directors was carried out 
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The performance evaluation of the 
Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent 
Directors. 

26. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

The Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity, particulars under section 
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, regarding the conservation of energy, technology 
absorption are not applicable. 

There were no foreign exchange earnings/ outgo during the year under review. 

27. COPY OF ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, copy 
of the Annual Return of the Company prepared in accordance with Section 92(1) of the Act 
read with Rule 11 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is 
placed on the website of the Company and are accessible at the web-link: 
bJj:p~/www.jsw.in/gr.o.Jdl?_~jpiom bi no-steel-Ii m ited. 

28. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

Pursuant to the requirement clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that: 

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had 
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

b) such accounting policies have been applied consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and 
loss of the company for that period; 

c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the 
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; and 
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e) proper systems were devised to ensure compliance with the prov1s1ons of all 
applicable laws and such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

APPRECIATION: 

Your Directors would like to express their appreciation for co-operation and assistance 
received from Government authorities, financial institutions, banks, vendors, customers, 
shareholders and other business associates during the year under review. The Directors 
also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the committed services by 
all the employees of the Company. 

Place: Jharsuguda 
Date: April 29, 2025 

For and on behalf of the 
Board of Directors of Piombino Steel Ltd. 

~ -
A "IK(~s- h n1 u111ar 1ng 

Chairman 
DIN:02059903 
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ANNEXURE A 

FORM NO. AOC-1 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Part "A"; subsjdjarjes 
(in Crores 

SI. No. 1 (One) 
Name of the subsidiary Bhushan Power & Steel 

Limited 
The date since when subsidiary was acquired 26.03.2021 
Financial Year ending on 31.03.2025 
Reporting Currency INR 
Exchange Rate on the last day of the financial N.A 
year 
Share capital 100.00 
Reserves & Surplus 11,286.94 
Total Assets 24,259.49 
Total Liabilities 24,259.49 
Investments -
Turnover 21,679.58 
Profit/{Loss) before tax 260.39 
Provision for tax -
Profit/{Loss) after tax 260.39 
Interim Dividend 1676.45 
% of shareholding 100.00 

Notes: 
1. No subsidiary is yet to commence operations. 
2. No subsidiary has been liquidated or sold during the year. 

For and on behalf of the 
Board of Directors of Piombino Steel Ltd. 

Place: Jharsuguda 
Date: April 29, 2025 

~/ 
Anil Kumar Singh 

Chairman 
DIN:02059903 
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ANNEXURE B1 
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ANNEXURE 82 
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No 
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ANNEXURE C 

FORM NO. AOC-2 
(Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the 
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso 
thereto 

1. Details of contracts or arranqements or transactions not at arm's length basis:-
Name(s) Nature of Duration Salient Justification date(s Amount Date on which 

of the contracts/ of the terms of for entering ) of paid as the special 
related ~rrangemen contracts the into such appro advanc resolution was 

party and ts I I contracts or contracts or val by es, if passed in 
nature of ransactions arrangeme arrangemen arrangeme the any general 

relation sh i nts / ts or nts or Board meeting as 
p transactio transactions transaction required under 

n including first proviso to 
the value, if section 188 

any 
(a) (b) (c) ( d) (e) (f) (g) (h) 

(Nil) 
(All contracts or arranqements or transactions with related parties were at arm's lenqth basis) 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's lenqth basis:-
No. Name(s) of Nature of Duration of Salient terms of date(s) of Amount paid as 

the related contracts/ the contracts ~he contracts or approval by advances, if any 
party and arrangements I arrangements the Board 
nature of / transactions arrangements or transactions 

relationship / transactions including the 
value, if any 

1. JSW Steel Trading of Annual Rs. 603.44 Approved Nil 
Limited Steel Products crores by Audit 

Committee 
2. JSW Steel Trading of Annual • Rs. 604.59 Approved Nil 

Coated Steel Products crores by Audit 
Products Committee 
Limited 

Note: Refer the related party transactions under Ind AS at Note No 23 of the financial 
statements of 2024-25. 

Place: Jharsuguda 
Date: April 29, 2025 

For and on behalf of the 
Board of Directors of PiombT, Stee. I Ltd. 

(~/ 
Anil Kumar Singh 

Chairman 
DIN:02059903 
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3. 

4. 

5. 
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Annexure D to Directors Report 
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company. 

CSR policy, reflecting ethos of the Company, broad areas of CSR interest and overview 
of activities, proposes rural focus and woman empowerment. 

Policy states the list of activities/projects undertaken/to be undertaken in future. 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

SI. Name of Designation / Number of Number of 
No. Director Nature of meetings of meetings of CSR 

Directorship CSR Committee 
Committee attended during the 
held during year 

the year 
1. Dr. (Mrs.) Rakhi Chairperson 01 01 

Jain 
2. Mr. Anil Kumar Member 01 01 

Singh 
3. Mr. Anunay Member 01 01 

Kumar 

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects 
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company. 
www.jsw.in//groups>piombino-steel-limited. 

Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR 
Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable Not Applicable 

(a) Average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of Section 135 f 
185.59. Cr 

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of 
Section 135 f 371.19 Lac 

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the 
previous financial years. Nil 

(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any Nil 

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]. f 371.19 Lac. 

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both ongoing Project and other than Ongoing 
Project): f 371.19. 
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : Nil 

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable. Nil 
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(d) 

(e) 
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Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]. f 371.19. 

CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: 

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.} 
Spent for the Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund specified 

Financial Year. to Unspent CSR Account under Schedule VII as per second proviso to 
(in Rs.) as sub-section (6) of sub-section(5) of Section 135 

Section 135. 

Amount. Date of Name of Amount. Date of transfer. 
transfer. the Fund 

~371.19 Lacs Nil NA NA NA NA 

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any: 

SI. No Particular Amount (in 

Lakhs) 

(1) (2) (3) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the f 371.19 

Company as per sub-section (5) of section 

135 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year f 371.19 

( iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year Nil 

r @::ti) J 
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or Nil 

programmes or activities of the previous 

Financial Years, if any 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Nil 

Financial Years r(iii)-(iv)l 

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three 
Financial Years: 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
SI Proceed Amount Balance Amount Amount Amount 
No ing transferred Amount in spent in the transferred to a remainin 

Financi to Unspent Unspent CSR Financial Fund as specified g to be 
al CSR Account Account under Year (in Rs) under Schedule spent in 
Year(s) under sub- sub - section VII as per second succeedi 

section ( 6) of (6) of Section proviso to sub - ng 
Section 135 135 (in Rs) section (5) of Financial 
(in Rs) Section 135, if Years (in 

anv Rs) 
Amount Date 
(in Rs) of 

Tran 
sfer 

8 
Defici 
ency, 
if any 
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NIL NIL NIL 

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social 
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: 

I No 

If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired : 

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate 
Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: 

SI. Short Pin code of Date of Amount Details of entity / Authority / 
No. particulars of the creation of CSR beneficiary of the registered 

the property property or amount owner 
or asset(s) asset(s) spent 
[including 
complete 
address and 
location of 
the propertvl 

_ _UJ __ (1) (31_ (-11_ ______ (5) _i§) 
CSR Name Registered 
Registration address 
number, if 
aoolicable 

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no. house no. 
Municipal Office/Municipal Corporation/Gram Panchayat are to be specified and also the 
area of the immovable property as well as boundaries) 

9. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average 
net profit as per sub-section (5) of Section 135. Not Applicable 

For a~d on, behalf of the Bo•rd_ 11 Directors 

~ ' (t)'/ 
D akhi Jain Anil Kumar Singh 

(Chairperson CSR Committee) (Director) 
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~ l l1t" ""'t1rili · • a1lLi .•. l1a11,g 8t1ard f India ( ub ,tantial A qui iti 111 .· ,f • hdr 1 

.. 11 :l - k o r ) Rt: gul _ti,011 , 2011; 1(Not Applicable to th 1e ompany during th 
•. udit P riod) 

T11 • uriti, an,d _,, · ·. 11 _. 1,g . B ard of India (Prolubiti n of Insider Trading) 
R • •. ulati ,11 , 2015; ( ot Applicable to the Company d.uri·ng 'the Audit Period) 

( ~) 11 : •• uri.ti •• a11d · x,ch 11 Board of In,dia (I ue of Capital a1.1d Di lo ure 
R quir,. n, . n . ) Regulation , 20,18;' (Not Applicable to th,e Company during the 
Audit :Period)1 

(d) h •• • - uriti • ai1d xcl1ange Board of I11dia. (Share Based mp.lo1y - B nefits and 
··\i .• at ·quit,r) Regulati n, 21021; (Not Applicable to the Company d11r"ng the 
Audit Period) 

( ) Th ~ .. uriti . . and • xch,ang • Board of India (lssu . and Listin,g of Non-Convertible 
L1'L.. •• uriti ) R. gulations, 2021; (Not Applicable lo the Comp,any during the Audit 
Perio,d) 

(f) TI1 ,. .... urilti and Ex l1a11g Board ,of India (R gistrars to, an. lssu and har 
; ransf r Ag · 11ts) R gulations, 1993 r • g,ar,ding th Compani s, A t and d · alit1g 
"ith • li nt; 

( ) h uriti and x,change Board of India (D listing of E,quity Shar · ) 
R gul ti, ns,, 2021 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit P'eriod); 

(11) "l h curiti - and x hang, Boar,d 1of lndi - (Buyba k of uriti s) R gul tion, , 
201 .·· ; ( •. • ot. Applicable to the • ompany during the Aud.it P1eri,od) and 

( i) s id .ntifi • d, n l w is ·p ifically ppli abl to th ompan ·. 

(ii)1 'fl1 •. . . urili s nd ·.. 11 11g r. B >drd , f India (l .i ting ·. lilig til111 ru.1d i ll1s11re 

I{ quir n1 n ) I~ gL1l,atic1ns, 2015 a11Li a111 ~:111dn1 11t m li tlt r u11Li r, ( ot 
Applicabl · to th om.pany during th Audit P riod) 

I uring tl1 p rioLl u11d r r •.•. 1 . , ti . " mp .,n , 11....... c 11 ·i,,li li \l\ritJ, th ·. pro isi,L111 • t f th • Lt, 
I<ul , l{ gul ti1. 1 ·, • iuid li11 , lan,darLi~, ~t . m ntio11 Li be v . 
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urth that tl1 ad a11d 
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I'\ i rati of tl1 to mo11itor and nsur=> \ IZ f 11 mpa11 

1111 li,111 .. l ,, i l1 a1 11liL abl 1 \r\' , rt1 l , r gulati.011 a11d uid lin s. 

. furth r r • port that dt1ri11g tl1e udit p ,ri d: 

1. 1

l "' n1pa11, l1a b u ht-ba . k 22,26,36,000 (Tw 11ty-tw tw nty-six lakh thirty-
i tl1 u • 11d 11.l r) quit, • har 0 1f I . R 10/- a h at a pric of I R 75.30/- (Rup 

nt)·-Fi a11d Pai Thirty • 111 ) p . r hare r suiting in an outlay of an am unt of 
l R 1. 7 .45 ror ( up • Ot1 housand Six undred Sev nty-Six Cror s and Forty­

akh , Onl ), in ac ordan of Se tion 68 of the Compani · s Act, 2013 . 
• 
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or M B & Associates LLP 
om pan · ecretarie 

I I I : l .2020MH006700 
Pe r R \'iew o.: 282 /2022 

-
Bhavi ha Jewani 
Designated Partner 
FCS: 50 
CP: 9 -16 
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DI : ' 00 503G000229416 
Date: April 29, 2025 
Place: Mumbai 

1711 i port i .. t b r ad iintlz our letter of even date W'l1icl1 i a11nexed as A,inexure A at1d for111 .. a11 
i11tegral part of tl1i .. report. 
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ha,· f Ila,,, d th audit pra tices and pro,,..0 ~ ,c- a . w r ap1propriat t . ob,tain 
r '-a nabl a • uran .·• about th , . rr tn,ess of the c,ontents of th Secretarial r c,ord· . Th 
, -rifi -ation \.\"a don , ,011 t t bas,i . to ensur that ,correct facts are reflected in · r tarial 

rd, . \ . ,e • • .· Ii v, , that th . pro . s es an,d p,ractices, we followed provid ·. a r asona bl 
ba i .. f r • ur opituon. 

3. \\r • h , .• n t verifi d the ,correctnes and appropriateness o,f financial r -cords an,d Books 
. f .· co,unts • f th companJ'· 

4. li\'h re · r 
mpli -

re,quir d.., w • have obtained the Managemen·t repr s ntation 
flaw ., rules and regulations and happ. ning of · vents etc. 

about the 

5. The ompliance of the p,rovis,i,on of Corpora·te and oth r appli able I.aws, rul · , 
r gulations, s,tan,dards is the responsibility of manag,em nt. Our · xaminatio,n v.ra. 
limi·t d to th ve·rificati,on of procedures on t~st b,asis. 

. Th .·.•· cretarial Audit report is neither an assur·ance as to the future viab,i1ity o,f the 
ompan), no,r of the efficacy or effectiveness with "'hich the management ha . conducted 

th · affair .. 1of the company. 
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s.s~&~., 
Company Secretaries 

FORM NO. MR- 3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

Registered office address: Ground. Floor, 
Hari Krupa, 71/1, Mc Nicholas Road, 
Chetpet, Chennai -600031 Contact: 
9841092661 
E-mail: ssrini50@gmail.com 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 sr MARCH, 2025 

To, 

[Pursuant to section 204{1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

The Members, 
BHUSHAN POWER & STEEL LIMITED 
4th Floor, A-2, NTH Complex 

Shaheed Jeet Singh Marg USO Road, 
Qutab Institutional Area, New Delhi 
DL 110067. 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by BHUSHAN POWER & STEEL LIMITED bearing CIN: 
U27100DL1999PLC108350 (hereinafter called the "Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report 
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st 

March, 2025 by and large appears to have complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and 
also that the Company has proper Board- processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in 
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025, according to the 
provisions of: 

i. The Companies Act, 2013, (the Act) and the rules made there under. 

11. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, ('SCRA') and the rules made there under (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the period under review). 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996, and the Regulations and Byelaws framed there under. 

Branch Office: Office No. AI08, 1st floor, NBC Complex, Sec-11, CBD Belapur, Navi Mumbai-400614. Mobile: +91 8 
mail: ssrini50@gmaiI.com 
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iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, and the rules and regulations made there under to 
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings. 

v. The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
Act, 1992; ('SEBI Act') are not applicable to the Company during the period under review as the 
Company is an unlisted company. 

v1. All other relevant applicable laws including those specifically applicable to the Company, a list 
of which has been provided by the management. The examination and reporting of these laws 
and rules are limited to whether there are adequate systems and processes are in place to 
monitor and ensure compliance with those laws. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following Secretarial 
Standards: 

The Secretarial Standards issued and notified by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India SS- 1 & 
SS- 2 has been generally complied with by the Company during the financial year under review. 

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above 

We further report that: 

• The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There were no changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review. 

• Adequate notices are given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting. 

• Decisions at the meetings of the Board of Directors were carried through based on majority and 
there were no dissenting views by any Member of the Board during the year under review. 

We further report that, 
Based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company and on the review of 
the compliance reports of Company Secretary/ Chief Financial Officer/ Whole-time Director taken on 
record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in our opinion there are adequate systems and 
processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and 
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws such as direct and indirect tax 
laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has/have not been reviewed 
in this Audit since the same has/have been subject to review by statutory financial aud' 
other designated professionals. We also confirm that wherever documents/returns 
were certified by other designated professionals, they have not been scrutinized by u 
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on the authenticity on the contents of these documents/returns/reports and, hence, we have 
accepted them on as-is-what-is basis. 

We further report that, during the audit period, except the events listed below no other events 
occurred which had any major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred 
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, and standards etc. 

1. The Hon'ble Supreme Court, in its ruling on JSW Steel's acquisition ofBhushan Power 
& Steel Ltd. under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC), has reaffinned that, 
as per Section 32A, resolution applicants are granted immunity from antecedent criminal 
liabilities of the corporate debtor. This judgment upholds the clean slate doctrine, 
ensuring that past offenses of the corporate debtor do not impact successful resolution 
applicants. 

2. The Company proposes to raise fresh loan of Rs. 4500 crores towards strengthening the 
working capital position of the Company and to pmtly recoup the internal accruals 
deployed towards CAPEX and thereby inter alia use the smne towards declaring dividend 
on the equity shares. 

3. The Company has declm·ed an interim dividend at the rate of Rs 167.645 per fully paid 
equity shm·e (1676.45% per fully paid equity shm·e) of the company mnounting to 
Rs.1676.45 crores for the period ended 31.12.2024. 

4. The Company has entered into a long-te1m coal supply agreement for the next 15 years 
with M/s Jhm· Minerals Private Limited (related party) for procurement of thermal coal 
transaction value estimated to be Rs. 896 crores and has provided a security deposit of 
Rs. 163 crores. 

5. Mr. Alok Kumar Mishra Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company has 
resigned from the company during the period of review. 

6. Ms. Ruchika Shah has been appointed as Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f 
17.10.2024. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 18.04.2025 

3jPage 

ForS. S~&{!,a,, 
Company Secretaries 

S. Srinivasan 
Practicing Company Secretary 

FCS: 2286 I CP. No.: 748 
UDIN :F002286G000146848 
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AnnexureA 

To, 

The Members, 
BHUSHAN POWER & STEEL LIMITED 
4th Floor, A-2, NTH Complex 
Shaheed Jeet Singh Marg USO Road, 

Qutab Institutional Area, New Delhi 
DL 110067. 

Our Secretarial Audit report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were considered appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The 
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. 
We believe that the processes and practices, we followed, provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 18/04/2025 

4jPage 

ForS. s~&~., 

Company Secretaries 

Srinivasan 

Practicing Company Secretary 

FCS: 2286 j CP. No.: 748 

UDIN:F002286G000146848 
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W hav a di d h accompanytng S -ndatone Financial S atements of Piombino s eel Limited ("the Company"}, which comprise the 

balance heet as at a ch 31, 2025, and th statement o,f profit and loss including the tement of other comprehensive income, the cash 

flo sta e statem • nt of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalon financial statements, including 

a summ ry of material accounting policies and other explana ory information (hereinafter referred to as "the standalone financial 

In our opinion and o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 

statements give he inform tion required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act''),, as amended, in the manner so required and give a true 

and fair v·ew in confo mity "th the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 

31, 2025, and j :profi including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the change.sin equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under sub­

sect·on (10) of Section 143 of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the 

Audi of the Standalone Financial State.ments' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of 

Ethics' issued by he Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 

t e standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

lnforma ·on 0th than the Standalone Financial Statements and Au<fltor's Report Thereon 

Th Company's Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The oth r information compr1ses he 

information included in the Company's Annual Report but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report 

thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financral statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form o.f assurance 

condusion thereon. 

In co·nnection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so 

consider hether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained 

durjng the audit or otherw·ise appears to be materially misstated. tf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 

ma erial m ·sstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of e Management for the Standalone Financial State11,ents 

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in sub-section (S} of Section 134 of the Act with respect to the 

pre para ·on of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial pertormance including 

other comprehensi e inco e, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in tndia, including the lndi n Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of th Act read with he Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of ade uate accounting records in 

acco dance w· e pro ·sions.ofthe A to safeguarding of he assets of the Company and fo preventing an detecting fraud and other 

irr gulari ·es; s ion ilnd . pplication of appropriate accoun ing policies; aking judgmen nd est;mat h t 

prudent; and design1 implementatio and aintenance of adequate internal financial controls th t we e operating effi 

. e ac racy a completeness of the accoun ing r,ecords, relevant to he preparation and prese t tion of the 

fro , mater al issta men w et er due o fraud or er r. 
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Our ob e ives are o obtarn fi aso b aJ.::aU ·nee bou h ther the s n lone fi ancial state ents as a whole are free from m terial 

i tat ment, he r d e . fraud or e o , nd o is.sue an auditor's re that includes our opin on. Reasonable assurance is a high 

level of s uranc but is o uarante hat an aud· conducted in' accordanc with S.As will always detect material misstatement when 

. Missta-ements can aris from fraud or error and re consid r d material if, individually or in e aggrega e, they co Id re sonably 

be ex.p cted to infl e ce he e onomic ecisions o users ta non th basis of hese standalone financi I statements. 

part of an audit in cco dance ith SAs, we exe cise profe ional judgment and maintain professional skepticism thro ghout the audit 

We also: 

l entify and assess h risks of material misstatement of the s-tandat·one financial statements, hether due to fraud or error, design 

and erform audit proc dures responsive to tho e risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and app opriate to ,provide a basis 

for our opin,o . The ris of not detecting a material mis tatem nt resultjng from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 

fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obta·n an nderstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circ m,......._nces. ,under clau e {i) of s -se ion (3) of Section 143 of the Act~ we ar .also respon ible for e><pres ing our opinio·n on 

whe her the company has adequate internal fina.ncial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the 

op rating effi c ·veness of such controls. 

Evaluate th appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related discfosures made 

by management 

Conclude on the appropriat,eness of managements and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation 

of nancial sta ementand, ased on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 

that ay cast significa doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if 

such disclosure are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 

our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to1 cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate . e overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 

the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation, 

e communicat ith tho e charged with governance regardingt among other matters, the, planned scope and timing of the audit and 

ignifican audi findings, induding any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit .. 

We Isa prov·de those c arged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 

ind p denc , a d to communicate with them au relationships and other matter: that may reasonably be thought to be r on our 

a depend nee, and he e applicable, re-la ed feguards. 

R po . . on Other legal a d Regulato Requirements 

1. As r quire y the Comp res (Auditor's Report) Order, 20,20 ( ~the· Orde ), issued by the Centr I Gov rnmentof I dia in term of sub­

s ction, (11) of Se ion 1 3 of e Act w give in, .... "' "Annexuri A." a statement on th matters p cified i 

Order., to h ovt-,e.nt appli bl . 

2. As equi d y su section (3) of Se , ion 43 of he Act, port th : UM 
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• l ur i ion, pro er ,books of accoun as required by law have been kept by th Company so far s it ,ppe r fr m o r 

,;;; ..... umination f hose books, 

• The balance sh et the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, the statement of cash flow and the 

statement of changes in ·equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accountjng Standards specified under Section 133 

of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,. 2025 taken on record by the Board of 

Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a d'irector in terms of sub-section (2) 

of Section 164 of the Act. 

f. With respect to the ade-quacy of the internal financial controls wrth reference to standalone financial statements of the Company 

.and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to •our separate Report in "Annexure Bu to this report. 

g. In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been paid/ provjded by the Company to its 

directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act; 

h. With respe,et to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule (11) of the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and accordin.g to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position in standalone financial 

statements - Refer Note 27 to the standalone financial statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 

foreseeab'le losses; and 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and. Protection Fund' by the 

Company. 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that to the best of its knowfedge and belief no funds have been advanced or loaned 

or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to 

or .in .any other persons or entities, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether 

record.ed in writing or otherwise,! that the lntennediary shall, whether.,, directly or indir (:tly lend or in'lest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 

provide any guarantee., security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief no funds (which are e·ther material 

either individually or in aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign 
• 

entity .("funding Parties"), witt1 the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall., 

whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever ((/Ultimate 

Beneficiaries'' ) by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of 

the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

( ) Based on the audi procedur s hat have been consid r d r asonable and approp iat on th irc\~rn tanc. , nothing 

has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the repr sentation under sub-cluse (i 11( ), 

as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

v. Th Company has not d clared and paid dividend during the year. 
("') FR 
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(i) 

( ii) 

(iii) 

0 

(a) 

- -

g I 

nrmaaon and • x Ian ions sought by us and iv n y the company and he books of accoun and r or mtn d 

I u ·Of a nd o he est of our •knowledge nd belief, we tate tha : 

) he Com any does no have property, plant and eq,uipment and accordingly, reporting under p ragraph 3 (j). ( ) 

( } of the Orde • is no applica'ble. 

(B) The Company does not have any ~ntangibte assets and accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (i)' (a) (B) of the 

Order is not applicab e. 

(b) The ·Company does ot have property, plant and equipment and accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (i) (b) of the 

Order is not applicable • o the Company. 

fc) The Company does not hold any immovable property during the year. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (i) (c) of 

the Ord·er is ,not applicable to the Company. 

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipmen,t {including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets 

during the year. 

(e) Based on the information a·nd ·explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have ,been initiated during the year or are 

pending against the Company for holding benami property .under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 

1988) and Rules made thereunder. 

(a) The Company does not have inventories. Accordingly, reporting und'er clause 3 (ii) (a) of the Order is. not applicable to . 
th.e Company. 

(b) During the year, the Compan.y has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs 5 crores, in aggregate from 

(a} 

banks and financial institutions and accordingly, the •question of our commenting on whether the quarterly returns or 

statements are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company does not arise. 

During the year, the Company has given unsecured loan, the details of which are given below: 

{Rs .. in crores) 
' . 

Particulars loan - -
.A. Aggi egate a111ou:nt granted du1.i11g the year 

- Related Party 0.30, 

8. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases I 

• 
• ReJated Party Nil -

-

The Company has not made any investments or provided any guarantee or securities or advances in the nature of roans 

to any other entity during the year. 

(b) During the year, the terms and conditions of the Joan given are not prejudicial. to the Company's interest. The Company 

has not made investments or provided guarantee, security or granted ad.vances in the nature of loans to companies, 

firms, 1timited liability partnerships or any other parties. 

(c) The Company has granted loans during the year to co.mpanies where the schedule of repayment of principal and 

payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular. The Company ·has not granted 

advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability partn.erships or any other parties. 

(d) There are no amounts of toans and adva.nces in the nature of loans granted to companies, firms, limited liability 

partnerships or any· other parties which are overdue· for more than ninety days. 

(e) There ·were no loans/ advances in nature ,of loans which were granted to same parties a.nd which fell due during the 
• 

y.ear and ere renewed/extended. Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party t o settJe the overdu·e 

loans/advances in nature of :loan. 

( Company has •no grante.d any 1· an5 or advances in the natur of loan , • • her r payabte d maod or it1 out 

specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, fimited liability partnerships or 

Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (i ii) (f) of he Order is not appticable to the Compan.y. 

A 



) ' Vi V 0 ov'd n 11.wur >"'TO~- o r 

a . h co • 
I nll'":f"l\fis .S of i ,ns 8 of f ri g 

Co·rnnan has Ith race p d a y deposits from the public nor ace pt~~~ any ounts whic are d eme ' t b o 

f - ·o -s 7 o 76 oft e Act d the , ules mad · he eunde , o he ex e_ appUca le. ""'LLO dingly, 

re ·ng n er t se 3 (v) o er is · o appli I o e Co 

{ i) The Ce tral Go er ment has not prescribe the intenance of cos reco ds under sub sectio ( ) of ction 148 of the Act for 

an o e prod , c y e Com any. Accordingly reporting under cl use 3 (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

a The • ompa y is ge era y regular 1n depositing w· the appropriate •uthorities und·sputed statutory due ·ncluding 

providen fund employee ' state insurance, inco·me tax, service rax,, good and ervice tax, cess and o her material 

sta - ory dues applica le to it There are no u -di puted amoun payable in re pect of income tax service tax, goods 

a d se ce ta , cess a d o her m terial statutory dues hich were outstanding. at the year end, for a year of more than 

six months from the date t ey became payabre. 

fb) Accord, g o . e information and ex,planations given o us, here are no dues of sales tax,. wealth tax, service tax,. goods 

and s rvice tax, income ta,",· duty of excise,. duty of excise, value added tax, and cess which have not been deposited on 

C OIJO of ny ,i 

viii) e Company as ot surrendered or disclosed any transaction, prev·ously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax 

(ix) 

(x) 

(xi) 

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly .reporting under clause 3 (viii) of the Order 

is not applicabte to, the Company. 

(a) 

(b) 

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender. 

The Company has no been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 

government authority. 

(c) The money raised .by way of he term Joans have been applied by the Company durjng the year for the purpose for which 

it was aised. 

(d) We report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

(e) The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its 

subsidiariest associates or joint ventures~ 

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries or joint ventures. 

(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 

dur.ing the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (x) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 

(a) 

(b) 

debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3, (x) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

No material fraud. by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

During the year, no report under sub-section {12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by cost auditor/secretarial 

aud·tor -or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditor ) Rules, 2014 with the 

Central ,Government 

(c) No wh stJe-btower complaints have been received during the year by the Company. 

(xr) The Company is not a Nidhi company as per the provis.ions of the Act. Accordingly., reporting under clause 3 (xii) (a) (b and (c) 

of the Order are no applicable o the Company. • 

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compfi'ance with sections 177 and 188 of e Act where applica le and he deta'I 

have ·been disclosed ·n the . otes to the standalone financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting andards. 

(xiv) 

(xv) 

(a) The ·nte al audit of the Company is covered under the group internal audit pursuant to which an in mal audi i carried 

out every year. In ou opinio , the Company's internal udit system i commensur te with t e size a d na ure of it 

business. 

b) T e internal audit eports of the Company • ued titr e date of th audit eport for he period under audl h ve been 

cons·dered by us. 

The Company has ot ent r d into any non s transac ions ith Di ctors or per ons onnectll;\,U'lj :.lf+-k I I 

----..... 
eporting nder cJause 3 (xv} of the Order JS not applicable to the Company. 

C 
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o . e Reserv B nk of lndi fo obtaining 

T e Company cred n n- a king fin ci I / housing finance a ivitie without v lid Certffi at of 

Registra ·on CoR) from e Reserve Ban of lndi as per e Reserve B nk of rnd'ia Act, 934. Accordin ly, the reporting 

d r claus 3 {xvi) (b) oft Order is no applicable to the ompany. 
I 

{c) he Company · not a Core lnvestm n, Company (CIC) as defined in the reg • la ·ons made by the Reserve Bank of India. 

ccordingly repo ·ng nder clause 3 (xvi) (c) of the Order is not app icable to the Company. 

{d) e have been informed y the management that as at arch 3 , 2025 as per he defini ·on of Group under Core 

n estrnen Companies (Reserve Bank} Directions 2016, • here is one Core lnves ent Comp ny (ClC) which is registered 

and four C Cs h ch are no· required to be registered• with the Re erve Ban of tndia, forming part of the promoter 

group. 

(xvii) The Company h s no i curred any cas [asses in the financi,al1 year and in the immedia ely preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xviii) of the Order 

is no applicable to the Company. 

(xix} On e basis of the financial ratios (Also refer Note no.28 to the standalone financial statements), ageing and expected dates of 

realizaf on of financial ass ts and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial 

statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and manag ment plans and based on our examination of the evidence 

supporting the assumptions
1 

nothing has come to, our attention> which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists 

as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as 

and when they fall due within a year of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance 

as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
• 

report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all Hab lities falling due within a year of one year from the 

balance sh e" date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing projects requiring 

a ransfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) 

of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xx) (a) of Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b} There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on ongoing projects requiring a transfer to 

a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (6) of Sectjon 

135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xx} (b) of Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xxi) The repo ·ng under clau e 3 (xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial statements. 

Accordingfy, no comment in respect of the said paragraph has been included in his report. 

For SHAH GUPTA & CO., 

.Chartered Accountants 

Rrm Registration . o.: 109574W 

r~~.,,, ,---
Pa P Pate 

M. o. 172670 

UDIN: 25172670BMKVEf 4.926 

Place: umbai 

Date: April 29, 2025 

1 p 

• 



D AUD ORS' R ORT 

th aforesaid standalone financial statements under O use (IJ of u~section 

( he ct 

hav. udit d e int nal financial controfs over financial r porting of Piombino Steel Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2025, 

in conju c ·on i our aud~ f the standalone financ,al statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Manag ment's Responsibility for fntema Financial Controls 

The Company's management is re ponsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 

financial reporting critena established by tile Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financjal Reporting (the {/Guidance Note11
) issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants. of ndia. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 

that were operating effectively for ensuring the order.Iv and efficient conduct of its busjness, including adherence to company's pollcies, 

the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibil ty is to press an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 

standalone financial st.atements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under sub-section {10) of Section 143 of the 

Act, to the exten applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Jnternal Financial Controls and, both 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 1·ndia.. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that w comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 

financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 

controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of intert1al financial controls over financial reporting with reference 

to these standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error . . 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal 

fi ancia'I controls sy em over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Anandal Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements is a process designed 

to provide easonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for 

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures th t (1) pertain to the 

maint nance of records that, in reaso.nable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 

Company· (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial 

statements in accordance w;th generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditur s of the Company are being 

made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reaso assurance 

regarding preven ion or timely detection of unauthori ed acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets th 

effect on the standa one financia • statements. 

In erent Umltatio s of Internal Financial Controls Over Anandal Reporting with reference to these Standalo 
~ 

Beca se of the inherent limi tjons of in ernal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to th J'r.+.:I~ 

>UJi_~~men , induding the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material missta e 

fr, ud , y oc or nd not be detect d. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial control over financtat p rtin with 

s f l g 
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Particulars 

I ASSETS 

(1) Non-current assets 
(a) Investment n subsidiary 

(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 

(c) Current tax assets (net) 

Total non•current assets 

(2) Current assets 

(a) Fi.nanclal assets 

(i) Trade receivables 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 

(iii) Other financial assets 

(b) Other current assets 

Total current assets 

Total assets 

II EQUI.TY AND LIABILITIES 

:Equity 

la} Equity share capital 

(b) Other equity 

Total Equity 

• 

Liabilities 
(1) Non<urrent liabilities 

(a} Financial liabi lit ies 

(i) Borrowings 

(ii) Other financial liabilities 

Total non<urrent liabilities 

(2) Current liabilities 

(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 

(ii) Trade payables 

PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2.025 

CIN No. - U27320MH2018PLC374653 

Notes 

2 

22.,(B) 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

(a) Total outstanding due of micro and small enterprises 13 

(b) 
Total outstanding due of creditors other than micro and 
small enterprises 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabllitl1es 

Total current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Total equity and liabilities 

See accompanying notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements 

As per our attached report of even date 

For Shah Gupta & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Fl rm Registration No.: 109574W 

Parth P Patel 
Partner 
Membership No. : 172670 

UDIN: 251726708.Ml<VEF4926 
Plac : Mumbai 

Date: 29th April, 2025 

• 

14 

15 

• 

Kaustubh Kulkarni 

Chief Executive Officer 

Asat 
March 31, 2025 

8,550.00 

0.02 

19.56 

8,569 58 

13.33 

151.92 

2,005.73 

24.66 

2,195.64 

10,765.22 

5,870.28 

862.03 

6,732.31 

-

3,521.00 

18.82 

289.58 

203.51 

4,032.91 

4,032.91 

10,765.22 

h 

Rs. in crores 
As at 

March 31, 2024 

8,550.00 

0.03 

26.39 

8,576.42 

117.49 

1.19 

1,461.45 

2.5.67 

1,605.80 

10,182.22 

6,092.92 

456.03 

6,548.95 

3,256.27 

35.89 

3,292.16 

-

115.10 

134.51 

91.50 

341.11 

3,633.27 

10,182.22 

"For and n eha of the Board of Directors 

~kumar Bhair 

Director 

DIN: 08568679 

,. >-

Singh 

Dir ector 

DIN: 020 990 

• 

ushlk Shah Mohit Goyal 
Comp ny ecret ry Chief Financi I ffi er 

M. No. 91 

• 
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PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025 

CIN No. - U27320MH2018PLC374653 

Partlculars 

l. Revenue from operations 

II. Other income 

111. Total Income (1+11) 

IV. Expenses 

Purchase of stock-in-trade 

Change 1n Inventories of stock in trade 

Finance costs 

Other expenses 

Total expenses 

V. Profit before tax (111-tV) 

VI. Tax expense 
Current tax 

Deferred tax 

VII. Profit for the year (V-VI) 

VIII. Other comprehens ve income/ (loss} 

IX. Total Other comprehensive income for the year (Vrl+Vlll) 

x. Earnings per equity share of Rs.10 each 

Basic (in Rs) 

Diluted (in Rs) 

See accompanying notes formlng part of the Standalone Financial Statements 

As per our attached report of even date 
For Shah Gupta & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 109574W 

Parth P Patel 
Partner 

UP7: 

MU B .* 
Membership No.: 172670 
UDIN: 25172670BMKVEF4926 
Place: Mumbai 

~ FRN: 10 74 

~ 
Date; 29th Apri l, 2025 'llto ACtO 

• 

Notes 

16 

17 

18 

.19 

20 

22 

21 

~ 

Kaustubh Kulkarni 
Chief Executive Officer 

s 

E 

• 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

604,59 

2,285.30 

2,889.89 

603.44 

-
359.24 

4.48 

967.16 

1,922.73 

62.91 

0.01 

62.92 

1,859.81 

1,859.81 

3.05 

3.05 

,, 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

644.86 

595.12 

1,239.98 

639.53 

4.18 

332.60 

2.44 

978.75 

261.23 

66.24 

0.01 

66.2S 

194.98 

.194.98 

0.32 

0.32 

For and on betfa of the Board of Directors 

Director 
DIN: 08568679 

, 
shik stah 

Company Secretary 
M. No. FCS9114 

1/ 
mar Singh 

D rector 
DIN: 02059903 

Moh it Goyal 
Chief Financial Officer 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 

Standalone Statement of C~sh Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025 

CIN No. - U27320MH2018PLC374653 

Particulars 

A. Cash flow from operating activities 

Profit b1!fore tax 

Adjustments for : 

Interest expense 

01v1den d Income 

Interest income 

Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 

Adjustments for: 

Decrease/(1ncrease) in trade receivables 

Decrease in other assets 

(lncrease)/Oecrease ln trade payables and other liabll ties 

cash flow from operations 

Income taxes paid (net of refund rece ved) 

Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activit ies (A) 

B. cash flow from investing activities 

Dividend received 

Buyback of Equity Shares 

Interest received 

loan to a related party 

Loan repaid by a related party 

Net cash generated from investing activities (B) 

C. cash flow from financing activities 

Proceeds from non-current borrowings 

Repayment of current borrowings 

Interest paid 

Net cash generated from/ (used in) financing activities (C) 

Net increase in cash and cash equlvalents(A+B+c) 

Cash and cash equivalents - opening balances 

Cash and cash equivalents - closing balances ( refer note 5 ) 

Note: 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

1,922 73 

359.24 

(1,676.45) 

{604.56) 

0.96 

104.10 

65.58 

(175.22) 

(4.58) 

(56 08) 

(60.66) 

1,659.69 

(1,508.80) 

(0.30) 

0.30 

150.89 

395.00 

(130.27) 

(204.23) 

60.50 

150.73 

1.19 

151.92 

I. The statement of cash flows ls prepared using the "Ind rect method" set out in Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows". 

II. Reconcillat ons part of cash flows 

Particulars 
Balance as on March 31, 2024 

Loan from a related party 

Repayment of Joan to a related party 

Balance as on March 31, 2025 

See accompanying notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements 

As per our attached report of even date 

For Shah Gupta & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 109574W 

Parth P Patel 

Partner 

Membership No.· 172670 

UOIN; 25172670BMKVEF4926 

Pl C • Mumba 

D te; 29th April, 2025 

UP 

For and on behalf of the Board of Dire 

austubh Kufkaml 

::.n1w:ii~ ecut1ve Officer 

• 

Ru 

Director 

DIN . 08568679 

C S er t ry 

M No. FCS9 4 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

261.23 

332 60 

(595.12) 

(1.29) 

(80.58) 

63.54 

156.18 

137.85 

(68.78) 

69.07 

24.94 

-
-

24.94 

3,144.00 

(2,500.00) 

(736.85) 

Borrowings 

(92.85) 

1.16 

0.03 

3,256.27 

395.00 
(130.27) 

3,521.00 

Dir ctor 

DIN: 02059903 

Mohit Goy I 

h f Fin nc I ffic r 



fOf" the y~ar ended March 31, 2025 

(a} Equity share capital 

Partlc.ulars 

As at March 31, 2023 

moyernents during the year 

As at March 31, 2024 

eduction in sha re apl~I due to buyback of Shares 

As at March 31, 2025 

(b) Olh.er equity 

Partkular 

Nature 

baJanct' a,s a t April 1, 2023 

Profit for the year 

Tr.ansfet to debenture redemption reserve 

dosing b~l;ince as at March 31, 2024 

Profit for the year 

T~nsfer to Capital Redemption reserve (CRR) (U/s 69 of the,, Companies Act, 2013) 

Premium on buy back of equity shares 

Oosing balance a_s at March 31, 2025 

See accompanying notes fo rming part of the Standalone Flnc1ncial Statements 

As per our attached report of even d 
or Shah Gupta & Co. 
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Standalone Stat ement of changes In equity for the year f nded M arch 31, 2025 

ON No • U27320MH2018PLC374653 
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441.56 
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I 
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PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

General Information 

Piombino Steel Limited ("the Company11
) is incorporated n India on September 21, 2018 under the Compan,es Act, 2013 with 

its registered office locat d at 6th Floor, Grande Palladium, 175, CST Road, Kolivery Village, MMRDA Area, Kalina, San acruz 

East, Mumbai 400098. 

The Company s engaged n the busin .ss of buying, selling and otherw se trading or dealing In steel and its allied products, iron 
ore, coal, coke, br ck~earth, ores, m nerals and mineral substances, alloys and metal scrap of all kinds. 

lA. Recent accounting pronouncements: 

Ministry of Corporate Affa rs ("MCA") not fies new st ndards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian 
Accoun in Standards) Rules as issued from t im to tIm . For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS - 117 
lnsuranc Contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116 - Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, appl cabre w.e.f. April 1, 
2024. The Company has reviewed then w pronouncem nts and based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have any 

ignific nt impact n its financial st t m nts. 

1B. Material accounting polices 

I. Statement of compUance: 

Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting pr nc1ples generally accepted in India 
including Indian Account ng Standards (Ind AS) prescr bed under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to t ime) and presentation and disclosures 
requ rement of D vision If of revised Schedule Ill of the Companies Act 2013, (Ind AS Compliant Schedule Ill), as applicable to 
standalone financial st tement. 

Accordingly, the Company has prepared these Standalone Financial Statements which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 
2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended as 
on that date, and accounting policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as "Standalone Financial 
Statements" or "financial statements") . 

The Standalone Financial Statements have been approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on April 29, 2025. 

II. Basis of preparation and presentation: 

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on the histor cal cost basis except for certain financ al instruments 
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that pr ce is d rectly observable or est mated using another valuation 
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a llab lity, the Company takes n account the characteristics of the asset or 
liab f ty if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pr cing the asset or liability at the measurement 
date. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes 1n account the characteristics of the asset or liability if 
market participants woufd take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. F r 
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes n these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for sh r -
based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are w thin the scope of Ind AS 116, 
far value of plan assets within scope the of Ind AS 19 and measurements that have some similarities to fa r value but are not fair 
value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36. 

In addit on, for financial reporting purposes, fa,r value measurements are categorized into Level 1,2, or 3 based on the degree 
to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the sign ficance of the input to the fair v tu 
measurements nits entirety, which are descr bed as follows: 

• Lev 11 nputs are quoted pr ces (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilit1es that the entity can access 
at the measurement date; 

• 

• 

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices ncfuded within level 1, th tare observable for the asset or liability 
either directly or ndirectly; and 

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liab llty, 

The Standalone F nancial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees {'INR') in crore rounded off to two decimal plac s as 
permitted by Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 except when otherwise stated. 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Current and non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current cl ssification. 

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria : 

• it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal operat ng cycle. it is held 
primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

• it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the report ng dat ; or 

• it s cash or cash equ ivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liabihty for at least 12 months 
after the reporting date. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liabil ity is classifi d as current when 1t satisfies any of the following criteria: 

• tis exp cted to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycl ; 

• it is held primar ly for th purpose of b Ing traded; 

• it is due to be settled within 12 months after the r porting dat ; or the Company does not have an unconditional right to 
def r settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the report ng date Terms of a liabil ty that could, at the option 
of the count rparty, result 1n its settl ment by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classifrcat1on. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisit on of assets for processing and their rea lisation in cash and cash equivalents 

Deferred tax assets and liabilit es are classified as non-current only. 

111. Revenue recognition 

Sale of Goods 

The Company recognizes revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred to the customer at an amount 
that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 

Revenue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions, incent ves, or 
other similar items in a contract when they are highly probable to be provided. The amount of revenue excludes any amount 
collected on behalf of th ird parties. 

The Company recognises revenue generally at the point in time when the products are delivered to customer or when t is 
delivered to a carrier for export sale, which is when the control over product is transferred to the customer. In contracts where 
freight is arranged by the Company and recovered from the customers, the same is treated as a separate performance obligation 
and revenue ls re.cognized when such freight services are rendered. 

Interest income 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal 
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carry ng amount on initial recognition. 

Dividend income 

Div dend income from nvestments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been established 
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefi ts will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured 
reliably). 

IV. Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are asset th t 
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or s le, ar added to the cost of tho e 
assets, until such t ime as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 

All other borrow ng costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss n the year in wh ch they r incurred . 

• 

• 
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PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Notes to the Standalone Financia l Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

V. Taxes: 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax 

Current tax 

Curr nt tax s th amount of expected tax p yable based on th taxable profit for the ye r as determ ned in accordance with 

the applicabl tax rates and th prov,s ons of the Income T x Act, 1961. 

Def erred tax 

Deferred tax 1s recogn ed on temporary diffe ences betw en the c ryin amounts of a sets and liabilities in the Standalone 
Financial Statements and the corr spond1ng tax b s s us d n th computation of taxable pro t. Deferred tax l1ab1l1t 1es are 
recognised for all tax ble tempor ry d1f~ rences. Deferred tax ass tsar recognised for all deductible temporary differences to 
the extent th tit is prob ble that t bl pro ,ts w II be va I bl aga n t which those deductible temporary differences can be 
ut I sed. Such deferred tax ss ts and liab lities re not recogn sed if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition 
(other than n a bus ness combination) of as ets nd I ablliti s in a transact on that affects neither the taxable profit nor the 
account ng pro 1t In add t1on, def red t x Ii bilities are not recognised f the temporary difference arises from the initial 

recognition of ood ill. 

The carrying amount of d ferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of ea h reporting year and reduced to the extent that ,t ,s no 
longer probabl that suffic ent taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that 

future taxable profits will allow th deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year in which the liability is 
settled or the asset rea lised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of 

the reporting year. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax I abilit es are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

Current and deferred tax for the year 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are relating to items that are recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equityl in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other 
comprehensive income or directly ,n equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for 
a business combination, the tax effect s included in the accounting for the business combination. 

Deferred tax assets and llab1lities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the 
relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and I abilit es on a net basis. 

Vf. Inventories 

Inventor es are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Cost of raw materials nclude cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. ~ost of finished goods and work in progress include cost of d rect materia ls and labor and a proportion of 
manufactunng overheads based on the normal ope rat ng capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost of traded goods include 
purchase cost and inward freight. 

Costs of inventories are determined on we ghted average basis. Net realisable value represents th estimated selling price for 
nventories less all estimated costs of complet on and costs necessary to make the sale. 

VII. Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (lega l or constructive) as a res It f t . , u o pas events, and ,t 1s 
probable that an outflow of resourcesl that can be rel ably estimated, w II be requ red to settle such an obligation. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the cons1derat1on required to ttl th b • 
b I h d 

. . . e e present o ligation at the 
a ance s eet ate, taking into account the r sks and uncerta1nt1es surrounding the obligat· Wh • . . 

h h fl • ,on. en a prov1s1on 1s me sured 
using t e cas ow estimated to settle th present obligation, its carry ng amount is th resent 1 
(when the eff ct of the time value of money is material). P v ue of those cash flow 

oUPT,4 • 

• 

* 

• 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to ettle a provision are expected to be recovered from a th1rd party, a 
receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement wiH be rece ved and the amount of the receivable 
c n be measured reliably. 

VIII. Investment in subsidiary: 

Investment In subs d ary is shown at cost n accordance with option available in Ind AS 27, 'Separate Financial Statements'. 
Where the carrying amount of an investment n greater than ts estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immed ately 
to its recoverable amount and the difference 1s transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. On disposal of investment, the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount Is charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and 
Loss 

IX. Financial instruments: 

Financial assets and financial liab1llt1es are recognised when an ent ty becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
nstrument. 

Financial assets and financial liab1I t es are initially measured at far value. Transact on costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisit on or issue of financial assets and financial lab r ties (other than financial assets and financial liab1ht1es a fa,r value 
through Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fa r value of the financial assets or financial 
liabilities, as appropr ate, on init ial recogn tion. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or 
frnanc al liabil t es at fa ir value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. 

financial assets 

a) Recognition and initial measurement 

A financial asset s Initially recognised at fair value and for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to its acquisition or issue. Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, which is the date on which 
the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

b) Classification of financial assets 

F1nanc1al assets are classified, at initial recognition and subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair v lue through other 
comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit and loss. A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets 
both of the following cond t ions and Is not designated at FVTPL: 

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and 

• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of pr ncipal 
and interest on the princ paJ amount outstanding. 

A debt instrument Is class fled as FVTOCI only If It meets both of the following condit ons and s not recognised at FVTPL; 

• The asset s held within a bus ne.ss model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractua l cash flows and 
sefl1ng financial assets; and 

• The contractual terms of the financial asset giver se on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paym nts of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

All equity nvestments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and 
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business comb nat on to which Ind AS 103 appl es are cl ssified s t 
FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehens v 
income subsequent changes in the fair vaJue. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The 
class1ficatlon is made on initial recognition nd s irrevocable. 

Equi y nstruments included with n the FVTPL c tegory are measured at fair value with all chang s recognised n the Statem nt 
of Pro ,t and Loss 

All other fin ncial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL. 

In addition, on In tial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherw se m t th 
requirements to be measured at amort sed cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL If doing so eliminate or gnific ntly due nd 

counting mism tch that wou d otherw s rise . 

• 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

F1nanc al assets at FVTPL are measured at fa r value at the end of each reporting year, w th any gains and losses aris,ng on 
remeasurement recogn zed in statement of profit and loss. The net ga n or loss recognized in statement of profit and loss 
incorporat s any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and Is included in the 'other income' line Item. Dividend on 
financial assets at FVTPL is recognized when: 

• The Company's right to rec 1ve the div dends s est bl shed; 
• ft is probable that the econom c benefits associated with the dividends will flow to the entity, 
• The dividend does not r present a recov ry of part of cost of th investment and the amount of div dend can be 

measured reliably. 

c) Derecognltion of financial assets 

The Company derecogn1ses a inane al asset when th contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it 
transfers the financ al asset and substantially all the r sks and rewards of ownersh p of the asset to another party. 

d) Effective interest method 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocat ing interest 
income over the relevant year The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
{includ ng all fees and po nts paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other 
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt nstrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter year, to the net 
carrying amount on initial recognit on. 

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those flnanciaJ assets classified as at FVTPL. 
Interest income is recognized in statement of profit and loss and is included in the 'Other income' line item. 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

a) Classification as debt or equity 

Debt and equity instruments issued by a company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the 
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

b) Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. 
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

Repurchase of the Company's own equity nstruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised 
in Statement of Profit and loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equ ty instruments. 

c) Financial liabilities 

Financial liabiflt es are classified as either financial liabil it ies 'at FVTPL' or 'other financ al I ab lities'. at FVTPL 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL: 

F nancial liabil ties are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or tis designated as at FVTPL. 

A financial liability s classified as held for trading f: 

• ft has been ncurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or 
• on initial recognition it is part of a portfol io of identified financ al instruments that the Company manages together and has 

a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking; or 
• t s a derivative that s not des gnated and effect ve as a hedging instrument. 

A financial liability other than a financi I liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial r cogn ion if: 

• such designation elim nates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition nconsistency th t would oth rwi r e; 
• th financ al llab lity forms part of a group of financial assets or finan cial I bilit e or both, which m n g d nd it 

p rform nee is ev luated on a fair v lue basis, in accordance with the Comp ny's docum nt d risk m n g m nt o 
inv stment strat gy, and information about the grouping is provld d internally on th t bas ; or 

• it forms p r of contract conta ning one or more embedd d der v tlv s, and Ind AS 109 p rm t the n ir mbi d c ntr ct 
o b I n ted t FVTPL In ccordanc with Ind AS 109, 

• 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Financia l habilitle at FVTPL are stated at fair value with any gains or losses aris ng on remeasurement recogn sed in Statement 
of Profit nd Loss. The net gain or loss recogn sed in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporate any interest paid on the financial 
liability and is included In the Statement of Profit and Loss, For Li bil,ties designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable 
to change n own cred,t risk are reco n,zed in OCI. 

The Company derecognises financial liabilit1 s when, and only when, the Company's obi gations are discha_rged, ~ancelled or 
they expire. The differenc between the carrying amount of th financial I ability derecogn1sed and th cons,derat1on paid and 
payable 1s r cognised in the St tement of Profit and Loss. 

Derecognition of financial liabilities 

The Company derecognises 1nancial Ii biliti s when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or 
have xpired. An e ch n e between w th a lender of debt instruments with substant ally different terms is accounted for as an 
xt1nguishm nt of the original financi I liability and th recognition of a new financial liability. Sim larly, a substantial 

mod1ficat1on of the t rms of an xist·ng financial I ab ltty (whether or not attributable to the financ al difficulty of the debtor) is 
accounted for s an extinguishmen of the or gin al financ al liability and the recognition of a new financial lrab,lity. The difference 
between the carrying mount of the financial habil ty derecogn1sed and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the 
Statem nt of Profit and Loss. 

X. Segment reporting: 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal report ng provided to the chief operating decision 
maker. The Board of d rectors of the Company has been dent1fied as the Chief Operating Decision Maker wh ch reviews and 
assesses the financial performance and makes the strategic dee sons. 

XI. Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet com pr se cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity 
of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant r sk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent consists of cash and short-term deposits, as defined 
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are cons dered an integral part of the Company's cash management. 

XII. Earnings per share: 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax by the we ghted average number of equity shares 
outstanding dur ng the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for treasury 
shares, bonus ssue, bonus element in a r ghts issue to existing shareholders, share spilt and reverse share split (consolidation 
of shares}. 

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adJusted for dividend, interest and other 
charges to expense or Income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dllut ve potential equity shares, by the weighted 
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity 
shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potent al equity shares ncluding the treasury shares held 
by the Company to satisfy the exercise of the share options by the employees. 

XIII. Business Combination 

Business comb,nat ons involving entities or businesses under common control shall be accounted for using the pooling of interest 
method. 

lC. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements: 

In t_he course of applying the polices outlined 1n all notes under section 1 above, the Company is requ red to mak judgement , 
st1mates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and llab lities that are not readily pparent from other source . 

The est mates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other f ctors th t ar considered to b 
relevant. Actual results may d ffer from these estimates. 

The est,mat sand underlying assumptions are review d on an ongoing ba s. Revisions to accounting stimat r r 
O 

niz 
n th year n which the est mate s revised f th r v sion affect only th t y ar, or in th ye r of th r v ion n futur y if 
th r vis on ffects curr nt and futur ye r. 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty: 

lmpa rment of investments n subsidiary 

Determin ng whether the investments 1n subsid arle are impaired requires an estimate in t he value in use of investments. In 
considering the value 1n use1 the Directors h ve an c1pated the discount r tes and o her f ctors of the underlying businesses / 
operations of the inve tee compan,es. Any subs qu nt ch nges to the cash flows du to chang s In the above mentioned factors 
could impact the carrying valu of investments. 

Ta es 

Deferred tax ssets are recognized for unus d t x loss s to the exten th t It is prob ble that taxable profit w,11 be available 
against which the loss scan be ut liz d. S gnific nt m nag m nt judg ment 1s r quired to determine the mount of deferred tax 
assets that can be reco n sed, b s d upon the Irk fy timing nd th I vef of future tax ble profits og ther with future tax planning 
strategi s. 

UPt 

* MU * 
C") : 1 ~ 

'to ACt 

• 



Piombino Steel llmlted 

Notes forming p rt of the Standalone flnancl I sta e1nents 

2. Investment in Subsld ary 

Particulars 

Unquoted 

Investment at co.st 

(a) lnve.stm nt In equlty lnstr-uments 

Subsidiary 

Bhushan Power Steel mited (Face v lu of Rs. 10 each) 

(b) Investment In compulsory convert1ble deb ntures (CCD ) 
Unquoted 

Subsidiary 

Bhushan Power S e I l.Jm ed (F ce lue o Rs. 10 e ch) 

Total Investment 

Less: Aggrega e an1oun t of provison for mpa,rment in value of 1nvestmen 
Total 

Aggregate carrying value 

Notes 

Rs. In crores 

As t March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

No. of sh res Amount No of sh res Amount 

10.00,00,000 00.00 10,00,00,000 10000 

8,45,00,00,000 8,450.00 8,45,00,00,000 8,450 00 

8,55,00,00,000 8,550.00 8,55,00,00,000 8,550.00 

8,550.00 8,550.00 

8,550.00 8,550.00 

a) The CCOs sha ll h ve a tl!rm o S ( ve) years commenctn from the d te on which th CCDs re issued and llotted i e. rch 25, 2021. The CCOs holders a e en , ed o rl!cetve coupon o a an ual b s,s a 

the ra e of 6% r annum from t date of 1ssu and allot en of CCDs The CCOs coupon sh II be payable on end of quarter from commencement of each subsequent quar er 1n which th lnteres bec:a e due 
Each CCD Is convert, le a any time dun g thf! CCO term in o one equi ty shar s of face va lue of Rs 10.The holder of CCOs subJec to their d scretion shall h ve e righ to direct th company to conve any or all 
he CCOs at any lm~ during he CCO erm. 

b) The Company's 1nvestmen 1n CCO's of Bhushan Power Steel Umtted amoun In o Rs.8,4S0 crores ~vere classi ied as fa r v lue hrough proftt and loss 1n he earlte y a s In terms of para 2 ( ) of Ind ASs 
109, tnv s men as 'interest n subsidiaries' a scoped out from measurement pnnc pies of Ind AS 109. Accordingly, thts investml!nt b sis lnd AS 109 nd he terms s ould be rea ed s pa of 'interests In 
subsidiaries' and ca rried a cost less ,mp 1rmen other than Ind AS 109. During the previous ye r ended March 31, 2023, based on technical note from expe obtained by the Compa y, 1 has reclassi ed the said 
investments from I vestment 1n Subs, ,ary FVTPL to Investment 1n Subsidiary at Cost 

c) 8,32, 79,940 shares (as a 31 arc 202 , Nil shares) are pledged to the Bhushan Power & Steel Um1ted's banker (State B nk of lnd1 ) to secure refin ncing o term lo n facility. (re er no 23) 

3. Current ta,c asse (Net) 

Particulars 

Tax deducted t source (net of provision for x) 

4. Trade receivables 

Particulars 

Trade receivables consider d good - Secured 

Trade rece1vabl s considered good - Unsecured 

P rticulars 

Undisputed tr d receivables - considered good 

Particulars 

Undisputed tr de recetv hies - considered good 

Not yet due 
Less than 6 

months 
0,18 -

Not yet due 
Less than 6 

months 

65.69 41 76 

Asat 
March 31, 2025 

19.56 

19.56 

As t 
M rch 3l, 2025 

13.33 

13.33 

Rs in crores 

Asat 
March 31, 2024 

26.39 

26.39 

Rs. In crores 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

117.49 

117.49 

Outstanding for followlng periods from due date of p yment as at March 31, 2025 

6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total 

13 07 0.08 - 13.33 

Outstanding for following periods from due d t of payment as at 31 March 202 

6 months •l year 1-2 years 2-3 ye rs Tot I 

4.13 5.90 - 117.49 
' Th er d t period on safes of goods ranges from 7 to 120 days with or w thout security. Trade receivables does not Include any receivables from dlr ctors and of ,cers of th Comp ny. 

D tails of rade rece vables from related p rtles has been described in no e 23 Credit risk management regarding trad r ce vables has been described in no e 25.4. 

S. Cash and cash equivalents 

P rticul rs 

B lances with banks 

In current ccounts 

In term d posit accounts w th maturity less th n 3 months at 1ncept1on 

As at 
M rch 31, 2025 

0.9 
151 0 

151.92 

~- in crores 

As t 

1 

1.19 



Partlcul rs 

Int rest r ce vable due on compulsory con rtibl debent\Jres {CCDs) 
• from related party 

Security deposit 

lnt!r~st rec~1vable on ft ed deposit 

Others 

Less Allow nee for doubtful r c 1vable 

Particulars 

B lance with government uthoriti~ 

Less. Allowance for doubt ul rece vables 

8. Share capital 

Partlcul rs 

(a) Authorised: 

Equity sh res of Rs. 10 ach o the par v lue 

Preference sha res o Rs. 10 each of hep r alue 

(b) Issued and subscr bed 

Outstanding at the be inning of the period/ yea r, fully p Id up 

Less: Buy bac of Eq ity shart!S 

Outstandln at the end of the period/ye r, fully paid up 

{c) Rights, pre~renc.t!.S and restrtctlon_s attach~d to equity sh res 

As t M rch 3L 2025 

No. of sh res Amoun 

12.00,00,00,000 

s,00,00,00,000 

6, 10,00,00,000 

(22,26,36,000) 
5 87,73,64,000 

12,000,00 

5,000 00 

6,092 92 

(221 64) 

As at 

March 3L, 2025 

As t 

2,005 13 

0.27 

0 13 

20 

2,005.73 

M rch 31, 2025 

24.66 

24.66 

Rs. n croTes 

As t 
M rch 31. 2024 

1,461 7 

0 27 

00 

1,461.45 

Rs. in crores 

As at 

M rch 31. 202 

25 67 

25.67 

Rs. in crores 

A5 at March 31, 2024 

No. of sh res 

2,00,00,00,000 

5,00,00,00,000 

6, 10,00,00,000 

6,10,00,00,000 

Amount 

12,000 00 

5,000.00 

6,092.92 

6,092-92 

The Company h s srngle class of equity shares. E ch holder of equ1 y sha re.s sent tied fo r one ote per share held. In the event of l1qu1dat on, the equ1 y shareholders are eligible o rece, e the rema1n1ng assets of 
he Company er distribution o all pre erential mou t. in p oport on to theirs areholdlng. 

(d) Details of sh reholders hold n& more than S" shares In the Company are set out below; 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

JSW Steel Limited, e Hold] g Company 

JSW Shipp ng & logist cs Pn e lJmi ed 

(e) Change In Promoter's shareholding as on March 31, 2025: 

No. of Share_s 

4,85,73,64,000 

1,02,00,00,000 

As at March 31, 2025 

% of Shares 

82.65% 

17.35~ 

No. of Shares 

5,08,00,00,000 

1,02, ,00,000 

% of Shares 

As at March 31, 2024 
% change during the year Promoter Name 

No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares " of total shares 
JSW Steel l.J mite d, t he Holding Compa ny 4,85,73~64,000 82 .65% 4,85, 73,64,000 83,28% (0 63%) 
JSW Shipping & log1st1cs Pr1vate Um ted 1,02,00,00,000 17.35% 1,02,00,00,ooo 16.72% 0.00% 

9. Other equity Rs. in crores 

P1rtlcul rs A5 t As t 

M arch 31, 2025 M rch 31, 2024 
Retained earnings 

Capital Redemption R serve (CRR) 

Ca pital reserve 

Money received against sha re wa rrants 

(a} Reta ned earnings 

• 

Retained earnings are the profits/{losses) that the Company has earned t II date It is a free res rve available to the Company. 

(b) Ciplt I reserve 

Reserve 1s ere ted prima rily on merger as per st tutory requ1rem nt. Th is res rv 1s utilised n accordance wi th the sp cific prov1s1on of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(c) Money received against share warrants 

624-92 

222.64 

047 

14.00 

44156 

0.47 

14 00 

456.03 

The Comp ny has issued 3,500,000,000 share warrants e ch o JSW Steel and JSW Shipping respect ively 1th subscription price of .Rs O 02 per w rrant. Th exercise period is ve years from the days of issue of 
the warrants ind thew rran holders at t heir dIscr 10n shall be en I led to purchase one quity shar of the face value of Rs. 10 e ch t n ex rcise pr ce of Rs 10 

(d) Capital Red mptlon R serv {CRR) 

Th Comp ny has er at d Capital Redemption Reserve (C.RR) pursuan to th provLstons of the Companies Act 2013, Section 69, upon the buyback of equity shares during t ,e fin nc,al ye r. 

Th amount ra nsferred to th Ca p1t I Redemp lon Reserve from re ained earn ngs 1s Rs 222.63 Crores. This reserv 1s ma int ned to ensure the Int gr ty of th Company's cap,t I b se and is no 
distr but,on as dividends. 

The capital Redemptlon Reserv is class fied under Reserves & Surplus In the nanc1al sta tements and 1s presented as part of the Shareholders• Equity I ca be utilized only in accord nee w th the pro ,sions f h 
Comp nl s Act nd other appl cabl regulations 



Partlcul rs 

on-current borrowings (Unsecured) 

(I} Term Jo n 

From related party 

As t 

March 31, 2025 

Rs. in crore_s 

• 3,256.27 

3,256.27 

Th Compa y has outstanding borrowings son March 31, 2025 Rs. ii (M rch 31, 2024 . Rs. ,00,00,000) from JSW Steel Um, d a the in er s rate of 10.75% which was d e for repaymen on March 3 , 202 

however, the sa id loan has been ended by another two yt!. rs through n am ndmen to a origin I loan agre ment a the r v sed ,ntertst rate o 10 65% compounded annualfy and will now be due or 

repayment on March 31
1 

2026. Accordingly, the same has been class\ 1ed s non-curren only. Th principal and ccrued rn rest thereon shall be unsecured obl1g tions of the Company, a drank pan passu w1 h 

any other unsecured and unsubordinated credi ors of the Comp ny 

The Company has outstanding borrow ngs as on Ma rch 31, 2025 Rs. Nil (March 31, 2024 : Rs. 52,00,00,000) from JSW St el Um,ted t the nteres rate of 11 25% Y.1h1ch w s due for r payment on Marc 31, 2024 

however, th sa d loan has been extended by nother wo yea rs through an mendment to origin I lo n agreemen th revrsed 1n erest rate o 10 65% compounded nnu lly nd will now be du for 

repayment on March 31, 2026. Accordingly the sam h s b en cl ssi 1ed as non-current only The princlp I nd c:crued in erest hereon sh II be unsecured obhga ions of Company, and r nk pa i P ssu with 

any other un.secured nd unsubordlnated er d, ors of he Company. 

The Company has outstanding borrowings son M rch 31, 2025 Rs. Nil (M rch 31, 2024 . Rs 56,27,1 2,500) from JSW S IL m,ted a th Interest rate of 11 25% which was due for rep ymen on March 31, 2024 

however, the s. d loan has been e tended by another two ye rs through n mendment o a orlg]nal lo n reemen t h revrsed n eres r te of 10.65% compounded annually and will now be due for 
repaymen on March 31, 2026, accordingly th sam has been cl ss fled s non-current only. Th principal and accru d nt rest thereon sh II be unsecured obligations of the Co pany, and rank pari passu w ith 

any other unsecur d and unsybordtna ed creditors of the Comp ny 

The Com pany has ou standing borrow ngs as on M rch 31, 2025 Rs 378,00,00,000 (M rch 31, 2024 . 378,00,00.000) from JSW S eel mted beating an tnterest rate of 10.600/4 compounded nnua fly nd ts 

repayable after two years from th date of respective disbursement d te (i e June 301 2025) Hence, r class fe as current 

The Company has outstanding borrowin_gs son March 31, 20 S Rs 2766,00,00,000 (March 31, 2024 : Rs, 2766,00,00,000) Rs from JSW Steel LJmited bearing an ,n erest rate of 10 65% compou ded annually and 

Is repay ble a er o year from he d te of respect ive disbursement d e (l .e rch 20, 2026). Hence, reel ss fed s current 

11. Other non-curr nt financl 11 abllltl s Rs.. in crores 

Particulars 

lnteres accrued but no due on borro ings 

12. Borrowings 

Particulars 

Current borrowin s 
Loan from rel • ed party 

The Company has o ts anding borrowings son March 31, 2025 Rs 378,00,00,000 ( arch 31, 202 : 378,00,00,000) from JSW Steel LJmted beanng an 1nteres 
repayable after two y ars from the da e of respective disbursement date (i.e Ju e 30, 2025) 

As t 
March 31, 2025 

Asat 
March 31, 2025 

3,521.00 

3 521 .. 00 

Asat 
March 31, 2024 

35.89 

35.89 

Rs. in crores 

Asat 
March 31, 2024 

rat of 10 60% compounded annually and 1s 

The Company has outstanding borrowings as on March 31, 2025 Rs. 2766,00,00,000 (March 31, 202 : Rs . 2766,00,00,000) Rs. rom JSW Steel Lim, ed bearing an Inter~t ra of 10.65% compound d annually and 
is r payable after o years rom the date of respective disbursement date (1 .e March 20, 2026) 

The Company has outs anding borrowings as on March 31, 2025 Rs. 79,00,00,000 (March 31, 2024 NIL) from JSW Steel L mited bearing an nterest rate of 10.65% compounded annually and is repayable ft r 
two years from he date of respect· e disbursement date (i.e March 20, 2026) 

The Company has outs nding borrowings as on March 31, 2025 Rs. 298,00,00,000 (March 31, 2024 . Nil.) from JSW Utk.al St el Limited bearing an intere rate of 1LOO% compound d annually and is repayable 
after one year years from the da e of respe.ct ve disbursement date (Le March 27, 2026) 

13. Trade payables 

Particulars 

(a) Total outstanding, dues of micro a d small enterprises 

Olsclosure pertaining to micro, small and medium enterprises (as per information avaUable with the Company) 

Description 

Principal amount due outstanding as at end of year 

Principal amount overdue more than 45 days 

Interest due on above and unpaid as a nd of year 

Int rest pa Id to the supplier 

Payments mad to the suppl er beyond th appoin ed day dunng th 
year 

Interest due and payab[e for the year of delay 

In erest accru d and r marn,ng unpaid as at end of year 

Amount of further inter st rema1n1ng due nd paya ble rn succeeding 
year 

(b) Total outstanding, dues of creditors other than micro nd sm II nterpnses 

Asat 
March 31, 2025 

Asat 

March 31, 2025 

• 

18.82 

18.82 

Rs. ·n crores 

As at 
March 31, 202 

As at 

March 31, 202 

-

115 0 

115.10 



MS E 

Ot ers 

Ageing as at March 31, 2024 

MS ME 
Others 

Particu lars 

Partlcul rs 

Tr de Payables are normally settled within 180 days. 

Trade pay-ables to rela ed partres h s been d1sclo-sed ,n not 23 

14. 0th r current flnanclal liabll ties 

Partlculars 

Interest accrued but no due on borrowings 

15. Other current liabllltJes 

Particulars 

Advance from cus om r 

Statutory h b1I t es 

16. Revenue from operations 

Particulars 

Sale of traded goods 

Ind AS 11S (Revenue from contracts with customers) 

Unbilled 

0 .07 

Unbilled 

-
0.10 

L ss than 1 ye r 1·2 ve rs 2·3 ye rs 

18 75 

Outs ndlng for following periods from du date of payment 

Less than 1 year 1·2 years 

- -
113.99 101 

2-3 years 

-
-

As at 
M rch 31, 2025 

289 58 

289.58 

As at 
March 31, 2025 

20351 

203.51 

for the ye r ended 
March 31, 2025 

6 .59 

604S9 

Tot I 

18.82 

Total 

• 

115.10 

Rs. In crores 

Asat 

March 31, 2024 

134.51 

134.51 

Rs. in crores 

As t 
March 31, 2024 

12 47 
79 03 

91.50 

Rs. in crores 

For the ye r ended 
March 31, 2024 

.86 

644.86 

The Company recognises revenue en control over the promised goods or serv ces is t ransferred to the customer at an amount hat reflects the consrderation to wh,ch the Co pany e pects o be entrtled In 
change for those oods or servic s. 

The Company has assessed and de ermined the following ca egones for disaggregation of revenue n addit on to that prov ded under segment disclosure : 

Particulars 

Revenue from contracts with customer- sale of products 
Trading of steel products 

Total revenue from operations 

India 

Outside India 

Total revenue from operat ons 

Timing of revenue recogn tion 

A a point in time 

Total revenue from operations 

Contract bal nces 

Particulars 

Tr de receivables (r fer note 4) 

Contrac U billtles 

Advance from custom rs (refer note 31) 

Credit period on sa le of goods ranges from 7 to 120 days with or without secunty. 

17, 0th r lncom 

Particulars 

Interest Income earned - compulsory convertible deb ntures (CCDs} 

In eres Income earned on fin ncl I ssets d s1gnat d s amortised cos 

Ban D post 

DIvl end lncom 
0 h r m1sc~II neous incom 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

604.59 

604.59 

604 59 

604.59 

604,59 

604.59 

As at 
March 31, 2025 

13 33 

For they r nd d 
March 31, 2025 

6 .41 

015 
1,676 5 

4 29 

2,285.30 

Rs. in crores 

for the year ended 
M rch 31, 2024 

644.86 

644.86 

644.86 

644.86 

644.86 

644.86 

Rs. in cror s 

Asat 
March 31, 2024 

117,49 

12 7 

For th y r ended 
March 31, 2024 

57019 

2 88 



18, Purchase of stock-in-trade 

Partlcu la rs 

Purchase of traded goods 

19. Finance costs 

Particulars 

Premium on redempt on of non-convertlbf deben ures 

Interest on borrowings 

Unwinding of interest on financ, I hab1li les carrl d .t amortised cost 

20. Other expenses 

Particulars 

legal nd profess1ona I ees 

CSR expenditure (ref r note 20.b) 

Miscellaneous expenses 

a) Remuneration to auditors Included In legal nd profession I Fees 

Statutory audit fees (1nclud,ng nm ted r views) 
For certi 1c on and o her services 

b) Corporate social responsfbill y (CSR) 

For the ye r ended 

March 31, 2025 

603.44 

603.44 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

359 24 

359.24 

For the ye r ended 

M rch 31, 2025 

0.74 

3 71 

0.03 

4.48 

0.10 

Rs. In crores 

For the vear ended 

March 31, 2024 

639.53 

639.53 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

260.79 

53.17 
8, 

332.60 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

0.40 

1.94 

o. 0 

2.44 

0 14 

The company has ncurred an amoun of Rs 3 71 crores to ards CSR s per section 135 of the Companies act 2013 and s ncfud din the other expenses " • a , 

Particular 

(a) Gross amount required ob spent by the Company during the period 
(b) Amount spe on 

(1) Construction/ acquisition of assets 

{TI) On pu poses other than (i) above (for CSR pro1ects) 

(c) Deta ils of related party transactions 

(d) Nature of CSR act,vitJes 

21 Earnings per share 

Particulars 

Profit a ributabl to equity shareholders (Rs. 1n crores) (A) 

Weighted average number of equrty shares for basic EPS (8) 

Weighted average number of equity shares for dllu ed EPS (C) 
Earn ngs per share 

Basic EPS (Amount 1n Rs.) (A/B) 

Diluted EPS (Amount 1n Rs.) (A/BJ 

22. Income T x 

A. Income Tax exp~nse 

Partjculars 

Curren t :a )( 

0 f rred tax 
Total ta)( expense 

For the period ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

In- Cash 
Yet to be paid in 

In- Cash Yet to be paid Jn cash 
cash 

3.71 - 194 -

3.71 - 1~94 -
Amount pa,d to JSW Foundation, a related pa t.y in relatJon to CSR e.xpend1ture(refer no e 23) 

1. Public hea lth 1nfrasttucture, capacity building & support programs 
2. Project management cost 

for the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

1,859.81 
6,09,39,00,384 
6,09,39,00,384 

3.05 
3.05 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

62 91 

0.01 
62.92 

Rs. n crores 

For the year end d 

March 31, 2024 

19 .98 
6,10, ,00,000 

6,10,00,00,000 

0.32 

0.32 

Rs. lo crare:s 

For the year nd d 

March 31, 2024 

66 2 

0.01 
66.25 

A reconc1hat on of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit before tax at the statutorv lncom ta rate to recogn sed lncom tax expense for the p riod indicated r s follows 

P rt cul rs 

Eff ctlve tax rate r conclli tlon 

Pro I before tax 

0 1\'1d nd 1ncome 

CSR KP nd1tu 
0 f rred t 

- ---= - ---- -- - -- -

nse at statutory 

not d ductlbf In det rminlng t 

For th year nded 

M rch 31, 2025 

1,9U 73 

25 17°1' 

83.90 

( 219 

1 

Rs. in CTOI S 

For they rend d 

M r h 31, 02 

261 
5.17" 

.7S 

-
0 0 
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25. F Irv lue h erarchy of fln nclal instruments 
The c rry,ng amoun s of trade receivables, rade payables, cash and cash equiv lents, other financial assets and other f,n nci I Ii bth Ies (o her h n ose spec, 1c lly d,sclos d) re co s d ed to be the s me s 
heir fair values, due to their short-term n ture. A s,gm 1cant part of he financia l ssets Is class, 1ed as Level 2 The fa ir value of th se ss ts is mark d to an ac 1ve marke or base d o obs rv ble m r et d a. The 

1nancial assets carried at fa ir value by he Company are mainly investments tn d bt securit ies, accordingly, any material volat ilrty Is not expected. 

Details of financial assets/liabllltles measured at amortised cost but fair value disclosed in category-w se 

Particul rs 

Long term borrowings (lncludl n current maturities) 

Carrying value 

Fa ir valu 

25,1 M rket risk m n gement 

Level and v luatlon techn ques 

Level 2, estima d by discounting exp cted 

future c sh flows using a discount r te 

equivalent to he rlsk-free ra e of re urn 

dJusted for cred1 spr d consider d by 

lenders for n truments of similar m tun s. 

As at 

March 31, 2025 

3,52 .00 

3,521.00 

Rs. in crores 

As t 
March 31, 202 

3,256 27 

3,256 27 

Market risk Is th ns of any loss n future earnings, In reals ble f r values or ,n futur c sh flows h t m y r sul from 
change s resu lt of chan es in nterest ra es, price fluctu tons, I qu1d1ty nd o her m rk t ch ng s. Fu ure spec fie m rke 

ch nge ,n he price of a fin ncI I instrument The va lue of a fin ncial 1nstrum n may 

movemen s cannot be normally predic ed w, h re son bl accuracy. 

25.2 Interest risk management 

lnteres rate nsk I th risk ha the 1r value or future c s 
fund re borrowed t fi )(ed interest ra tes. The borro tngs o 

25.3 Liquidity risk m nagement 

lows of a fi n nc al Instrument will fluctua e bee use of ch nge 1n marke interest r tes. Th 
he Company are principally denominated In rupees wr h f,xed r t so lnteres 

Comp nv is not e,cposed to interest ra e risk bee us 

l.Jqu1drty risk re ers to he risk of inancial dis ress or traordlnary hi h fin ncing cos rls ng due to short g of liquid funds ,n sI tuatIon h re business concfi ions unexpec edly det norat a d requiring 

fina ncing 

As at March 31, 2025 

Particulars 

rade receivables 

Cash and cash eq ivalents 

0 her financia l asse s 

Total 
Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 

Trad payables 

0 her fin ncial lia bilt ies 
Total 

As at March 31, 2024 
Particulars 

Flnanclal s e 
Trade rece1va les 

Cash and cash equiva lents 
Other fin nc1at assets 

Total 

Financl I lfabll t1es 

Borrowings 

Trade payables 

Other ,na nc.ial liab,lrties 

Total 

25.4 Credit risk management 

< 1 year 

13 33 

151.92 
2,005.73 

2,170.98 

3,521.00 

18.82 

289.58 

3,829.40 

< 1 year 

117.49 

19 
1,461 .45 

1,580.13 

115 10 

170.40 

285.S0 

1-5 ye rs 

1-5 years > S years 

3,256.27 

3,256.27 • 

Rs. n crores 

Total 

13 33 

15192 

2,005 73 

2,170.98 

3,52 .00 

18.82 

289 58 

Rs. in aores 

Total 

117. 9 

119 

1,580.13 

3,256.27 

115.10 

170.40 

3.541.n 

Credrt risk refers to the risk that a counterp rty w,11 def ult on ,ts contractu t obi g tlons resulti ng ln n nc1al loss o the Comp ny. Currently, the Comp ny h limited customer b s . Th Comp ny 5 lects 
customers after due diligence based on creditworthiness as a means of mlt gating the rlsk of ,nancial loss from defaults. 

26. Segment reporting 

The Company 1s In th business of steel products tr ding actrv1ry, prim nly oper ted In Ind, nd r gu larly reviewed by the Chi f Ope ting O c,slon M ker for assessm n of Comp ny's P rformance and resource 
allocat on. The nformat,on relating to revenue from external customers and location of non-current assets of its single reportable segment has been disclosed as below 

. Revenu from op rations 

Partlcul rs 

Domestic 

Revenue from operat ions have been allocat d on the basis of location of customers. 

b. Non-current ssets 

All non-curr nt sse of th Comp ny re locat d 1n Ind . 

C, Custom r contributing more than 10% of Revenue 

P lcul rs 

JSW S el Coated Products limit d 

tional S el and Agro lndustr es Um, ed (merged with JSW Ste I Coated Products limited wef October 3, 2024) 

2 . Cont n nt u bll t s 
e Comp n do s not h v ny contingent II b1hties son March 31, 2025 (M rch 31, 202 . NIL) 

For the y r nd d 
March 31, 2025 

604.59 

For th ye r nd d 

M rch 31., 2025 

Rs. in aore 

For th y r nd d 
March 31, 202 

Forth 
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Notes forming part of the Standalon financial statements 

28. Ra o Analysl$ 

- Ch nge In ratio in excess of 25% 
Change % Change S No Ratio Num rator Denominator FY 24-25 FY 23-24 compared to preceding year 

Cha nge .s mainly du to reda si le on 

-88.43% 
of bor ow1 gs n he current rn ur Va 

Cu ent t,o repayment has to be m de in t e ne 

1 2,195 6 ,032 91 0.5 4.71 ( 16) on ye r 

( Cu rr nt Ass ts/ Curr nt L abHi ·es) 

2 Debt Equity Ratio 3,521.00 6,732 31 0,52 050 0.03 5. ~" 

(Toal Borra ngs / Total Equity) 

Jnc~as was prl rrly on accoun o 

3 Debt servic~ cove tio 2,281 97 3,880.2 0 59 0.17 0.42 255.43¾ Increase In pro I b~ ore ax du · 0 
ge 

recelp of d1vfdend from .subsidiary 

l Profit befor T , E cept on I It ms, Deprecl to I et F n nee 

Ch rges / ( et F nance Ch e Lon Term Borro1,.v n s scheduled 

'pnnc pal rep ymen s l • tud s prepa m nts/ re lna cln ) 'dur n 

the p nod) 
-

Increase was pnm llyo ccoun o 

4 R tum on Equity 1,859.81 6,640 63 28.01¾ 3.02% 24.98"" 826.70% Increase n p o it be ore t x due to 

rec,elpt of dividend from subs drary 

( Pro It after tax/ Average Shareholder'$ equity} 

5 lnven orv Tumover (no. of days) 603 308.06 NA • NA -- • 

(Average n entory / ( ost of materials consumed + Purchases of 

stoc -lnwtrade Changes n Inventories + Minln prem um and 

royalties + Pov e a d fuel + Stores & spares consumed + Rep lrs & • 

Malnt nanc:2 + Jo \VO C rges + L • our charg~ + MDO cost) 0 , 

of days) 

6 Deb ors Turnover (no. of days) 60459 65 41 9.24 8.35 0.89 10.65% 

(Gross sales/ A erage rade receiva bles ) 

7 Trade payables tumover (no o days) 603 44 66.96 9.01 8.0 0.98 1214" 

(Cos o ate als consu ed Purchases of stock- n-trade + Cha g s 

' In in entories)/ A erage trade payables) 

(0,,33) 0 51 (0.84) -164.54" 
Decrease Is mat ly due o h1ghe c rrer 

8 Net cap1 !tu aver 604.S9 -1,837.27 borrow! gs a.s on bal nee s e t dat 

( et Sales/ {Current as.sets- curr~ t Oablltt es) 

Hi.gher pro 1t margin attribu able to 

9 Ne Profi Margin(%) 1,859.81 2;889.89 64.36% 15.72~ 0. 9 309.2 ¼ Increase in pro 1t after x and increase 

I otal income due o div·dend Income 

( e pro 1t for the year)/ (Total fncome) 

Retum an cap I employed 
Higher pro t margin ttrlbu bleto 

2,281.97 10,253.33 22 26% 6.06% 16.20-/4 267 9% incre e In pro I after and tncre se 

in total income due to d'vidend Income 
10 

{Pro 1t before Ta>c, Exceptional Items, Depreciation and Finance Cost/ 
Tangible N t Worth + Total Debt+ O~ferred T x Uabillty) 

11 Return on Investment" NA NA NA NA N A -
ote· Above rat os are based on the stand lone financ1 I statements of th Company 

"The Company has neither .made any new investment, nor ded red any d vldend n the current year, further, 11 the lnvesments of Company ari unquoted. Thus, this ratio is not applk bl as ell 

29. For FY 2023-2024, the income from financial ssets were less than SO percent and as such, the Company does nots t fy the Pnnc pal Business Test. Further, the Company does not have any 

ln ent or plan to com.m nee or carry on the business of NBFC. Accordingly, th provis ons of section 45-IA of the R serve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are no appl cable to the ompany. 

further, the income trom financial assets of the Company is n1ore th n SO% of total income dur ng FY 2024-25, ma nly due to onetime receipt of dividend income from ts subsid ary, Bhushan 

Power & St el um, ed (BPSL) The company 1s in the process of making an appticat,on to RBI for clanflcat,on / waiver of requirement for ,t to be registered as NBFC, in view of on time 

transac 10n 

UPt 

* MU 
~ R :1 

'tD ACC 
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DIRECTORS'REPORT 

The Members, 
PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED, 

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the SIXTH ANNUAL REPORT of your Company, together with 
the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024. 

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
(Amount in Crores) 

Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 
i. Revenue from operations 644.86 45.46 
ii. Other income 595.12 537.94 
iii. Total Income (i+ii) 1239.98 583.40 
iv. Expenses: 
Purchase of Stock-in-trade 639.53 49.89 
Finance Cost 332.60 311.98 
Change in Inventory of Stock-in trade 4.18 ( 4.18) 
Other expenses 2.44 1.02 
Total Expenses 978.75 358.71 
v. Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (iii-iv) 261.24 224.69 
vi. Tax expenses 
Current tax 66.24 56.69 
Deferred tax 0.01 (0.04) 

Profit/ {Loss) for the year (v-vi) 194.98 168.04 

2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE: 

The Company is engaged in the business of buying, selling and otherwise trading or dealing in steel 
and its allied products, iron ore, coal, coke, brick-earth, res, minerals and mineral substance, alloys 
and metal scraps of all kinds. The Company earned revenue of Rs. 644.86 crores from trading of steel 
products and Rs. 595.12 crores from interest for the financial year under review. The Company has 
reported net profit for the F.Y. 2023-24 of Rs. 194.98 crores after providing for tax expense as 
compared to Rs. 168.04 crores in FY 2022-23. 

3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

There were no changes in the nature of business during the period under review. 

4. DIVIDEND: 

To maintain the liquidity of funds for meeting the future financial requirements of the Company, the 
Board of Directors has decided not to declare any dividend for the financial year 2023-24. 
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5. TRANSFER TO RESERVES IN TERMS OF SECTION 134 (3) (j) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

Your directors do not propose to carry any amount to any reserves during the period under review. 

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE 
COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THIS 
REPORT: 

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no material changes and commitments which could 
affect the Company's financial position have occurred between the end of the financial year of the 
Company and date of this report. 

7. DEPOSITS: 

Your Company has not accepted or renewed any deposits within the meaning of section 73 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 and the rules 
made thereunder. 

8. SHARE CAPITAL: 

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.17000,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seventeen Thousand 
Crores Only) divided into 1200,00,00,000 (One Thousand Two Hundred Crores only) Equity Shares 
of Rs.10/- each (Rupees Ten only) and 500,00,00,000 (Five Hundred Crores only) Preference Shares 
of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) each. The Paid-Up Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 
6100,00,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty-One Hundred Crore only) divided into 610,00,00,000 (Six Hundred 
Ten Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 

Issue of Equity Shares: 

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any equity shares. 

Subsidiary of JSW Steel Limited: 

JSW Steel Limited holds 83.28% equity and JSLPL holds 16.72% equity in the Company. Subsequent 
to the conversion of OFCDs, the Company had become a Subsidiary of JSW Steel Limited. 

a) Issue of Equity Shares with Differential Rights 

The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence no information as per 
provisions of Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 

b) Issue of Sweat Equity Shares 

The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence no 
information as per provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Act read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies 
(Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 
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c) Issue of Employee Stock Options 

The Company has not issued any equity shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme during the 
year under review and hence no information as per provisions of Section 62(1)(b) of the Act read 
with Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 

9. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

a) COMPOSITION & CONSTITUTION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

The Board of your Company currently comprises of five Directors, namely Mr. Anil Kumar Singh 
(DIN: 02059903), Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair (DIN: 08568679), Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta 
(DIN: 02339000), Mr. Anunay Kumar (DIN: 01647407), Independent Director and Dr. Rakhi Jain 
(DIN: 07138042), Independent Director. 

According to the provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Anil Kumar Singh 
(DIN: 02059903) is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being 
eligible have offered himself for reappointment. The necessary resolution proposing the 
appointment of aforesaid Director has been incorporated in the Notice of the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting for your approval. 

b) BOARD MEETING & ATTENDANCE: 

During the period under review, meeting of the Board of Directors was held 5 times on 10.05.2023, 
14.07.2023, 16.10.2023, 15.01.2024 and 18.03.2024. The detail of the participation of Directors 
thereat is enumerated as below: 

Sr. Name of Director No. of Meeting held No. of Meeting 
No. during tenure Attended 

1 .. Mr. Anil Kumar Singh 05 05 
2. Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta 05 04 
3. Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar 05 04 

Bhair 
4. Mr. Anunay Kumar 05 05 
5. Dr. Rakhi Jain 05 05 

The intervening gap between the Board meetings was within the period prescribed under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

c) DECLARATION BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Board comprised of Mr. Anunay Kumar and Dr. Rakhi Jain as Independent Directors. The 
Company has received the necessary declaration from each of the Independent Directors in 
accordance with Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he/she meets the criteria of 
independence as laid out in Section 149(6) of the Act. The Independent Directors had 01 (One) 
Meeting during the period under review. 
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d) CHANGES IN KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

During the period under review, there is no change in Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the 
Company. 

10. COMPOSITION OF VARIOUS BOARD COMMITTEES 

i. Audit Committee 

Audit Committee comprises of Mr. Anunay Kumar as Chairman, Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair 
and Dr. Rakhi Jain as members of Audit Committee. The Board has approved the charter for the 
functioning of the Audit Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the 
Committee. 

During the period under review, meeting of the Audit Committee was held 06 times on 09.05.2023, 
14.07.2023, 16.10.2023, 15.01.2024, 18.03.2024 and 22.03.2024. The detail of the participation 
of members thereat is enumerated as below: 

Sr. Name of Director No. of Meeting No. of Meeting 
No. held during tenure Attended 

1. Mr. Anunay Kumar 06 06 
2. Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair 06 05 
3. Dr. Rakhi Jain 06 06 

ii. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr. Anunay Kumar as Chairman, Mr. Anil 
Kumar Singh and Dr. Rakhi Jain as members of the Committee. The Board has approved the 
charter for the functioning of the Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the 
Committee. 

During the period under review, meeting of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee was held 
01 times on 09.05.2023. The detail of the participation of members thereat is enumerated as 
below: 

Sr. Name of Director No. of Meeting held No. of Meeting 
No. during tenure Attended 

1. Mr. Anunay Kumar 01 01 
2. Mr. Anil Kumar Singh 01 01 
3. Dr. Rakhi Jain 01 01 

iii. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of Dr. Rakhi Jain as Chairperson, Mr. Anil 
Kumar Singh and Mr. Anunay Kumar as members of the Committee. The Board has approved the 
charter for the functioning of the Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the 
Committee. 
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During the period under review, the meeting of the CSR Committee of Board of Directors was held 
01 times on 09.05.2023. The detail of the participation of members thereat is enumerated as 
below: 

Sr. Name of Director No. of Meeting No. of Meeting 
No. held during tenure Attended 

1. Dr. Rakhi Jain 01 01 
2. Mr. Anil Kumar Singh 01 01 
3. Mr. Anunay Kumar 01 01 

iv. Finance Committee 

The Finance Committee of the Board of Directors comprises of Mr. Anil Kumar Singh as Chairman, 
Mr. Manoj Kumar Mehta and Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair as members of the Committee. 
The Board has approved the charter for the functioning of the Committee. The Company Secretary 
acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 

During the period under review, the meeting of the Finance Committee of Board of Directors was 
held 01 times on 19.04.2023. The detail of the participation of members thereat is enumerated as 
below: 

Sr. Name of Director No. of Meeting No. of Meeting 
No. held during tenure Attended 

1. Mr. Anil Kumar Singh 01 01 
2. Mr. Manoj Kumar Mehta 01 01 
3. Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair 01 01 

v. Risk Management Committee 

Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors was constituted on May 24, 2022 and presently 
comprises of Mr. Anunay Kumar as Chairman, Mr. Anil Kumar Singh and Dr. Rakhi Jain as members 
of the Committee. The Board has approved the charter for the functioning of the Committee. The 
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 

During the period under review, the meeting of the Risk Management Committee of Board of 
Directors was held 01 time on 16.10.2023. The detail of the participation of members thereat is 
enumerated as below: 

Sr. Name of Director No. of Meeting No. of Meeting 
No. held during tenure Attended 

1. Mr. Anunay Kumar 01 01 
2. Mr. Anil Kumar Singh 01 01 
3. Dr. Rakhi Jain 01 01 

The Company has redeemed its Listed, Rated, Unsecured, Non redeemable, Non Convertible Bonds 
(NCBs) of Rs.10 laks each aggregating to Rs. 2,500 crore in full on its redemption date i.e. March 
22, 2024 and also got approval from the BSE Limited for delisting of its NCBs from Stock Exchange. 
Hence the company has become unlisted company and respective provisions of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015, will no longer be applicable on it, therefore continuation of aforesaid Committee 
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is no more required. Hence the Risk Management Committee has been dissolved w.e.f May 07, 
2024. 

vi. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Board of Directors was constituted on May 24, 2022 and 
presently comprises of Dr. Rakhi Jain as Chairperson, Mr. Anunay Kumar and Mr. Anil Kumar Singh 
as members of the Committee. The Board has approved the charter for the functioning of the 
Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 

During the period under review, the meeting of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Board 
of Directors was held 01 time on 13.10.2023. The detail of the participation of members thereat 
is enumerated as below: 

Sr. Name of Director No. of Meeting No. of Meeting 
No. held during tenure Attended 

1. Dr. Rakhi Jain 01 01 
2. Mr. Anunay Kumar 01 01 
3. Mr. Anil Kumar Singh 01 01 

The Company has redeemed its Listed, Rated, Unsecured, Non redeemable, Non Convertible Bonds 
(NCBs) of Rs.10 laks each aggregating to Rs. 2,500 crore in full on its redemption date i.e. March 
22, 2024 and also got approval from the BSE Limited for delisting of its NCBs from Stock Exchange. 
Hence the company has become unlisted company and respective provisions of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015, will no longer be applicable on it, therefore continuation of aforesaid Committee 
is no more required. Hence the Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been dissolved w.e.f 
May 07, 2024. 

11. HOLDING & SUBSIDIARY COMPANY: 

JSW Steel Limited holds 83.28% equity and JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited holds 16. 72% 
equity in the Company. The Company is now a Subsidiary of JSW Steel Limited. 

Bhushan Power & Steel Limited is wholly owned subsidiary of your Company w.e.f. March 26, 2021. 

Presently, the Company neither has any Joint Venture nor Associate company. 

12.NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE SUBSIDIARIES, 
JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

During the year, no other companies have become or ceased to be subsidiaries, joint ventures or 
associate companies. 

13.PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE SUBSIDIARY COMPANY: 

The members may refer to the financial statements forming part of the Annual Report as required 
under the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 for financial position of all 
Subsidiaries. 

A statement containing salient features of the financial statements of the Subsidiary Company in 
Form AOC-1 is given in 'Annexure-A' to this Report. 
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14. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM & INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS: 

a) Overview 

The Company has a robust system of internal control, commensurate with the size and nature of 
its business and complexity of it operations. 

b) Internal Control: 

The Company has a proper and adequate system of Internal Control. 

c) Internal Audit: 

The Company has a strong and independent internal audit function that inculcates global best 
standards and practices of international majors into the Indian operations. The Internal Audit team 
consists of professionally qualified accountants and engineers at the group level. The Internal 
Auditors reports directly to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

d) Audit Plan and Execution 

At start of the year, the Internal Audit Department prepares an Annual Audit Plan after 
considering Business and Process Risks. The frequency of the audit is decided by risk ratings of 
areas/functions. The audit plan is carried out by the Internal team and reviewed periodically to 
include areas that have assumed significant importance in line with the emerging industry trend. 

e) Internal Financial Controls 

As per Section 134(5)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors have an overall responsibility 
for ensuring that the Company has implemented a robust system and framework of internal 
financial controls. 

The Company has already developed and implemented a framework for ensuring internal controls 
over financial reporting. During the year, controls were tested and no reportable material 
weakness in design and effectiveness was observed. 

15. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS' REPORT: 

A. STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

M/s. Shah Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 109574W) had been 
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company on the oist Annual General Meeting for a 
period of 5 years until the conclusion of 6th Annual General Meeting to be held in the calendar 
year 2024. 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, if any, read with the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014, including any 
statutory enactment or modification thereof, subject to approval of shareholders in the 
ensuring Annual General Meeting, Board of Directors in its meeting held on May 07, 2024 has 
recommended for re-appointment of M/s. Shah Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm 
Registration No. 109574W) as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a further period of 5 years 
from conclusion of ensuing 6th Annual General Meeting till conclusion of 11th Annual General 
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Meeting to be held in calendar year 2029 at a remuneration plus applicable taxes and 
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses to be decided by Board of Directors in consultation 
with the Auditors. 

Comment on Auditors' Report: 

The report of the Auditors along with notes to Schedules forms part of this Annual Report. The 
observations made by the Auditors in the Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and therefore 
do not call for any further comments. 

The Auditors' Report for the year under review does not contain any qualification, reservation, 
adverse remark or disclaimer. 

No fraud has been reported by the Auditors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 
requiring disclosure in Board's Report. 

The notes on financial statements referred to in the Auditor's Report are self-explanatory and 
do not call for any further comments. The Auditor's Report for the year under review does not 
contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark, or disclaimer, except that there is a 
modification pertaining to maintenance of audit trail, as explained below. 

As required by proviso to sub rule (1) of rule 3 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 known 
as the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2021, the Company has been maintaining its 
books of account~ in the SAP which has feature of recording audit trail of each and every 
transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in books of account along with the date 
when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled, throughout 
the year. However, the audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data in the 
underlying database and in the application when using certain privileged access rights and 
accordingly the auditor's report is modified to this extent (refer report on standalone financial 
statements included in the financial statements section of this annual report). The Company as 
per its policy has not granted privilege access for change to data in the underlying database as 
evident from the manual log being maintained in this regard and further privilege access rights 
to application are restricted only to specific authorised users for which audit trail exists except 
in certain debugging cases. 

The Company in the month of March 2024 has also implemented Privileged Access Management 
tool (PAM), onboarded the SAP database servers ori the PAM tool and the process of monitoring 
database is currently under testing phase. The PAM is an identity management tool which 
focuses on the control, monitoring, and protection of privileged accounts within an organization. 
The PAM tool saves complete screen video recording sessions of all the admin activities as soon 
as they authenticate on the PAM console and connect to the target resources (Servers, Network 
Devices, Applications and Database) which acts as an audit trail feature. 

Accordingly, going forward once the testing of monitoring database in PAM is completed and 
PAM becomes operational in all aspects, the Company would be in compliance with this 
requirement. 

B. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS: 

In terms of Section 204 of the Act, Board of Directors of the Company in their Meeting held on 
May 10, 2023 had appointed M/s. Sunil Agarwal & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, as 
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secretarial auditor to conduct a secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-
24. 

The Secretarial Audit report for financial year 2023-24 is annexed to this report in form MR-3 
(Annexure - Bl). The Secretarial Audit report for financial year 2023-24 of Bhushan Power & 
Steel Limited, wholly owned Subsidiary of the Company is also annexed to this report in Form 
MR-3 (Annexure - B2) 

The Board, at its meeting held on May 07, 2024 has on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee appointed M/s MMJB & Associates LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries, as 
Secretarial Auditor to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2024-
25. 

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

All related party transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 
2013 during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and on an arms' length basis 
and are in accordance with provisions of Section 177, 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details 
of contracts or arrangement as prescribed in Form AOC-2 attached as Annexure - C. 

Suitable disclosure on related party transactions, as required by the Accounting Standards has been 
made in the notes to the Financial Statements. 

17. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS U/S 186: 

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the financial statements. 

18. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS: 

No orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status 
and company's operations. 

19. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

The Disclosures pertaining to particulars of employees as required in terms of the Section 197(12) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are not applicable to the Company and hence, the disclosure on 
particulars of employees in terms of the aforesaid Section and Rules is not attached to the Directors' 
Report. 

20. SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND 
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

Being part of JSW group, your Company follows an Anti-Sexual Harassment JSW Group Policy in line 
with the requirements of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up at group level to 
redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. No complaints pertaining to sexual 
harassment were received during the FY 2023-24. 
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21. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY / VIGIL MECHANISM 

The Company has in place a mechanism in the form of the Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism 
to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any. 

22. RISK MANAGEMENT: 

The Company has in place a mechanism to inform the Board members about the risk assessment and 
mitigation plans and periodical reviews to ensure that the critical risks are controlled by the 
management. 

23. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy is available on the website of the Company. Annual report 
on Corporate Social responsibility is enclosed as Annexure - D. 

24.SECRETARIALSTANDARDS 

The applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e., SS-1 and SS-2, relating to 'Meetings of the Board of 
Directors' and 'General Meetings', respectively, have been complied with by the Company during the 
financial year under review. 

25. BOARD EVALUATION 

The Board carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, the performance of the 
Independent Directors individually as well as an evaluation of the working of the Committees of the 
Board. The performance evaluation of all the Directors was carried out by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent 
Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. 

26. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

The Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity, particulars under section 134(3)(m) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, regarding the conservation of energy, technology absorption are not 
applicable. 

There were no foreign exchange earnings/ outgo during the year under review. 

27. COPY OF ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, copy of the Annual 
Return of the Company prepared in accordance with Section 92(1) of the Act read with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is placed on the website of the 
Company and are accessible at the web-link: ntms://www.isw.lnl9roups/piombino-steel-limited. 
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28. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

Pursuant to the requirement clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
your Directors confirm that: 

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

b) such accounting policies have been applied consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for 
that period; 

c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; and 
e) proper systems were devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 

and such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

AP PRE CIA TION: 

Your Directors would like to express their appreciation for co-operation and assistance received from 
Government authorities, financial institutions, banks, vendors, customers, shareholders and other 
business associates during the year under review. The Directors also wish to place on record their 
deep sense of appreciation for the committed services by all the employees of the Company. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 07, 2024 

For and on behalf of the 

Board of Directors of PiombcMino.,te.:I Ltd • 

. vt 
Ani '~hi~~·Singh 

Chairman 
DIN:02059903 
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ANNEXURE A 

FORM NO. AOC-1 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

part "A"; subsjdjarjes 
(in Crores 

SI. No. 1 (One) 
Name of the subsidiary Bhushan Power & Steel Limited 
The date since when subsidiary was acquired 26.03.2021 
Financial Year ending on 31.03.2024 
Reoortina Currency INR 
Exchange Rate on the last day of the financial year N.A 
Share capital 100.00 
Reserves & Surplus 12,707.55 
Total Assets 24,432.65 
Total Liabilities 24,432.65 
Investments 0.00 
Turnover 21,985.68 
Profit/(Loss) before tax 674.27 
Provision for tax 0.00 
Profit/ (Loss) after tax 674.27 
Proposed Dividend 0.00 
0/o of shareholding 100.00 

Notes: 
I. No subsidiary is yet to commence operations. 
2. No subsidiary has been liquidated or sold during the year. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 07, 2024 

For and on behalf of the 
Board of Directors of Piombi~o f ee.l Ltd. 

\ \ p 
',,._, / ) ' / 

Anll umar Singh 
Chairman 

DIN:02059903 
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web: cssunilagarwal.in; Cell: +91 9920715299; 

To, 
The Members, 
PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
6th Floor, Grande Palladium, 
175, CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), 
Mumbai - 400 098 

My Secretarial Audit report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 
based on my audit. 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. 
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records, we believe that the processes and practices, we followed, provide 
a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books 
of accounts of the Company. I relied on the statutory report provided by the Statutory 
Auditor of the company for the financial year ending 31 March, 2024. 

4. Wherever required I have obtained the management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provision and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards are the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the 
verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the company. 

For Sunil Agarwal & Co. 
Company Secretaries 

SUNIL o;g;tallys;gnedby 
SUNIL SHIVKUMAR 

SHIVKUMAR AGARWAL 

AGARWAL ~;~;!~':o~\t: 
Sunil Agarwal 
(Proprietor) 
FCS No.: 8706 
C.P. No.: 3286 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 25/04/2024 
UDIN number: F008706F000235020 
Peer Review Unit No. 788/2020 
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(East), Thane-401105, email: sunilcs mumbai@rediffmail.com, agarwalcs_mumbai@yahoo.co.in 

web: cssunilagarwal.in; Cell: +91 9920715299; 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRET ARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
/Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014/ 

To, 
The Members, 
PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
6th Floor, Grande Palladium, 
175 CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), 
Mumbai 400098 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Piombino Steel Limited bearing CIN 
U27320MH2018PLC374653 (hereinafter called "the company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts /statutory compliances 
and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 

and authorised representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 and 

appears to have complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 
proper Board-process and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 

reporting made hereinafter:-

1. In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the examinations carried out by 
me and explanations furnished and representations made to me by the Company, its officers and 

agents, I hereby report that the Company has complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of 
the Company with regard to: 

(a) Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary entries 

therein; 

(b) Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar of 

Companies, Regional Director, Central Government, Company Law Board or other 
authorities; 

(c) Service of documents by the Company on its Members, Auditors and the Registrar of 

Companies; 

(d) Notice of Board meetings of Directors in compliance of the "ACT "as well as Secretarial 
Standard - 1 (SS 1 ); 

( e) Meetings of Directors and passing of circular resolutions; 
(f) Notice and convening of General Meetings held Secretarial Standard - 2 (SS 2). 
(g) Minutes of the proceedings of the Board Meetings and General Meetings; 

SUN IL Digitally signed by 
SUNIL SHIVKUMAR 

SHIVKUMAR AGARWAL 

AGARWAL ~;~";~~2:0~~3~~ 
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Company Secretaries 

Off: 124-125, Ostwal Ornate, "A" Wing, Building No. 1, Opp. Jain Temple, Jessel Park, Bhayander 
(East), Thane-401105, email: sunilcs mumbai@rediffmail.com, agarwalcs_mumbai@yahoo.co.in 

web: cssunilagarwal.in; Cell: +91 9920715299; 

(h) Approvals of the Board of Directors, Members and government authorities, wherever 
required; 

(i) Constitution of the Board of Directors and appointment, retirement and reappointment of 
Directors including Managing Directors and Executive Directors, Independent Directors. 

(j) Payment of remuneration to Directors, Managing Director and Executive Directors; 
(k) Appointment and remuneration of Statutory Auditors; 
(I) Report of the Board of Directors; 
(m) Generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules there under. 

2. I further report that: 

(a) The Directors have complied with the requirements as to disclosure of interests and concerns 
in contracts and arrangements, shareholdings and directorships in other Companies and 
interest in other entities; 

(b) The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect to their eligibility of 
appointment, their being independent, compliance with the code of conduct for Directors 
and; 

(c) The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under various provisions of the Act 
where necessary; 

(d) There was no prosecution initiated against or show cause notice received by the Company 

during the year under review under the Companies Act, 2013 regulations and guidelines 
under these Acts. 

3. I further report that 

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA ') as amended from time to time and 
the rules made there under as amended from time to time are not applicable, as the company 
is an unlisted public Company. 

(ii) The Depositories Act, 1996 as amended from time to time and the Regulations and J;Jye-laws 

framed there under are applicable during the period of Audit. 
(iii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 as amended from time to time and the rules and 

regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings are not applicable during the period of 
Audit; 

(iv) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board oflndia Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 as amended from time to time (Not applicable to the 
company during the audit period). 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015. 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2009(Not applicable to the company during the audit 
period); 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 2021 and the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to 
the company during the audit period). 

SUNIL 
SHIVKUMAR 
AGARWAL 
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e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Conve1iible 
Securities) Regulations 2021; 

t) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding Companies Act and dealing with client; 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2009 (Not applicable to the company during the audit period); 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 
are not applicable as the Company has not bought back any shares during the period of 
Audit; and 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (to the extent applicable to debt listed securities upto 
March 22, 2024 ). 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

Secretarial Standards 

The Secretarial Standards issued and notified by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India have been 
generally complied with by the Company to the extent applicable during the year under review; 

4. I further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the 
Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded 
as part of the minutes. 

5. I further report that in my opinion there are adequate systems and processes in the company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance 
with other applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines as provided by the management 
hereunder; 

I .Employees' Provident Fund Scheme, 1952 & Rules Made there under 
2. Professional Tax Act 

3.Shop & Establishment Act 

6 I further report that during the year under review, Company has redeemed its Listed, Rated, 
Unsecured, Non-redeemable, Non-Convertible Bonds (NCBs) of Rs.10 lakhs each aggregating to 
Rs. 2,500 crore in full on its redemption date i.e. March 22, 2024 and also got approval from the 
BSE Limited for delisting of its NCBs from Stock Exchange. Hence the company has become 

SUNll Sf-11\/KUMAll 
AGARWAi 
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unlisted company and respective provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, will no longer be 
applicable on it w.e.f March 22, 2024. 

7 I further report that during the year under review the company has not given any loans or given 
guarantees to other bodies corporate or persons falling under the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Act. 

For Sunil Agarwal & Co. 
Company Secretaries 

SUNIL DigitallysigncdbySU~m 

SHIVKUMAR ~~:~~io~:.6:~:RwAL 
AGARWAL 11:02:42 ,os•30· 

Sunil Agarwal 
(Proprietor) 
FCS No. 8706 
C.P. No. 3286 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 25/04/2024 
UDIN number: F008706F000235020 
Peer Review Unit No. 788/2020 
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Company Secretaries 

FORM NO. MR- 3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

Office No. 8, 4th floor, 
AC Market Building CHS Ltd., 
Tardeo Road, Mumbai- 400 034 
Tel no.: 022- 4979 0842 
Mobile: +919321025730 
E-mail: mumbaissandco@yahoo.com 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH, 2024 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 
The Members, 
BHUSHAN POWER & STEEL LIMITED 
4th Floor, A-2, NTH Complex 

Shaheed Jeet Singh Marg USO Road, 
Qutab Institutional Area, New Delhi 

DL 110067. 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by BHUSHAN POWER & STEEL LIMITED 
bearing CIN: U27100DL1999PLC108350 (hereinafter called the "Company"). Secretarial Audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of Secretarial 
Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 by and large appears to have complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board­
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024, according to the 
provisions of: 

i. The Companies Act, 2013, (the Act) and the rules made there under. 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, ('SCRA') and the rules m , 
under (Not Applicable to the Company during the period under review). /t 

Registered office address: "Harl Krupa" Building, Ground Floor, 71/1, McNicholas Road, (off Poon 
Road), Chetpet, Chennai- 600 031, Tamil Nadu. India 

Mobile: , 01 901109.3661 J Il mail: :miniGO@gmail.com 

(I) 



This forms part of our secretarial audit report ofSS-MUM/BPSL/004/2024-25 dated 22.04.2024 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996, and the Regulations and Byelaws framed there under. 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, and the rules and regulations made there 
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial Borrowings. 
(Not Applicable to the Company during the period under review). 

v. The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992; ('SEBI Act') are not applicable to the Company during the period under 
review as the Company is an unlisted company. 

vi. All other relevant applicable laws including those specifically applicable to the 
Company, a list of which has been provided by the management. The examination and 
reporting of these laws and rules are limited to whether there are adequate systems 
and processes are in place to monitor and ensure compliance with those laws. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following 
Secretarial Standards: 

The Secretarial Standards issued and notified by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
SS- 1 & SS- 2 has been generally complied with by the Company during the financial year 
under review. 

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of 
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

We further report that: 

• The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes 
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

• Adequate notices are given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists 
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

• Decisions at the meetings of the Board of Directors were carried through based on 
majority and there were no dissenting views by any Member of the Board_g~r~ng the 
year under review. ':. 
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This forms part of our secretarial audit report of SS-MUM/BPSL/004/2024-25 dated 22.04.2024 

We further report that, 

Based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company and on the 
review of the compliance reports of Company Secretary/ Chief Financial Officer/ Whole-time 
Director taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in our opinion there are 
adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations 
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines. 

The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws such as direct and indirect tax 
laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has not been reviewed in this 
Audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit and other 
designated professionals. 

We further report that, during the audit period, there are specific events/ actions occurred 
which had any major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred 
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, and standards etc. 

• The Company has changed its registered office from National Capital Territory Delhi to 
the State of Maharashtra vide Special resolution no. 7 dated 13th October 2023. 
(Approval of the Regional Director, North is awaited). 

• Re-appointment of Mr. Anil Kumar Singh as President & Whole Time Director effective 
from 26th March 2024 till 3pt May 2025. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 22.04.2024 

3jPage 

For S. SIUIIW44M & e,.., 
Company Secretaries 

fa' s. Srinivasan -
• Practicing Company Secretary 

FCS: 2286 I CP. No.: 748 
UDIN:F002286F000211495 
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AnnexureA 

To, 
The Members, 
BHUSHAN POWER & STEEL LIMITED 
4th Floor, A-2, NTH Complex 
Shaheed Jeet Singh Marg USO Road, 
Qutab Institutional Area, New Delhi 

DL 110067. 

Our Secretarial Audit report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on 
our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were considered appropriate to 
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial 
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed, provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the Company. 

4. 'Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to 
the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 22.04.2024 
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For S. S~ & 6',,., 
Company Secretaries 

S. Srinivasan 
Practicing Company Secretary 

FCS: 2286 I CP. No.: 748 
UDIN:F002286F000211495 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Regd Office: 6th Floor, Grande Palladium, 175, CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai 400 098 

Ph. No: +91 22 6854 2400 CIN: U27320MH2018PLC374653 

No. 

Website: https://www.isw.iu/groups/piombino-stecl-limited 

ANNEXURE C 

FORM NO. AOC-2 
(Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the company 
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto 

1. Details of contracts or arranqements or transactions not at arm's length basis:-
Name(s) of Nature of Duration of Salient terms Justification date(s) Amount Date on which 
the related contracts/ the of the for entering of paid as the special 
party and arrangement contracts I contracts or into such approv advance resolution was 
nature of s/ arrangemen arrangement contracts or al by s, if any passed in general 

relationshi transactions ts/ s or arrangement the meeting as 
p transaction transactions s or Board required under 

including the transaction first proviso to 
value if anv section 188 

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (q) (h) 
(Nil) 

(All contracts or arrangements or transactions with related parties were at arm's lenqth basis) 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:-
No. Name(s) of Nature of Duration of the Salient terms of date(s) of Amount paid as 

the related contracts/ contracts / the contracts or approval by advances, if any 
party and arrangements/ arrangements arrangements or the Board 
nature of transactions / transactions transactions 

relationship including the 
value if any 

1. JSW Steel Trading of Steel Annual Rs. 562.23 crores Approved by Nil 
Limited Products Audit 

Committee 
2. JSW Steel Trading of Steel Annual Rs. 472.78 crores Approved by Nil 

Coated Products Audit 
Products Committee 
Limited 

3. Bhushan Trading of Steel Annual Rs. 192.42 crores Approved by Nil 
Power & Steel Products Audit 
Ltd Committee 

Note: Refer the related party transactions under Ind AS at Note No 24 of the financial statements of 
2023-24. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 07, 2024 

For and on behalf of the 
Board of Directors of Piombino r_eel Ltd. 

"•Jv ~ ~ / 
Anil u ar''Singh 

• Chairman 
DIN:02059903 
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Annexure D to Directors Report 
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company. 

CSR policy, reflecting ethos of the Company, broad areas of CSR interest and overview of activities, 
proposes rural focus and woman empowerment. 

Policy states the list of activities/projects undertaken/to be undertaken in future. 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

SI. Name of Director Designation / Number of Number of meetings of 
No. Nature of meetings of CSR Committee 

Directorship CSR attended during the 
Committee year 
held during 

the vear 
1. Dr. (Mrs.) Rakhi Chairperson 01 01 

Jain 
2. Mr. Anil Kumar Member 01 01 

Singh 
3. Mr. Anunay Kumar Member 01 01 

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved 
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company. www.isw.in//qroups>piombino-steel­
limited. 

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects 
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable Not Applicable 

5. 

6. 

(a) Average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of Section 135 t 96.82. Cr 

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of Section 135 
t 193.65 Lac 

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous 
financial years. Nil 

(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any Nil 

(e) 
(a) 

Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]. f 193.65. 
Amount spent on CSR Projects (both ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): 
t 193.65. 

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : Nil 

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable. Nil 

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]. f 193.65. 

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: 

Total Amount Amount Unsoent (in Rs.) 
Spent for the Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund specified 

Financial Year. to Unspent CSR Account under Schedule VII as per second proviso to 
(in Rs.) as sub-section (6) of sub-section(5) of Section 135 

Section 135. 
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7. 

8. 

Website: https://www.jsw.in/groups/piombino-steel-limited 

Amount. Date of Name of Amount. Date of transfer. 
transfer. the Fund 

H93.65 Lacs Nil NA NA NA NA 

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any: 

SI. No Particular Amount (in Rs) 

(1) (2) (3) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as f 193.65. 

per sub-section (5) of section 135 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year t 193.65. 

( iii) Excess amount soent for the Financial Year r(ii)-(i)l Nil 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or Nil 

programmes or activities of the previous Financial 

Years if any 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Nil 

Years r(iii)-(iv)l 

Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years: 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
SI Pro Amount Balance Amount spent in Amount Amount 
No cee transferred to Amount in the Financial transferred to a remainin 

din Unspent CSR Unspent CSR Year (in Rs) Fund as specified g to be 
g Account under Account under under Schedule spent in 
Fina sub-section sub - section VII as per second succeedi 
ncia (6) of Section (6) of Section proviso to sub - ng 
I 135 (in Rs) 135 (in Rs) section (5) of Financial 
Yea Section 135, if Years (in 
r( s) anv Rs) 

Amount Date 
(in Rs) of 

Tran 
sfer 

1. FY- NIL NIL NIL NIL NA NIL 
1 

2. FY-
2 

3. FY-
3 

Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 
amount spent in the Financial Year: 

¥es No 

If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created / acquired : 

8 
Defici 
ency, 
if any 

NA 
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Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social 
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: 

SI. Short Pin code of Date of Amount Details of entity/ Authority/ 
No. particulars of the creation of CSR beneficiary of the registered 

the property property or amount owner 
or asset(s) asset(s) spent 
[including 
complete 
address and 
location of 
the property] 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) 
CSR Name Registered 
Registration address 
number, if 
aoolicable 

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no. house no. Municipal 
Office/Municipal Corporation/Gram Panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the 
immovable property as well as boundaries) 

9. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit 
as per sub-section (5) of Section 135. Not Applicable 

(-i). L~; . 
~~-

tfr. Rakhi Jain 
(Chairperson CSR Committee) 
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PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

General Information 

f-'1ombino ::.teel LIm1ted ("the Company") is incorporated in India on September 21, 2018 under the Companies Act, 2013 with 
its registered office located at 6th Floor, Grande Palladium, 175, CST Road, Kolivery Village, MMRDA Area, Kalina, Santacruz 
East, Mumbai 400098. 

The Company is engaged in the business of buying, selling and otherwise trading or dealing in steel and its allied products, iron 
ore, coal, coke, brick-earth, ores, minerals and minera l substances, alloys and metal scrap of all kinds. 

lA. Recent accounting pronouncements: 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new 
standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company. 

1B. Material accounting policies 

I. Statement of compliance: 

Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India 
including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentat ion and disclosures 
requirement of Division II of revised Schedule Ill of the Companies Act 2013, (Ind AS Compliant Schedule Ill), as applicable to 
standalone financial statement. 

Accordingly, the Company has prepared these Standalone Financial Statements which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 
2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended as 
on that date, and accounting policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as "Standalone Financial 
Statements" or "financial statements"). 

The Standalone Financial Statements have been approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on May 7, 2024. 

II . Basis of preparation and presentation: 

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments 
measured at fair va lues at the end of each reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation 
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes in account the characteristics of the asset or 
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement 
date. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes in account the characteristics of the asset or liability if 
market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair 
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share­
based payment transact ions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, 
fair value of plan assets within scope the of Ind AS 19 and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair 
value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36. 

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1,2, or 3 based on the degree 
to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value 
measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows: 
• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access 

at the measurement date; 
• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or li ability, 

either directly or indirectly; and 
• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees {'INR') in crore rounded off to two decimal places as 
permitted by Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 except when otherwise stated. 

Current and non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

• it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sa le or consumption in, the Company's normal operating cycle. it is held 
primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

• it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or 

• it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months 
after the reporting date. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

• it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle; 
• it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
• it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or the Company does not have an unconditional right to 

defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option 
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only. 

Ill. Revenue recognition 

Sale of Goods 

The Company recognizes revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred to the customer at an amount 
that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 

Revenue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions, incentives, or 
other similar items in a contract when they are highly probable to be provided. The amount of revenue excludes any amount 
collected on behalf of third parties. 

The Company recognises revenue generally at the point in time when the products are delivered to customer or when it is 
delivered to a carrier for export sale, which is when the control over product is transferred to the customer. In contracts where 
freight is arranged by the Company and recovered from the customers, the same is treated as a separate performance obligation 
and revenue is recognized when such freight services are rendered. 

Interest income 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal 
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition . 

IV. Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that 
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sa le, are added to the cost of those assets, 
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are incurred. 

V. Taxes: 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

Current tax 

Current tax is the amount of expected tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as determined in accordance with 
the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 
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Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Standalone 
Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are 
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to 
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be 
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition 
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the 
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial 
recognition of goodwill. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting year and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that 
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year in which the liability is 
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of 
the reporting year. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

Current and deferred tax for the year 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are relating to items that are recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other 
comprehensive incom e or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for 
a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination . 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the 
relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

VI. Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Cost of raw materials include cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition . Cost of finished goods and work in progress include cost of direct materials and labor and a proportion of 
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost of traded goods include 
purchase cost and inward freight. 

Costs of inventories are determined on weighted average basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for 
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sa le. 

VII . Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of past events, and it is 
probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an obligation. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best est imate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the 
balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured 
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows 
(when the effect of the time value of money is material). 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a 
receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable 
can be measured reliably. 

VIII. Investment in subsidiary: 

Investment in subsidiary is show n at cost in accordance with opt ion available in Ind AS 27, 'Separate Financial Statements' . 
Where the carrying amount of an investment in greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately 
to its recoverable amount and the difference is transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. On disposal of investment, the 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

IX. Financial instruments: 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value 
through Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial 
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss . 

Financial assets 

a) Recognition and initial measurement 

A financial asset is initially recognised at fair value and for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to its acquisition or issue. Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, which is the date on which 
the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

b) Classification of financial assets 

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition and subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit and loss. A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets 
both of the following conditions and is not designated at FVTPL: 

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and 

• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

A debt instrument is classified as FVTOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not recognised at FVTPL; 

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and 
selling financial assets; and 

• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and 
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at 
FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive 
income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The 
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL. 

In addition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the 
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces and 
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting year, with any gains and losses arising on 
remeasurement recognized in statement of profit and loss. The net gain or loss recognized in statement of profit and loss 
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the 'other income' line item. Dividend on 
financial assets at FVTPL is recognized when : 

• The Company's right to receive the dividends is established; 
• It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividends will flow to the entity, 
• The dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be 

measured reliably. 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

c) Derecognition of financial assets 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it 
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. 

d) Effective interest method 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest 
income over the relevant year. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other 
premiums or discounts) through the expected life qf the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter year, to the net 
carrying amount on initial recognition. 

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. 
Interest income is recognized in statement of profit and loss and is included in the 'Other income' line item. 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

a) Classification as debt or equity 

Debt and equity instruments issued by a company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the 
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

b} Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. 
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised 
in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments. 

c} Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities 'at FVTPL' or 'other financial liabilities'. at FVTPL 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL: 

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. 

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: 

• It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or 
• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has 

a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking; or 
• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument. 

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if: 

• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; 
• the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its 

performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's documented risk management or 
investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or 

• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entire combined contract 
to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109. 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in Statement 
of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial 
liability and is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss. For Liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable 
to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. 

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or 
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and 
payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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Derecognition of financial liabilities 

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or 
have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an 
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Simi larly, a substantial 
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is 
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference 
between the carrying amount of th e financial liabi lity derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

X. Segment reporting: 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision 
maker. The Board of directors of the Company has been identified as the Ch ief Operating Decision Maker which reviews and 
assesses the financial performance and makes the strategic decisions. 

XI . Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equiva lent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity 
of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equiva lent consists of cash and short-term deposits, as defined 
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management. 

XII. Earnings per share: 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year . The weighted average number of equity shares outst anding during the year is adjusted for treasury 
shares, bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to e~isting shareholders, share split and reverse share split (consolidation 
of shares) . 

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other 
charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted 
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity 
shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares including the treasury shares held 
by the Company to satisfy the exercise of the share options by the employees. 

XIII. Business Combination 

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common contro l shall be accounted for using the pooling of interest 
method. 

lC. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements: 

In the course of applying the policies out lined in all notes under section 1 above, the Company is required to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources . 
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be 
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized 
in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of the revision and future year, if 
the revision affects current and future year. 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty: 

Impairment of investments in subsidiary 

Determining whether the investments in subsidiaries are impaired requires an estimate in the value in use of investments. In 
considering the value in use, the Directors have anticipated the discount rates and other factors of the underlying businesses/ 
operations of the investee companies. Any subsequent changes to the cash flows due to changes in the above mentioned factors 
could impact the carrying value of investments. 
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Taxes 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be avai lable 
against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax 
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level offuture taxa ble profits together with future tax planning 
strategies. 
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2. Investment in Subsidiaries 

Particulars 

Unquoted 

Investment at cost 

(a) Investment in equity instruments 

Subsidiary 

Bhushan Power & Steel Limited !Face value of Rs. 10 each) 

lb) Investment in compulsory convertible debentures ICCDs) 

Subsidiary 

Bhushan Power & Steel Limited !Face value of Rs. 10 each) 

Total Investment 

Total 

Unquoted 

Aggregate carrying value 

Notes 

Rs. in crores 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount 

100,000,000 100.00 100,000,000 100.00 

8,450,000,000 8,450.00 8,450,000,000 8,450.00 

8,550,000,000 8,550.00 8,550,000,000 8,550.00 

8,550.00 8,550 .00 

8,550.00 8,550.00 

a) The CCDs shall have a term of 5 lfive) years commencing from the date on which the CCDs are issued and allotted i.e. March 25, 2021. The CCDs holders are enti t led to receive a coupon on 

an annual basis at the rate of 6% per annum from the date of issue and allotment of CCDs. The CCDs coupon shall be payable on end of quarter from commencement of each subsequent 

quarter in which the interest became due. Each CCO is convertible at any time during the CCD term into one equity shares of face va lue of Rs. IO.The holder of CCDs subject to their discretion 

shall have the right to direct the company to convert any or all the CCDs at any time during the CCD term. 

b) The Company's investments In CCO's of Bhushan Power & Steel Limited amounting to Rs.8,450 crores were classified as fair value through profit and loss in the earlier years . In terms of para 
2.l(a) of Ind ASs 109, investment as 'interest in subsidiaries' are scoped out from measurement principles of Ind AS 109. Accordingly, th is investment basis Ind AS 109 and the terms should be 

treated as part of 'interests in subsidiaries' and earned at cost less impairment other than Ind AS 109. During the previous year ended March 31, 2023, based on techn ical note from expert 

obtained by the Company, it has reclassified the said investments from Investment in Subsidiary at FVTPL to Investment m Subsidiary at Cost. 

3. Current tax assets !Net) 

Particulars 

Tax Deducted at Source (net of provision for tax) 

4. Inventories 

Particulars 

Stock-in-trade"' (at cost or net real isable va lue) 

• Pertains to stock-in-transit of Rs. NIL 131st March 2023: Rs 4.18 crores) 

5. Trade receivables 

Particulars 

Trade Receivables considered good - Secured 

Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 

Trad e Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts 

Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Less : Allowance for doubtful debts 

Ageing as at 31 March 2024: 

Particulars Not yet due 

Undisputed trade receivables - considered good 65 .69 

Undisputed trade receivables - which have s1gnificant increase 

in credit risk 

Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired 

Disputed trade receivables - considered good 

Disputed trade receiva bles - which have significant increase in 

credit risk 

Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired 

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts 

Rs. in crores 

As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

26.39 23.84 

26.39 23.84 

Rs. in crores 

As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

4.18 

4.18 

Rs. in crores 

As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

117.49 36.91 

117.49 36.91 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as at Mar 31, 2024 

Less than 6 

months 
6 months -1 year 1-2 years More than 2 years Total 

41.76 4.13 5.90 117.49 
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Ageing as at 31 March 2023· 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as at 31 March 2023 

Particulars Less than 6 
Not yet due 

months 

Undisputed trade receivables - considered good 36.91 

Undisputed trade receivables• which have significant increase 

in credit risk 

Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired 

Disputed trade receiva bles • considered good 

credit risk 

Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired 

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts 

The cred it period on sales of goods ranges from 7 to 90 days with or wi thout security. 

Trade receivables does not include any receivables from directors and officers of the Company. 

Detai ls of trade receivables from re lated parties has been described in note 24 . 

Credit risk management regarding trade receivables has been described in note 26.4. 

6. Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Balances wi th bank 

in current acco unts 

7. Other current financial assets (unsecured) 

Particulars 

Security deposit 

Interest receivable on compulsory convertible debentures (CCDs) 

- from related pa rties 

Other financial assets 

8. Other current assets 

Particulars 

Indirect tax balances/ recoverable/credits 

9. Equity share capital 

Particulars 

Share Capital 

(a) Authorised : 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 

(b) Issued and subscribed 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year, fully paid up 

Add: Movement during the year 

Outstanding at the end of the year, fully paid up 

(c) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares : 

6 months -1 year 1-2 years 

As at March 31, 2024 

No. of shares Amount 

12,000,000,000 12,000.00 

6,100,000,000 6,092.92 

6,100,000,000 6,092.92 

More than 2 years 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

119 
1.19 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

0.27 

1,461.17 

0.01 

1,461 .45 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

25.67 

2S.67 

Total 

36.91 

Rs. in crores 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

0.03 

0.03 

Rs . in crores 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

0.27 

951.09 

0.01 

951.37 

Rs. in crores 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

24.93 

24.93 

Rs. in crores 

As at March 31, 2023 

No. of shares Amount 

12,000,000,000 12,000.00 

6,100,000,000 6,092.92 

6,100,000,000 6,092.92 

The Company has single class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each hol der of equ ity shares is entitled for one vote per share held . In the event of liqu idation, the equity 

shareholders are eligibl e to rece ive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amount, in proportion to their shareholding. 

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company are set out below: 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

JSW Steel Limited (JSW Steel) (including nominees) 

J5W Shipping & Logistics Private Limited 

(e) Promoter's shareholding: 

Promoter Name 

IJSW Steel Limited, the Holding Company 

IJSW Shipping & Logist ics Private Limited 

No. of Shares 

5,080,000,000 

1,020,000,000 

As at March 31, 2024 

No. of shares I % of total shares 

5,oso,ooo,ooo I 83 .28% 

1,020,000,000 I 16.72% 

% of Shares 

83.28% 

16.72% 

No. of Shares 

5,080,000,000 

1,020,000,000 

As at March 31, 2023 

No. of shares I % of total shares 

5,oso,ooo,ooo I 83.28% 

1,020,000,000 I 16.72% 

% of Shares 

83 .28% 

16.72% 

% change during the 

year 

0.00% 

0.00% 

If} Shares Allotted as Fully Paid-up pursuant to contracts without payment bemg received m cash during the year of five years 1mmedrately preceding the date of the balance sheet are as 
under: NIL 
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10. Other equity 

Particulars 

Retained earnings 

Capital reserve 

Money received against share warrants 

Debenture redemption reserve 

(a) Retained earnings 

Retained earnings are the profits/(losses) that the Company has ea rned till date . It is a free reserve available to the Company. 

(b) Capital reserve 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

441.56 

0.47 

14.00 

4S6.03 

Reserve is created primarily on merger as per statutory requirement. Th is reserve is utilised in accordance with the specific provision of the Companies Act, 2013. 

{c) Money received against share warrants 

Rs. in crores 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

0.47 

14.00 

246.58 

261.05 

The Company has issued 3,500,000,000 share warrants each to JSW Steel and JSW Shipping respectively with a subscription price of Rs. 0.02 per wa rra nt. The exercise period is five years from 

the days of issue of the wa rran ts and the warrant holders at their discretion shall be entitled to purchase one equity share of the face val ue of Rs. 10 each at an exercise price of Rs 10. 

(d) Debenture redemption reserve 

The Indian Companies Act requ ires Companies that issue debentures to create a debenture redemption reserve from annual profits until such debentures are red eemed. Co mpanies are 

required to maintain 10% as a reserve of outstanding redeemable debentures. Debenture redemption reserve has been transferred to free reserves on account of redemption of debentures. 

11. Borrowings 

Particulars 

Non~current borrowings (Unsecured) 

(ii Oebentures 

Borrowings through Non convertible bonds INCBs) 

Less: Unamortised upfront fees on borrowings 

Less: Current maturities of long term debt from a related party classified as short term borrowings 

(ii) Term loans 

From related party 

(a) Borrowings through NCBs 

Part iculars 

Non-Co nvertibles Bonds (NCBs) 

lb) Loan from JSW Steel Limited 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

2,500 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

3,256.27 

3,256.27 

Term of repayment 

Rs . in crores 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

2,500.00 

118.64) 

2,481.36 

12,481.36) 

112.27 

112.27 

Unsecured NCBs of Rs. 10,00,000 each aggregating to Rs. 2,500 
crores has been redeemed on March 22, 2024 at a premium of 9% 

compounded annual ly and paid at redemption . 

The Company had borrowed Rs. 4,00,00,000 from JSW Steel limited at the interest rate of 10. 75% wh ich was due for repaym ent on March 31, 2024 however, the said loan has been extended 
by another two years through an amendment to a origina l loan agreement at the revised interest rate of 10.65% and will now be due for repayment on March 31, 2026. Accordingly, the same 

has been classified as non-current only. The principal and accrued interest thereon shal l be unsecured obligat ions of the Company, and rank pari passu with any other unsecured and 
unsubordinated creditors of the Company. 

The Company had borrowed Rs . 52,00,00,000 from JSW Steel limited at the interest rate of 11.25% which was due for repayment on March 31, 2024 however, the said loan has been extended 

by another two years through an amendment to a original loan agreement at the rev ised interest rate of 10.65% and will now be due for repayment on March 31, 2026. Accordingly the same 

has been classified as non-current only. The principal and accrued interest thereon shall be unsecured obligations of the Company, and rank pari passu with any other unsecured and 
unsubordinated cred itors of the Company. 

The Company had borrowed Rs. 56,27,12,500 from JSW Steel Limited at the interest rate of 11.25% which was due for repayme nt on March 31, 2024 however, the sa id loan has been extended 

by another two years through an amendment to a original loan agreement at the revised interest rate of 10.65% and will now be due for repayment on March 31, 2026, accordingly the same 

has been classified as non-current only. The principal and accrued interest thereon shall be unsecured obligations of the Company, and rank pari passu with any other unsecured and 
unsubordinated cred itors of the Company. 

The Company has borrowed Rs. 378,00,00,000 from JSW Steel Limited bearing an interest rate of 10.60% and is repayable after two years from the date of respective disbursement date 
(i.e June 30, 2025) 

The Company has borrowed Rs. 2766,00,00,000 from JSW Steel Limited bearing an interest rate of 10.65% and is repayab le after two years from the date of respective disbursement date 
li .e March 20, 2026) 

12. Other non-current financial liabilities Rs. in crores 

Particulars 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

35 .89 

35.89 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

6.09 

6.09 
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13. Borrowings 

Particulars 

Current borrowings 

Current maturit ies of non convertible debenture (refer note 11) 

14. Trade payables 

Particulars 

(a) Tota l outstanding, dues of micro and sma ll enterpri ses 

Asat 

March 31, 2024 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

Disclosure pertaining to micro, small and medium enterprises (as per information available with the Company) 

Description 

Principal amount due outsta nding as at end of year 

Principal amount overdue more tha n 45 days 

Interest due on above and unpaid as at end of yea r 

Interest paid to the supplier 

Payments made to the su pplier beyond the appointed day 
during the year 

Interest due and payable for the year of delay 

Interest accrued and remai ning unpaid as at end of yea r 

Amount of further interest remai ning due and paya ble in 

succeeding year 

(b) Total outsta nding, dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 

Acceptances 

Other than accepta nces 

Ageing as at March 31, 2024 

Particulars Unbilled 

MSME 

Acceptances 

Others than acceptances 0.10 

Disputed dues - MSME 

Disputed dues - Others 

Ageing as at March 31, 2023 

Particulars Unbilled 

MSME 

Acceptances 

Others than acceptances 0.13 

Disputed dues - MSME 

D,sputed dues - Others 
Payables are normal ly settled w1th1 n 180 days. 

Trade payables from re lated parties deta ils has been described ,n note 24 

15. Other current financial liabilities 

Particulars 

Interest accrued but not du e on borrowings 

Premium on redemption of non-convertible debentures 

16. Other current liabilities 

Particulars 

Advance from customer 

Statutory liabilit ies 

Not yet due 

113.99 

Not yet due 

43.94 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

115.10 

115.10 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years More than 2 years 

1.01 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 

1.03 

More than 2 years 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

134.51 

134.51 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

12.47 

79.02 

Rs. in crores 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

2,481.36 

2,481 .36 

Rs. in crores 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

45.10 

45.10 

Total 

115.10 

Total 

45.10 

-

Rs. in crores 

Asat 
March 31, 2023 

116.46 

476.06 

592.52 

Rs. in crores 

As at 
March 31, 2023 
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17. Revenue from operations 

Particulars 

Sa le of traded goods 

Product-wise turnover 

Particulars 

Hot rolled coils 

Ind AS 115 (Revenue from contracts with customers) 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

644.86 

644.86 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

644.86 

644.86 

Rs . in crores 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

45.46 

45.46 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

45.46 

45.46 

The Company recogn ises revenue when contro l over the promised goods or services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects 

to be ent itled in exchange for those goods or services. 

The Company has assessed and determined the following categories for disaggregation of revenue in addition to that provided under segment disclosure (refer note 27) : 

Particulars 

Revenue from contracts with customer - sale of products 

Tra ding of st eel products 

Total revenue from operations 

India 

Outside India 

Total revenue from operations 

Timing of revenue recognition 

At a point in tim e 

Total revenue from operations 

Contract balances 

Particulars 

Trade receivables (refer note 5) 

18. Other income 

Particulars 

Interest Income ea rned on financial assets designated as amortised cost 

Compulsory co nvertible debentu res (CCDs) 

Bank Deposits 

Other miscellaneous income 

19. Purchase of stock-in-trade 

Particulars 

Purchase of traded goods 

20. Finance costs 

Particulars 

Premium on redempt ion of non-convertible debentures 

Inte rest on borrowings from related pa rt ies (re fer note 24) 

Unwinding of rnterest on financial liabil it ies carried at amort ised cost 

Other borrowing costs 

21. Other expenses 

Particulars 

Legal and professional fees 

Miscellaneous expenses 

CSR expenditure (re fer note 21.b) 

a) Auditors remuneration (excluding ta x) included in legal and professional Fees 
As Statutory audit fees (incl uding limited reviews) 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

644.86 

644.86 

644.86 

644.86 

644.86 

644.86 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

117.49 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

570.19 

24.88 

0.05 

595 .12 

For the year ended 

M arch 31, 2024 

639.53 

639.53 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

260.79 

53.17 

18.64 

332.60 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

0.40 

0.10 

1.94 

2.44 

0. 14 

Rs . in crores 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

45.46 

45 .46 

45.46 

45.46 

45.46 

45.46 

Rs. in crores 

Asat 
March 31, 2023 

36.91 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

537.92 

0.02 

537.94 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

49.89 

49.89 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

245. 73 

6.42 

12.14 

47.69 

311.98 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

0.51 

0. 07 

0.44 

1.02 

Rs. in crores 
0.25 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statem ents 

b) Corporate social responsibility (CSR) Rs. in crores 

The Company has incurred an amount of Rs. 1.94 crores (31 March, 2023 Rs. 0.44 crores) towards Corporate Social Responsibi li ty (CSR) as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and is 

included in other expenses 

I Particular 

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by th e Company during the year 

(b) Amount spent on : 

(i) Construction/ acq uisition of assets 

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above (for CSR projects) 

(c) Details of related party transactions 

(d) Nature of CSR activi ti es 

22. Earnings per share 

Particulars 

Net profit/ (loss) attributable to equ ity shareholders for the year (A) 

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of 

calculating basic earnings per sha re (B) 

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of 

calculati ng diluted earnings per share (C) 

Earnings per share 

Basic (Face value of Rs. 10 each) (A/8) 

Di luted (Face value of Rs. 10 each ) (A/B) 

23. Income Tax 

A. Income Tax expense 

Particulars 

Current tax 
Deferred tax 

Total tax expense 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended 31 March ,2024 For the year ended 31 March ,2023 

Yet to be paid in Yet to be paid in 
In- Cash 

cash 
In- Cash 

cash 
1.94 0.44 

1.94 0.44 

Amount paid to JSW Foundation, a rela ted party ,n relation to CSR expend 1ture(refer 

note 24) 

l. Public hea lth infrastructu re, capacity bu ilding & suppo rt progra ms 

2. Project management cost 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

194.98 

6,100,000,000 

6,100,000,000 

0.32 

0.32 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

66.24 
0.01 

66.25 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

168.04 

6,100,000,000 

6,100,000,000 

0.28 

0.28 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

56.69 
(0.04) 
56.65 

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit before tax at the statutory income tax rate to recognised income tax expense for the yea r indicated are as fol lows: 

Particulars 

Effective tax rate reconciliation 

Profit before tax 

Enacted tax rate in India 

Expected incom e tax expense at statutory tax rate 

Tax effect of expenses not deductible in determining taxable profits 

Deferred tax 

Tax Provision/{reversal) for earlier yea rs on finalisation of income tax returns 

Tax expense for the year 

Effective income tax rate 

8 . Deferred tax asset (net) 

Deferred tax balance in re lation to 

Others 

Total tax expense 

Deferred tax balance in relation to 

Others 

Total tax expense 

As at 31-Mar-23 

0.04 

0.04 

As at 31-Mar-22 

Recognised 

/reversed through 

profit and loss 

(0.01) 

(0.01) 

Recognised 

/reversed through 

profit and loss 

0.04 

0.04 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

261.23 

25.17% 

65 .75 

0.01 

0.49 

66.24 

25 .36% 

Recognised 

/reclassified from 

other comprehensive 

income 

Recognised 

/reclassified from 
other comprehensive 

income 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

224.69 

25 .17% 

56.65 

0.04 

56.69 

25.23% 

Rs. in crores 

As at 31-Mar-24 

0.03 

0.03 

As at 31-Mar-23 

0.04 

0.04 



PIOMRINO ~TFFI I IMITFO 

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements 

24. Related party disclosur es as r equired by Ind AS 24 

A. Re lationships 

1. Holding Company 

JSW Steel Limited 

2. Subsidiary Company 

Bhushan Power & Steel Limited 

3. Fellow Subsidiary Company 

JSW Steel Coated Products Limited 

Asian Color Coated I spat Limited !amalgamated with JSW Steel Coated Products Limited with effect from February 24, 2023) 

National Steel and Agro Industries Limited 

4. Key Management Personnel 

Mr. Kaustubh Kulkarn i 

Mr. Mohit Goyal 

Mr. Alok Kumar M ishra 

5. Board of Directors 

Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta 

M r. Anil Kumar Singh 

Mr. Divyakumar Bhair 

M r. Anunay Kumar 

Dr. (Mrs.) Rakhi Ja,n 

6. Other related party 

JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited 

B. Transa ctions with related parties 

Particulars 

Bhushan Power & Steel Limited 

Purchase of steel products 

Interest income 

JSW Steel Limited 

Loa n rece ived 

Finance costs 

Purchase of steel products 

Sa le of steel products 

Rent expense 

JSW Steel Coated Products Limited 

Sale of steel products 

Nat ional Steel and Agro Indust ri es limited 

Sale of steel products 

JSW Foundation 

CSR expenditure 

Director Remuneration 

Remuneration to Kaustabh Kulkarni• 
*Rs. 1000 
Notes : 
1. Transactions are inclusive of taxes wherever applicable. 
Compensation to key management personnel: 

Nature of Transactions 

Short-term employee benefits 

Post-employment benefits 

Other long-term benefits 

Term ination benefits 

Share-based payment 

Total Compensation to key management personnel 

Chief Executive Officer 

Chief Financial Officer 

Company Secretary 

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 

Non -Independent Non-Executive Director 

Independent Non-Executive Director 

Independent Non-Executive Director 

For th e year ended 

March 31, 2024 

192.42 

570.19 

3,144.00 

53 .17 

557.16 

5.07 

0.02 

472.78 

278.82 

1.94 

0.00 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

537.92 

56.27 

6.42 

41.81 

0.01 

23.39 

0.44 

0.00 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

2. The Independent Non-Executive Directors are paid remuneration by way of sitting fees. The Company paid to them by way of sitting fees during current yea r is Rs. 0.044 crores (previous year 

Rs. 0.018 crores), which is not in cl uded above. 

Terms and conditions : 

Sales 
The sales to related pa rties are ma de on terms equivalent to those that preva il m arm's length transactions and in the ordinary course of business . Sa les transactions are based on prevailing 

price lists and memorandum of understanding signed with related parties. For the year ended 31 March, 2024, the Company has not recorded any impairm ent of receivables relating to amounts 

owed by related part ies 

Purchases 

The purcha ses from re lated part ies are made on terms eqwvalent to those that prevai l 1n arm's length transactions and in the ordinary course of business. Purchase transact ions are based on 

made on normal comme rcia l terms and conditions and market rates 

The transactions other than mentioned above are also in the ordinary course of business and at arms' length basis. 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements 

C. Balances with re lated parties 

Part iculars 

Bhushan Power & Steel limited 

Interest receivable 

Trade Payables 

JSW Steel Limited 

Loan outstanding 

Interest paya ble 

Trade payables 

Trade receivables 

JSW Steel Coated Products Limited 

Trade receivables 

Advance received from customer 

National Steel and Agro Industries Limited 

Trade receivables 

JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited 

Interest payable 

JSW Foundation 

CSR expenditure 

25. Financial Instruments 

25 .1 Capital Risk Management 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

12.69 

3,256.27 

170.40 

96.20 

5.07 

12.47 

102.39 

0.47 

Rs. in crores 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

112.27 

122.08 

43.59 

23.38 

0.47 

0.44 

The Company maintains a strong credit rating through optimum mix of debt and equity. The princrpal source of funding of the Company is from inter corporate loans, capital markets and 
investors . The Company is not subJect to any externa lly imposed capital requirements. The Company regularly considers other fina ncing and refinancing opportunities to diversi fy its debt 

profile, reduce interest cost and elongate the maturity of its debt portfolio. The Company monitors its capita l using gearing ratio, which is net debt, divided to total equity. Net debt includes, 

inte rest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents and current investments. 

Particulars 

Borrowings 

l ess: Cash and cash equivalent 

Net debt 

Total equity 

Gearing ratio 

Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Company that are managed as capital and debt is defined as long and short term borrowings. 

Debt is defined as long and short term borrowings as described in notes 11 and 13 

25 .2 Categories of financial instruments 

The accounting classification of each category of financial instruments and their carrying amounts are set out below: 

As at March 31, 2024 

Part iculars 

Financial assets 

Trade receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Other financia l assets 

Total 

Financial liabilities 

Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 

Tra de payables 

Other financial liabil ities 

Total 

As at March 31, 2023 

Part iculars 

Financial assets 

Trade receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Other financial assets 

Total 

Financial liabilities 

Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 

Trade payables 

Other financial liabilities 

Tota l 

26. Fair va lue hierarchy of financial instruments 

Amortised cost 
Fair value through 

profit and loss 

117.49 

1.19 

1,461.45 

1,580.13 

3,256.27 

115.10 

170.40 

3,541.77 

Amortised cost 
Fair va lue t hrough 

profit and loss 

36.91 

0.03 

951.37 

988.31 

2,593.63 

45.10 

598.60 

3,237.33 

Fair value through 
OCI 

Fair va lue through 

OCI 

As at 

March 31 2024 
3,256.27 

11.19) 

3,255.08 

6,548.95 

Total carrying value 

117.49 

1.19 

1,461.45 

1,580.13 

3,256.27 

115.10 

170.40 

3,541.77 

Total carrying value 

36.91 

0.03 

951.37 

988,31 

2,593.63 

45 .10 

598.60 

3,237.33 

Rs. in crores 
As at 

March 31 2023 
2,593.63 

10.03) 

2,593.60 

6,353.96 

0 .41 

Rs. in crores 

Total fair value 

117.49 

1.19 

1,461.45 

1,580.13 

3,256.27 

115.10 

170.40 

3,541.77 

Rs. in crores 

Total fair value 

36.91 

0.03 

951.37 

988.31 

2,593.63 

45.10 

598.60 

3,237.33 

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, t ra de payables, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets and other financial liabi lities (other than those specifically disclosed) are considered 

to be the same as their fai r values, due to their short-term nature. A significant part of the financial assets is classified as Level 2. The fair value of these assets is marked to an active market or 

based on observable market data . The fina ncia l assets carried at fair value by the Company are mainly investments in debt securities, accordingly, any material volatility is not expected . 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 

Notes form ing part of the standalone financial statements 

Details of financial assets/l iabilities measured at amortised cost but fa ir value disclosed in category-wise 

Particu lars 

Long term borrow ings (Including current maturities) 

Carrying va lue 

Fair value 

*There have been no transfers between level 1 and Level 2 during the period. 

26.1 Market risk management 

Level and valuation t echniques* 

Level 2, estimated by discounting 

expected future cash flows using a 

discount rate equiva lent to the risk.free 

rate of return adjusted for credit spread 

considered by lenders for instruments of 

similar maturities. 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

3,256.27 

3,256.27 

Rs. in crores 

As at 

M arch 31, 2023 

2,593 .63 

2,593.63 

Market r is k is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in rea lisable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financia l inst rument. The value of a financial 

instrument may change as a result of changes in interest rates, price fluctuations, liquidity and other market changes. Future specific market movements cannot be norma lly predicted with 

reasonable accuracy. 

26.2 Interest risk managem ent 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair va lue or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is not exposed to interest 

rate risk because funds are borrowed at fixed interest rates . The borrowings of the Company are princ ipally denominated in rupees with fixed rates of interest. 

26.3 liquidity risk management 
Liquidity risk refers to the risk of financ ial distress or extraordinary high financing costs arising due to shortage of liquid funds in a situation where busi ness conditions unexpectedly deteriorate 
and requiring financing. 

As at March 31, 2024 

Particulars 

Financia l assets 

Trade receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Other financial assets 

Total 
Financial liabilities 

Long term borrowings 

Trade payables 

Other financial habilities 

Total 

As at March 31, 2023 

Particulars 

Financial assets 

Trade receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Other financial assets 

Total 

Financial liabilities 

Long term borrowings 

Trade payables 

Other financial liabilit ies 

Total 

26.4 Credit risk management 

< 1 year 

111.59 

1.19 
1,461.45 

1,574.22 

114.09 

134.51 

248.60 

< 1 year 

36.91 

0.03 

951.37 

988.31 

2,481.36 

45.10 

592.51 

3,118.97 

1-5 years 

5.90 

5.90 

3,256.27 

1.01 

35.89 

3,293 .17 

1-5 years 

112.27 

6.09 

118.36 

> S years 

> S years 

Rs. in crores 

Total 

117.49 

1.19 

1,461.45 

1,580 .13 

3.256.27 

115.10 

170.40 

3,541.77 

Rs. in crores 

Total 

36.91 

0.03 

951.37 

988.31 

2,593.63 

45 .10 

598.60 

3,237.33 

Credit ri sk refers to the risk that a cou nterparty wi ll default on its contractual obligations resulting in financia l loss to the Company. Currently, the Company has limited customer base . The 

Company selects customers after due diligence based on creditworthiness as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. 

27. Segment report ing 

The Company is in the business of coal and steel products trading activity, primarily operated in India and regu larly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker for assessment of 

Company's performance and resource allocation. The information relat ing to revenue from external customers and location of non•current assets of its single reportable segment has been 

disclosed as below: 

Particula rs 

Domestic 

Revenue from operations have been allocated on the basis of location of customers . 

b. Non•current assets 

All non•current assets of the Company are located in India. 

c. Customer contributing more th an 10% of revenue 

Particulars 

JSW Steel Coated Products Limited 

Namco Industries Private Limited 

National Steel and Agro Industries Limited 

For the year ended 

M arch 31, 2024 

644.86 

644.86 

For t he year ended 

March 31, 2024 

400.09 

4.19 

236.29 

640.56 

Rs. in crores 

For the yea r ended 
M arch 31, 2023 

45.46 

45.46 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended 

M arch 31, 2023 

23.39 

13.52 

36 .91 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements 

28 . Contingent Liabilities 

The Company does not have any contingent liabil ities as on March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023 : Nil) . 

29. Previous year's f igures have been reclassified/regrouped, wherever necessary, to confirm wi th the current penod class1ficat1on m comply with requ1rements of 

the amended Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. 

30. Audit Trails (edit logs) 

Th e Company used tally accounting software wh ich did not have feature for record ing audit trails (edit logs) for maintaining its books of account, until 30 

November 2023. The Company has started maintaining books of accounts in SAP software with effect from 1 December, 2023 which has feature of recording audit 

trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring 

that the audit trail cannot be disabled, throughout the year as required by proviso to sub rule (1) of rule 3 of The Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 known as the 

Companies (Accou nts) Amendment Rules, 2021. However, the audit trai l feature is not enabled for direct changes to data In the underlying database and in the 

application when usmg certain privileged access rights . The Company as per its policy has not granted privilege access for change to data in the underlymg 

database as evident from the manual log being maintained in this regard and further privilege access rights to application are restricted only to specific authorised 

users for which audit trail exists except in certain debugging cases. 

The Company in the month of March 2024 has also implemented Privileged Access Management tool (PAM), onboarded the SAP database servers on the PAM tool 

and the process of monitoring database is currently under test ing phase. The PAM Is an 1dent1ty management tool which focuses on the control, monitoring, and 

protection of privi leged accounts within an organization. The PAM tool saves complete screen video recording sessions of all the ad mm act1vit1es as soon as they 

authenticate on the PAM console and connect to the target resources (Servers, Network Devices, Appl1cat,ons and Database) which acts as an audit trail featu re. 

31. Ratio Analysis 

S No Ratios Numerator Denominator FY 23-24 FY 22-23 % Change 
Change in ratio in excess of 25% 

compared to preceding year 

1 Current Ratio (In times) Current Assets Current Liabilities 4.71 0.33 1343.13% 
Change is mainly due to non 

convertible debenture redemption 

2 Debt Equity Ratro (In times) Tota l Borrowings Total Equity 0.50 0.41 21.81% 

Profit before Tax, 

3 Debt service coverage ratio (tn times) 
Exceptional Items, Net Finance Charges, 

0.17 0.19 -13.30% 
Depreciation . Net Long-term borrowmgs 

Fmance Charges 

4 Return on Equity(%) Profit after tax 
Average 

3.02% 2.68% 12.77% 
Shareholder's equity 

Cost of Goods 
Change 1s due to higher sa les and 

5 Inventory Turnover Average Inventory 308.06 21.88 1308.22% no goods lymg in the inventory 
Sold 

during the current year. 

Quantum of change IS due to 

6 Debtors Turnover (I n times} Gross sales 
Average Trade 

8.35 0.19 4296.38% increase in turnover is more than 
receivables 

increase in trade receivables. 

Purchases of stock 
Average trade 

Quantum of change IS due to 
7 Trade payables turnover (In times) m-trade + change 8.04 0.19 4227.24% increase In purchases 1s more than 

in inventory 
payables 

increase in trade payables. 

Increase was primarily on account 
8 Net capi ta l turnover (In times) Net Sales Working Capital 0. 51 (0.02) -2456.97% of higher sales and non convertible 

debenture redemption 

Net profit for the 
Lower pro fit margin attributable to 

9 Net Profit Margin(%) Total Income 15.72% 28.80% -45.41% increase in CSR expenses and 
year 

Finance cost 

Profit before Tax, Capital employed::: 

10 Return on capital employed(%) 
Exceptional Items, 

Depreciation and 

Tangible Net Worth+ 

Tota l Debt+ Deferred 
6.06% 6.00% 0.97% 

Finance Cost Tax Lrabtlity 

11 Return on Investment"' NA NA NA NA NA 

Note: Above rat ios are based on the standalone financial statements of the Company. 

"'The Company has neither made any new investmen t, nor declared any d1v1dend m the current year. Further, all the invcsments of the Company are unquoted. 

Th us, this ratio is not applicable. 
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PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Regd Office: 6th Floor, Grande Palladium, 175, CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai 400 098 

Ph. No: +91 22 68511 2'100 CfN: U27320MH2018PLC37'1653 
Website: https://ww .js .in/group /piombino-steel-limited 

AGM NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that the 05th Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of 
Piombino Steel Limited will be held on Thursday, July 20, 2023 at 02.30 pm at JSW 
Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051 to transact the following 
business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone and Consolldated Flnanclal 
Statements (Audited Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow 
Statement) for the yP.ar P.nded 31st March, 2023, together with the Reports of 
the Board of Directors and thP. Auditors thereon, and, in this regard, to consider 
and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutlon as an Ordinary Resolution:. 

"RESOLVED THAT tl1e Audited Financial Statements of the Cornpany For Lhe 

financial year ended March 31, 2023, together with the Reports of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon and the Audited Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 together 
with the Reports of the Auditors thereon as circulated to the Members be and are 
hereby received, considered and adopted". 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta (DIN 02339000), who 
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, and in 
this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as 
Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. 
Manoj Kumar Mohta (DIN 02339000), who retires by rotation as a Director at this 
Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment, be 
and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company whose period of office 
shall be liable to determination by retirement of Directors by rotation". 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

3. Approval for undertaking Material Related Party Transactions (MRPTs) 
with JSW Steel Limited. 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
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"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time ("SEBI 
Listing Regulations"), the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
("Act") and the rules framed thereunder, (including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), other applicable 
statutory provisions and regulations, if any, (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re- enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the 
Memorandum and Articles of Association of Piombino Steel Limited ("the 
Company or PSL"), PSL's Policy on Related Party Transactions basis, approval 
and recommendation of the Audit Committee and Board of Directors of PSL and 
subject to such other necessary registrations, consents, permissions, approvals 
and sanctions required, if any, from any authorities under any laws or regulations 
or guidelines, approval of the members of PSL be and is hereby accorded to 
continue with the existing contract(s)/arrangement(s)/transaction(s) and/or 
enter into execute new contract(s)/ arrangement(s) / transaction(s) (whether 
by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together or a series of 
transactions or otherwise) as mentioned in the explanatory statement, with JSW 
Steel Limited ("JSWSL"), holding of PSL and accordingly a related party under 
Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and within the meaning of 
Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013, on such terms and conditions as may 
be agreed to between PSL and JSWSL for : 

(1) additional funding to the extent of Rs.3,300 crores in the form of 
investment/ loan; 

(2) the extension of maturity of earlier extended loan facility by JSWSL to PSL 
amounting Rs.200 crores for a further period of two years; 

(3) expenditure on investment / loan to the extent of Rs.800 crores over a 
period of two years; and 

(4) purchase of steel products and other transactions as set out in the 
explanatory statement to the extent of Rs.1,450 crores 

for an aggregate value upto Rs.5, 750 crores during the financial year 2023-24 
and 2024-25, subject to such contract(s) / arrangement(s) / transaction(s) being 
carried out at arm's length and in the ordinary course of business of PSL. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as 
"Board", which term shall include any duly authorised Committee constituted by 

0 S te<9/ the Board), be and is hereby authorised, to do and perform all such acts, deeds, 
-o-□C.- matters and things, as may be necessary, including finalising the terms and 
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conditions, methods and modes in respect thereof and finalising and executing 
necessary documents, including contract(s), scheme(s), agreement(s) and such 
other documents, file applications and make representations in respect thereof 
and seek approval from relevant authorities including Governmental/ regulatory 
authorities, as applicable, in this regard and to deal with any matters, take 
necessary steps as the Board may, in its absolute discretion deem necessary, 
desirable or expedient, to give effect to this resolution and to settle any question 
that may arise in this regard and incidental thereto, without being required to 
seek any further consent or approval of the Members or otherwise to the end and 
intent that the Members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto 
expressly by the authority of this resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board, be and is hereby authorised to delegate 
all or any of the powers herein conferred to any Director(s) or Chief Executive 
Officer or Chief Financial Officer or Company Secretary & Compliance Officer or 
any other Officer(s) / Authorised Representative(s) of PSL, to do all such acts 
and to take such steps, as may be considered necessary or expedient, to give 
effect to this resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board, or any person so 
authorised by the Board, in connection with any matter referred to or 
contemplated in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and 
confirmed in all respects." 

4 . Approval for Material Related Party Transactions (MRPTs) between 
Bhushan Power & Steel Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the 
Company and JSW Coated Steel Products Limited, a wholly owned 
subsidiary of JSW Steel Limited. 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the prov1s1ons of Regulation 23(4) of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time ("SEBI 
Listing Regulations"), the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
("Act") and the rules framed thereunder, (including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), other applicublc 
statutory provisions and regulations, if any, (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re- enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the 
Memorandum and Article of Association of Piombino Steel Limited ("the 
Company or PSL"), PSL's Policy on Related Party Transactioo-. _ e_~ is the 
approval and recommendation of Audit Committee and Board of ~ ~ PSL 
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and subject to such other necessary registrations, consents, permIssIons, 
approvals and sanctions required, if any, from any authorities under any laws 
or regulations or guidelines, approval of the Members of PSL be and is hereby 
accorded for related party contract(s) / arrangement(s) /transaction(s) (whether 
by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together or series of 
transactions or otherwise) as mentioned in the explanatory statement, to be 
entered into and/or to be executed and/or to be continued between Bhushan 
Power & Limited (BPSL), a wholly owned subsidiary company of PSL (a "Related 
Party" within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing Regulations) and JSW Coated Steel Products 
Limited (JSW Coated), (a wholly owned subsidiary Company of JSW Steel 
Limited) for: 

(1) Purchase of Hot Rolled Coils, Cold Rolled Full Hard coils and steel products, 
spares & other products by JSW Coated from BPSL; 

(2) Sale of spares/ zinc dross/ equipment/ other products by JSW Coated to 
BPSL; 

for an aggregate value upto Rs.7,166 crores during financial year 2023-24 and 
2024-25 subject to such contract(s) / arrangement(s) / transaction(s) being 
carried out at arm's length and in the ordinary course of business of BPSL and 
JSW Coated. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as 
"Board", which term shall include any duly authorised Committee constituted by 
the Board), be and is hereby authorised, to do and perform all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things, as may be necessary, including finalising the terms and 
conditions, methods and modes in respect thereof and finalising and executing 
necessary documents, including contract(s), scheme(s), agreement(s) and such 
other documents, file applications and make representation in respect thereof 
and seek approval from relevant authorities, including Governmental/ regulatory 
authorities, as applicable, in this regard and to deal with any matters, take 
necessary steps as the Board may, in its absolute discretion deem necessary, 
desirable or expedient, to give effect to this resolution and to settle any question 
that may arise in this regard and incidental thereto, without being required to 
seek any further consent or approval of the members or otherwise to the end and 
intent that the Members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto 
expressly by the authority of this resolution. 

~ RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board, be and is hereby 9. • rise to' elegate 
all or any of the powers herein conferred to any Director(I ~ r Chi ~-~~ecutive 
Officer or Chief Financial Officer or Company Secretary or a ·: oti:re_JCD'fficer(s) / 
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Authorised Representative(s) of PSL, to do all such acts and to take such steps, 
as may be considered necessary or expedient, to give effect to this resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board, or any person so 
authorised by the Board, in connection with any matter referred to or 
contemplated in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and 
confirmed in all respects." 

Place: Jharsuguda 
Date: May 10, 2023 

By Order of the Board 
For Piombino Steel Limited 

~A/4k_ 
Alok Kumar Mishra 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Membership No.: A-15967 
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NOTES FOR MEMBERS' ATTENTION: 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS 
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF 
HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE 
COMPANY. 

The instrument(s) appointing the proxy, if any, shall be deposited at the 
Registered Office of the Company at 6th Floor, Grande Palladium, 175, CST Road, 
Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai 400 098 by not less than forty-eight ( 48) hours 
before the commencement of the Meeting and in default, the instrument of proxy 
shall be treated as invalid. Proxies shall not have any right to speak at the 
meeting. 

2. Members/Proxies should fill the Attendance Slip for attending the Meeting and 
bring their Attendance Slip along with their copy of the Annual Report to the 
Meeting. 

3. In case of Joint Holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is 
higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote. 

4 . Members who hold shares in dematerialised form are requested to write their DP 
ID and Client ID number(s) and those who hold share(s) in physical form are 
requested to write their Folio Number(s) in the attendance slip for attending the 
Meeting to facilitate identification of membership at the Meeting. 

5. Corporate Members are entitled to appoint authorized representatives to attend 
the AGM and vote on their behalf. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e., 
other than individuals/ HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned certified 
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of their Board or governing body's 
Resolution/Authorisation, authorising their representative to attend the AGM and 
vote on their behalf. 

6. The statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 setting 
out the material facts in respect of the business under Item Nos. 2 to 4 set out 
above and clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (55-2) issued 
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of the persons 
seeking appointment/ re-appointment as Director at the AGM, is annexed hereto. 

7. In compliance with MCA Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2!)21 read with 
Circular No. 20 dated May 5, 2020, Notice of the AGM along/ wi-tl\i>,t ., nnual 
Report 2022-23 is being sent only through electronic mode 
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whose email addresses are registered with the Company. Members may note that 
the Notice and Annual Report 2022-23 will also be available on the Company's 
website at https://www.jsw.in/group/piombino-steel-limited. 

8. The Register of Directors' and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding 
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of 
Contracts and Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under 
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other documents referred to in 
the Notice or statement will be available for inspection at the Registered office of 
the Company during all working day from 11.00 A.M to 1.00 P.M. till the date of 
Annual General Meeting. 

9. Members having any queries relating to the Annual Report are requested to send 
their question at the registered office of the Company at least 7 days before the 
date of Annual General Meeting. 

10. Every member entitled to vote at the Annual General Meeting of the Company 
can inspect the proxies lodged at the Company at any time during the business 
hours of the Company during the period beginning twenty-four (24) hours before 
the time fixed for the commencement of the Annual General Meeting and ending 
on the conclusion of the meeting. However, a prior notice of not less than three 
(3) days in writing of the intention to inspect the proxies lodged shall be required 
to be provided to the Company. 

11. Route Map is annexed to this Notice. 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 
(Pursuant to Section 230(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Section 

102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013) 

ITEM NO. 3 & 4 : 

Post listing of Non-Convertible Bonds (NCBs) on June 17, 2022, the Company has 
become high value debt listed entity and various provisions of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations") have been applicable to it. 

In terms of Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (SEBI 
Listing Regulations"), any transaction with a related party shall be considered 
material, if the transaction(s) entered into/ to be entered into individually or taken 
together with previous transactions during a financial year exceeds Rs.1,000 crores 
or 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the company as per the last audited 
financial statements of the company, whichever is lower. All Material Related Party 
Transactions ("MRPTs") shall require prior approval of the shareholders by means 
of an ordinary resolution, even if the transactions are in the ordinary course of 
business of the concerned company and on arm's length basis. 

The provisions of Regulation 23(4) requiring approval of the shareholders are not 
applicable for the Material RPTs ("MRPT") entered into between a holding 
Company and its wholly owned subsidiary and MRPTs entered into between two 
wholly owned subsidiaries of the listed holding company, whose accounts are 
consolidated with such holding company and placed before the shareholders at the 
general meeting for approval. Further Regulation 2(1)(zc) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations has also enhanced the definition of related party transaction which 
now includes a transaction involving a transfer of resources, services or obligations 
between; (i) a listed entity or any of its subsidiaries on the one hand and a related 
party of the listed entity or any of its subsidiaries on the other hand; or (ii) a listed 
entity or any of its subsidiaries on one hand and any other person or entity on the 
other hand, the purpose and effect of which is to benefit any related party of the 
listed entity or any of its subsidiaries, regardless of whether a price is charged. 

Accordingly, RPTs of Piombino Steel Limited ("Company" or "PSL") and RPTs of its 
holding company and subsidiary company exceeding the aforesaid threshold of 
Rs.1000 crores or 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per 
the last audited financial statements, whichever is lower, shall be treated as 
Material Related Party Transaction ("MRPTs") and are placed for approval of the 
shareholders of the Company vide item No. 3 & 4. 
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The Company has provided the Audit Committee with the relevant details, of the 
proposed RPTs, as required under the regulations, including material terms and 
basis of pricing. The Audit Committee, after reviewing all necessary information, 
has unanimously granted approval for entering into the below mentioned RPTs. 
The Audit Committee has further noted that the transactions will be at arm's length 
basis and in the ordinary course of business of the Company. Accordingly, basis 
the approval of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors recommended the 
resolutions contained in Item Nos 3 & 4 of the accompanying Notice to the 
shareholders for approval. 

In terms of the provisions of SEBI Listing Regulations, the related parties as 
defined thereunder (whether such related party or parties are a party to the 
aforesaid transactions or not) shall not vote to approve resolutions under item no. 
3 &4. 

ITEM NO. 3 

Approval for undertaking material related party transaction(s) with JSW 
Steel Limited 

On March 26, 2021, JSW Steel Limited through the Company completed the 
acquisition of Bhushan Power & Steel Limited ("BPSL") by implementing the 
resolution plan approved under IBC Code, basis an agreement entered into with 
the erstwhile Committee of Creditors. BPSL has state-of-art steel production 
facilities in Odisha catering to both domestic and international market. BPSL 
operates with an existing capacity of 3.50 MTPA. BPSL has expanded its capacity 
from 2. 75 MTPA to 3.50 MTPA in Phase-1 and is further expanding its capacity 
from 3.50 MTPA to 4.50 MTPA in Phase-II. The Phase-II expansion is expected to 
be completed by March 2024. 

BPSL has taken the following steps to revive and turnaround its operations: 

• Completed the Phase I expansion and increased the capacity from 2. 75 MTPA 
to 3.5 MTPA. 

• Restarted the beneficiation plants which helps in consumption of lower grade 
fine as against procurement of high-grade iron ore resulting in saving in 
procurement of cost of iron ore. 

• Replaced LPG with coke oven gas and sale of surplus coke with the 
commissioning of coke oven-2. 

• Modified converter shell size that increased the in-heat-size and steel 
production. 

• Commissioned filter press enabling increased pellet production ancL.r: ·ng 
pellet procurement from third parties. 
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• Improved capacity utilisation of wire rod mill and other downstream products 
resulting in higher margins due to enriched product mix. 

• Improved efficiencies across all plants due to adoption of best practices. 
• Improved product quality and yields leading to better customer satisfaction. 

Piombino Steel Limited ("PSL") is a subsidiary of JSW Steel Limited (JSWSL) which 
was incorporated to facilitate the acquisition of Bhushan Power & Steel Limited 
("BPSL"). JSWSL holds 83.28% of equity in PSL and the remaining equity i.e. 
16. 72% is held by JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited (JSLPL). 

JSWSL had invested a sum of Rs.5,087 crores in equity linked instruments in PSL. 
PSL had received additional equity contribution from JSLPL amounting to Rs.1,027 
crores and raised debt through issuance of Non-Convertible Bonds ("NCBs") 
aggregating Rs.2,500 crores which were subscribed by bond investors. In March 
2023, JSWSL purchased NCBs from the original subscribers. The NCBs are due for 
redemption on 22nd March 2024. 

BPSL has been generating cash from operations, which is used for expanding the 
capacity from 3.5 MTPA to 4.5 MTPA and for repayment of debt availed at BPSL at 
the time of acquisition. Funds from BPSL may be up-streamed after the 
requirements of BPSL has been met and the ongoing litigation surrounding the 
acquisition has been disposed off. Hence PSL does not have any source of income 
to repay the NCBs and accordingly support is required from JSWSL to redeem its 
NCBs. The amount payable on redemption of NCBs which are due on 22nd March 
2024 coupled with other working capital requirement, PSL needs funds in the form 
of investment / loan from JSWSL. Accordingly, PSL requested JSWSL to extend 
support upto Rs.3,300 crores by way of further investment in form of equity / 
preference shares / warrants / and intercompany loans. Further PSL has availed 
unsecured loan amounting to Rs.112 crores against facility of Rs.200 crores from 
JSWSL, the repayment of which is due on March 31, 2024. The maturity of the loan 
is required to be extended for a further period of two years. 

An investment by JSWSL is in the form of equity / preference shares / warrants 
would be made in accordance with applicable law i.e. on the back of an independent 
valuation report. 

In case of loan, it would be repaid after two years from the date of disbursement 
with interest rate determined based on prevailing market interest rates and linked 
to SBI Marginal Cost Lending Rates plus a mark up to cover the credit risk. The 
transaction is said to meet arm's length requirements since interest is based on 
market driven borrowing rates. 
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Further, PSL also purchases steel products for its trading activities which is supplied 
by JSWSL. 

The aggregate value of the proposed RPTs is estimated to be Rs.4,625 crores in 
financial year which exceeds the threshold of Rs.1,000 crores for FY 2023-24 
resulting in such transactions being termed as MRPTs under SEBI Listing 
Regulations and PSL's policy on material RPTs. Accordingly, prior approval of the 
shareholders of PSL is required to enter into such MRPTs. 

Details of the proposed RPT between PSL and JSWSL including information 
pursuant to SEBI circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2021/662 dated 22 
November 2021, as set out below: 

Sr. Description 
No 

Details 

1. Details of Summary of information provided by the Management to the Audit 
Committee 
a. Name of the related party and JSW Steel Limited (JSWSL) 

its relationship with the listed 
entity or its subsidiary, JSWSL is holding Company of Piombino 
including nature of its concern Steel Limited. JSWSL holds 83.28% 
or interest (financial or equity stake in PSL. The balance equity 
otherwise); stake is held by JSW Shipping & Logistics 

Private Limited. 
b. Category of Related Party RPT with Holding company JSWSL under 

section 2(76) (viii) of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

c. Name of the director or key None of the Directors/KMPs of JSWSL are 
managerial personnel who is Directors or KMPs of the Company. 
related, if any and nature of 
relationship 

d. Nature of primary transaction To availing funding from JSWSL, extend 
the maturity date of existing loans, 
expenditure on loan / investment and 
purchase of steel products. 

e. Proposed 
JSWSL 

transaction with Proposal for unsecured funding of Rs. 
3,300 crores from JSWSL in the form of 
equity/ preference shares/ warrants/ or 
intercompany loan, extent the tenure of 
existing loan facility amounting to Rs.200 
crores for a further period of 2 years, 
expenditure on loan / investment amount 
to Rs.800 crores and purchase of steel 
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products amount to Rs.1,400 crores and 
others amounting to Rs.SO crores. 

f. Nature, material terms, 
monetary value and particulars Provided in Table B below 
of contracts or arrangement 

g. Value of the proposed Rs.5,750 Crores 
transactions for which approval 
is sought from shareholders 

h. Amount paid as advance if any Not Applicable 
g. Transactions with the related FY 2022-23 : Rs. 105 crores 

party for the past three FY 2021-22 : Rs. 877 crores 
financial Years FY 2020-21 : Rs. 5 1086 crores 

i. Percentage of annual JSWSL's consolidated turnover for FY 
consolidated turnover of 2022-23: Rs. 1,63 1646 crores. 
counter party considering FY Progosed Transaction value for FY 2023-
2022-23 as the immediately 24 : Rs. 4 1625 crores. 
preceding financial year Percentage ; 2.82% 
represented by the value of the 
proposed transaction 

j. Percentage of annual The Company's Consolidated Turnover: 
consolidated turnover Rs. 20,002 crore 
considering FY 2022-23 as the Proposed transaction value for FY 2023-
immediately preceding financial 24: Rs. 4,625 crores 
year represented by the value % of Consolidated turnover: 23.12% 
of the proposed RPT 

k. Consolidated total revenue, For JSWSL: 
assets and net worth of the Total revenue: Rs. 1,63,646 Crores 
counter party for FY 2022-23 Total assets: Rs. 2,11,078 Crores 

Net worth: Rs. 67,039 Crores 
2 Justification / economic benefits from the RPTs 
a. Justification as to why the RPT Please refer to "Background, details and 

is in the interest of the listed benefits of the transaction" given under 
Entity item no. 3 of the explanatory statement 

forming part of the Notice above. 
b. Economic benefits Please refer to "Background, details and 

benefits of the transaction" given under 
item no. 3 of the explanatory statement 
forming part of the Notice above. -

3. Details of transaction relating to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, a~cij1<2~,~ 
or investments made or given by the listed entity or its subsidiary: I fir~ 
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a. Details of the source of funds in Not applicable 
connection with the proposed 
Transaction 

b. Where any financial Not applicable 
indebtedness is incurred to 

c. 

d. 

e. 

f. 

make or give loans, inter-
corporate deposits, advances or 
investments -
- nature of indebtedness; 
- cost of funds; and 
- tenure 
Applicable terms, including • 
covenants, tenure, interest rate 
and repayment schedule, 
whether secured or unsecured; 

Tenure of the Loan: Fresh loan would 
be for a period of two years and the 
existing loan facility would be 
extended for a further period of two 

if secured, the nature of 
security 

Purpose for which the funds will 
be utilized by the ultimate 
beneficiary of such funds 
pursuant to the RPT. 
A statement that the valuation 
or other external report, if any, 
relied upon by the listed entity 
in relation to the proposed 
transaction will be made 
available through registered 
email address of the 
shareholder 

years. 
• Repayment of Loan: Repayment of 

loan along with interest at the end of 
tenor of loan. 

• The inter corporate loan would be 
unsecured. 

• The interest rate on the inter 
corporate loan is determined based on 
the prevailing market interest rate and 
linked to SBI Marginal Cost Lending 
Rates plus a mark up to cover the 
credit risk. 

The funds would be utilized by PSL for 
repayment of Non-Convertible Bonds, 
working capital purposes and for general 
corporate purposes. 
Not applicable 

Any other information that may An investment by JSWSL in the form of 
be relevant: infusion of equity / preference shares / 

~-=;--;:·-......,_~ warrants would be made in accordance 
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with applicable law i.e. on the back of an 
independent valuation report. 

In case of loan, it would be repaid after 
two years from the date of disbursement 
with interest rate determined based on 
the prevailing market interest rates and 
linked to SBI Marginal Cost Lending Rates 
plus a mark upto cover the credit risk. 
The transaction is said to meet arm's 
length requirements since interest rate is 
based on market driven borrowing rates. 

The price for purchase of steel products is 
determined based on JSWSL's price list 
finalized from time to time considering 
the market conditions, global steel prices 
and the prevalent prices offered by third 
parties. 

Reimbursement of expenses at actual. 

Taking into the consideration the proposed transaction, the indicative limits 
proposed to be approved for FY 2023-24 to 2024-25 will be as follows [Table B] 

Nature 
Transactions 

of Amount of Total amounts of Period of the 

Investment / Loan 
(Fresh infusion) 

Purchase 
products 

of steel 

transactions in transactions for which transactions 
a financial approval is sought (Rs in and 
year (in Rs. Crores) information 
Crores) on 

contractual 
arrangement 

3,300 The value of transaction Post approval 
is expected to Rs. 400 of 

700 

crores till July 2023 and shareholders, 
Rs. 2,900 crores from the Company 
August 2023 to March will enter into 
2025 contractual 
The value of transactions 
is expected to Rs. 233 
crores till July 2023 and 
Rs. 1,167 crores from 

arrangement 
with JSWSL. 
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Renewal of Loan 

Expenditure on 
Investment/ loan 

Others (include 
sale/purchase of 
allied products, 
availing and 
rendering services 
in the nature of 
business auxiliary 
services, leasing of 
property, allocation 
of common 
expenses) 

August 2023 till March 
2025 

200 The value of transactions 
is expected to be Rs. Nil 
till July 2023 and Rs. 200 
crores from August 2023 
till March 2025 

400 The value of transactions 
is expected to be Rs. 10 
crores till July 2023 and 
Rs. 790 crores from 
August 2023 till March 
2025 

25 The value of transactions 
is expected to be Rs. 8 
crores till July 2023 and 
Rs. 42 crores from August 
2023 till March 2025 

4,625 5,750 

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or 
their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested either directly or indirectly, 
financially or otherwise in the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice. 

Yours Directors recommend the Resolution as at Item No. 3 for your approval. 

ITEM NO. 4: APPROVAL FOR MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION{S) 
BETWEEN BHUSHAN POWER & STEEL LIMITED, WHOLLY SUBSIDIARY OF 
THE COMPANY AND JSW COATED STEEL PRODUCTS LIMITED, WHOLLY 
OWNED SUBSIDIRY OF JSW STEEL LIMITED 

JSW Steel Coated Products Limited ("JSW Coated"), a wholly owned subsidiary of 
JSW Steel Limited (JSWSL), is the largest manufacturer and exporter of coated 
and colour coated steel products in India. JSW Coated has state-of-art 
manufacturing facilities in Vasind, Tarapur, Kalmeshwar and Khopoli in the State 
of Maharashtra, Bawal in the State of Haryana and Rajpura in the State of Punjab. 
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JSW Coated along with Asian Colour Coated Ispat Limited, Vardhman Industries 
Limited and JSW Vallab Tinplate Private Limited has a Galvanised Iron (GI") 
Galvalume ("GL") capacity of 3.84 MTPA and colour coating capacity of 1.86 MTPA 
and tinplate capacity of 0.50 MTPA. 

JSW Coated procures its Hot Rolled Coils ("HRC") and Cold Rolled Full Hard 
("CRFH") requirements from JSWSL plants of Dolvi and Vijayanagar and 
Jharsuguda Plant of BPSL, a subsidiary of the Company, based on mix of customer 
required mill specification and freight optimisation. 

Accordingly, JSW Coated has approached BPSL to supply the required HRC/CRFH 
requirements. The proposed arrangement has the following advantages: 

• Supply from BPSL to JSW Coated Steel Kalmeshwar, JSW Coated yard at Dhar 
and Bawal would have the freight advantage as compared to supply from Dolvi. 

• The requisite quantity of CRFH coils is available in surplus at BPSL and 
accordingly it ensures seamless supply to JSW Coated at its Bawal unit. 

• BPSL has been selling HRC products in the domestic market. With the 
commissioning of GI/GL and PPGI/PPGL lines at Vasind and Tarapur, the 
capacity of JSW Coated has increased. In this arrangement, JSW Coated would 
process HR products to value added products like GI/GL and PPGI/GL which not 
only enables the JSWSL group to widen the basket of value-added products 
compared to the sale of direct sale of HRC products by BPSL in the open market 
but also helps achieve optimum utilization of plant capacities. 

BPSL has state-of-art steel production facilities in Odisha catering to both domestic 
and international market. BPSL operates with an existing capacity of 3.50 MTPA. 
BPSL has expanded its capacity from 2.75 MTPA to 3.50 MTPA in Phase-1 and is 
further expanding its capacity from 3.50 MTPA to 4.50 MTPA in Phase-II. The 
Phase-II expansion is expected to be completed by March 2024. 

The proposed RPTs are for (a) the purchase of HRC/CRFH coils by JSW Coated 
from BPSL for a value of Rs.3,473 crores; and (b) for the sale of store spares / 
zinc dross/ and other products by JSW Coated to BPSL for a value of Rs.110 crores. 
The RPTs are valued at a total of Rs.3,583 crores. BPSL purchases spares, 
consumables, zinc and other products from the open market. Since these materials 
are also procured by JSW Coated for their use, JSW Coated may sale such materials 
to BPSL as per urgent requirement, un-availability of materials in open market (as 
it can take around 5-7 months in procuring it from market) and surplus material 

available at JSW Coated. ,~~ 
~~o C?<::. 
E 3 
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The estimated value of the RPTs is Rs.3,583 crores for each for FY 2023-24 and 
FY 2024-25 aggregating to Rs. 7,166 crores for FY 2023-24 and FY 2024-25 which 
exceeds the threshold of Rs.1,000 crores for FY 2023-24 resulting in such 
transactions being termed as material RPTs under SEBI Listing Regulations and 
PSL's policy on material RPTs. Accordingly, prior approval of the shareholders of 
PSL is required to enter into such RPTs. 

Details of the proposed RPT between JSW Coated and BPSL including information 
pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDI/CIR/P/2021/662 dated 22 
November 2021, are set out below 

Sr. No Description Details 
1. Details of Summary of information provided to the Audit Committee 
a. Name of the related party JSW Coated Steel Products Limited 

and its relationship with the (JSW Coated) 
listed entity or its subsidiary, JSW Coated is a wholly owned 
including nature of its subsidiary of JSWSL. BPSL is wholly 
concern or interest (financial owned subsidiary of PSL. JSWSL holds 
or otherwise); 83.28% in PSL. 

b. Category of the related party The transaction is by a wholly owned 
transactions subsidiary of the Company, JSW Coated 

with a subsidiary of the Company, 
BPSL. 

c. Name of the director or key None of the Directors/KMPs of JSW 
managerial personnel who is Coated are Directors or KMPs of the BPSL. 
related, if any and nature of 
relationship 

d. Nature of primary The purchase of HRC/CRFH coils by JSW 
transaction Coated from BPSL and other transactions 

as detailed in Table C below. 
e. Proposed transactions by The proposed RPTs are for: (a) the 

JSW Coated with BPSL purchase of HRC/ CRHF coils by JSW 
Coated from BPSL for a value of Rs. 3,473 
Crores; and (b) for the sale of store 
spares/ zinc dross/ and other products by 
JSW Coated to BPSL for a value of Rs. 
110 Crores. The estimated value of the 
RPT's is Rs.3,583 crores for each for FY 
2023-24 and FY 2024-25 aggregating to 
Rs.7,166 crores for FY 2023-24 and FY 
2024-25 

f. Nature, material terms, Provided in Table C below 

~

o Stec, 
monetary value and ~ < ' ·-· ' 

E ;:: 
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particulars of contracts or 
arrangement 

g. Value of the proposed Rs.3,583 crores for each financial year i.e 
transactions for which aggregating Rs.7,166 crores from FY 
approval is sought from the 2023-24 and 2024-25 
shareholders 

h. Amount paid as advance if No advance has been paid. 
any 

I. Transaction with the related FY 2022-23 : Rs. 961 crores 
party for the past three FY 2021-22 : Rs. 971 crores 
financial years FY 2020-21 : Rs. Nil 

j. Percentage of JSW Coated's JSW Coated's consolidated turnover for 
annual consolidated FY 2022-23 : Rs.28,633 crores 
turnover considering FY Proposed transaction value for FY 2023-
2022-23 as the immediately 24 : Rs.3,583 crores. 
preceding financial year Percentage : 12.51 % 
represented by the value of 
the proposed RPT. 

k. Percentage of JSW Coated's JSW Coated's standalone turnover for FY 
annual standalone turnover 2022-23: Rs. 28,633 crores 
considering FY 2022-23 as Proposed transaction value for FY 2023-
the immediately preceding 24 : Rs. 3,583 crores 
financial year represented Percentage : 12.51 % 
by the value of the proposed 
RPT. 

I. Percentage of BPSL's annual BPSL's consolidated turnover for FY 2022-
consolidated turnover 23: Rs.20,065 crores. 
considering FY 2022-23 as Proposed Transaction value for FY 2022-
the immediately preceding 23: Rs.3,583 crores 
financial year represented Percentage : 17 .86% 
by the value of the proposed 
transaction. 

m. Total revenue, assets and Total Revenue : Rs.19,957 crores 
net worth of BPSL for FY Total assets : Rs.23,842 crores 
2022-23 Total Net Worth : Rs.12,136 crores 

2 Justification / economic benefits from the RPTs 
a. Justification as to why the Please refer to "Background, details and 

RPT is in the interest of the benefits of the transaction" given under 
listed Entity item No. 4 of the explanatory statement 

---:===: Jorming part of the Notice. 
b. Economic benefits 

~
o Ste 

~

owing are the economic benefits from 
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• Increased margin of JSW Coated due 
to reduction in freight cost. 

• Seamless supply of CRFH coils to JSW 
Coated Bawal Plant. 

• Higher capacity utilization at JSW 
Coated Vasind and Tarapur Plant. 

• Enriched product mix in terms of 
supply of value added products by 
JSW Steel group. 

3. Details of transaction relating to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances 
or investments made or given by the listed entity or its subsidiary: 
a. Details of the source of funds Not applicable 

in connection with the 
proposed Transaction 

b. Where any financial Not applicable 
indebtedness is incurred to 

c. 

d. 

e. 

f. 

make or give loans, inter-
corporate deposits, 
advances or investments -
- nature of indebtedness; 
- cost of funds; and 
- tenure 
Applicable terms, including Not Applicable 
covenants, tenure, interest 
rate and repayment 
schedule, whether secured 
or unsecured; if secured, the 
nature of security 
Purpose for which the funds Not Applicable 
will be utilized by the 
ultimate beneficiary of such 
funds pursuant to the RPT. 
A statement that the Not applicable 
valuation or other external 
report, if any, relied upon by 
the listed entity in relation to 
the proposP.d transaction will 
be made available through 
registered email address of 
the shareholder 
Any other inform~ n that 
may be rele ·ts lc, •• ing 

<'~ , :Or \(· t 

For purchase of HR & CR coils and steel 
products - The price per tonne of finished 
goods will be determined by BPSL basis 
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methodology / Arm's length the price offered to its unrelated 
assessment customers. Therefore, the transaction 

will be concluded on an arm's length 
basis. 

For sale of other miscellaneous products, 
pricing formula has been mutually 
decided between BPSL and JSW Coated 
considering prevailing market price, 
hence the transaction will be concluded 
on an arm's length basis. 

Taking into the consideration the proposed transaction, the indicative limits 
proposed to be approved for FY 2023-24 to 2024-25 will be as follows: [Table C] 

Nature of the Amount of Total amounts of Period of the 
transactions transactions transactions for which transactions 

in a financial approval is sought (in Rs and information 
year (in Rs Crores) on contractual 
Crores) arrangement 

Purchase of hot 3,473 The value of transactions Post approval of 
rolled coils, cold is expected to be Rs. shareholders, 
rolled full hard 1,158 crores till July 2023 JSW Coated will 
coils and other and Rs. 5,788 crores from enter into 
steel products August 2023 till March contractual 

2025 arrangements 
Sale of stores, 110 The value of transactions with BPSL upto 
spares and other is expected to be Rs. 37 March 2025 
products crores till July 2023 and 

Rs. 183 crores from 
August 2023 till March 
2025. 

3,583 7,166 

The members may note that in terms of the provIsIons of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, the related Parties defined thereunder (whether such related 
party(ies) is a party to the aforesaid transactions or not), shall not vote to approve 
resolution under item No. 4. 

Except as mentioned above, none of the Directors and/or Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested financially 
or otherwise in the resolution set out at item No. 4 of the Notice. 

;I 
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Your Directors recommend the resolution as at item No. 4 for your approval. 

Place: Jharsuguda 
Date: May 10, 2023 

By Order of the Board 
For Piombino Steel Limited 

~ 
Alok Kumar Mishra 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Membership No.: A-15967 
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE: 

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE 
FORTH COMING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

(Pursuant to Clause 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standard-2) 

Name of the Director Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta 

Date of Birth 26.01.1971 

Date of first Appointment on the 01.12.2021 
Board 
Qua I ification Commerce Graduate and Fellow member of 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
Experience/ Expertise in specific Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta worked in premier 
functional areas/Brief resume of corporate-houses in India for over 27 years and 
the Director has gained very rich professional experience in 

the fields of Corporate Finance, Treasury, 
Taxation, Corporate Strategy, M&A, 
Procurement, Secretarial, Legal, and other allied 
functions. Presently associated with JSW Group 
since November 2004. 

Terms & conditions of Tenure as a Director is subject to retirement of 
appointment / re-appointment Directors by rotation in terms of Section 152 of 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

Details of remuneration sought NIL 
to be paid and remuneration last 
drawn. 

Remuneration proposed NIL 

Disclosure of Relationship with Not inter-se related to any other Director, or Key 
other Directors, Manager and Key Managerial Personnel. The Company does not 
Managerial Personnel of the have a Manager. 
Company. 
Number of meetings of the Board 3 out of 4 
of Directors attended during the 
F.Y. 2022-23. 

~ 
Other Directorships held as on JSW Holdings Ltd. f/_~,O . f..•/, "\\ 
31.03.2023 Rohne Coal Company Pvt. Ltd. .I i ,At- ~ ll 

~~JIQ) O' ' 
* 
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Vasind Farm & Dairy Products Pvt. Ltd. 
JTPM Atsali Ltd. 
JSW Multiventures Pvt Ltd 
JSW Sports Pvt Ltd 
Gopal Traders Pvt Ltd 
Vividh Finvest Pvt Ltd 
Sahyog Holdings Pvt Ltd 
Echelon Properties Pvt Ltd 
JSW GMR Cricket Pvt Ltd 
Sapphire Airlines Pvt Ltd 
JSW Bengal Steel Limited 
JSW Green Mobility Private Limited 

Chairman/Membership o1 Stakeholder Relationship Committee 
Committees in other Indian Public Member - JSW Holdings Limited 
Limited Companies as on 
31.03.2023* 
(C = Chairman; M = Member) 

Shareholding in the Company. NIL 

*only two Committees namely, Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
have been considered. 

' t c, ' ----- ~, 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT 

The Members, 
PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED, 

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the FIFTH ANNUAL REPORT of your Company, together 
with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
(Amount in Crores1 

Particulars FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 
i. Revenue from operations 45.46 560.36 
ii. other income 537.94 507.00 
iii. Total Income (i+ii) 583.40 1,067.36 
iv. Expenses: 
Purchase of Stock-in-trade 49.89 559.55 
Finance Cost 311.98 434.98 
Chanqe in Inventory of Stock-in trade (4.18) -
Other expenses 1.02 1.97 
Total Expenses 358.71 996.50 
v. Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (iii-iv) 224.69 70.86 
vi. Tax expenses 
Current tax 56.69 26.39 
Deferred tax (0.04) (40.90) 

Profit/ (Loss) for the year (v-vi) 168.04 85.38 

2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE: 

The Company is engaged in the business of buying, selling and otherwise trading or dealing in steel 
and its allied products, iron ore, coal, coke, brick-earth, res, minerals and mineral substance, alloys 
and metal scraps of all kinds. The Company earned revenue of Rs.45.46 crores from trading of coal 

and Rs. 537.94 crores from interest for the financial year under review. The Company has reported 
net profit for the F.Y. 2022-23 of Rs.168.04 crores after providing for tax expense as compared to 
Rs. 85.38 crores in FY 2021-22. 

3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

There were no changes in the nature of business during the period under review. 

4. CHANGE OF THE REGISTERED OFFICE 

During the year under review, the Registered Office of the Company has been changed from JSW 
Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051 to 6th Floor, Grande Palladium, 
175, CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai 400 098 w.e.f July 15, 2022. 

5. DIVIDEND: 

To maintain the liquidity of funds for meeting the future financial requirements of the Company, 
the Board of Directors has decided not to declare any dividend for the financial year 2022-23. 

6. TRANSFER TO RESERVES IN TERMS OF SECTION 134 (3) (j) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013: 

Your directors do not propose to carry any amount to any reserves during the period under review. 
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7. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE 
COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THIS 
REPORT: 

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no material changes and commitments which could 
affect the Company's financial position have occurred between the end of the financial year of the 
Company and date of this report. 

8. DEPOSITS: 

Your Company has not accepted or renewed any deposits within the meaning of section 73 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 and the rules 
made thereunder. 

9. SHARE CAPITAL: 

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.17000,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seventeen 
Thousand Crores Only) divided into 1200,00,00,000 (One Thousand Two Hundred Crores only) 
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each (Rupees Ten only) and 500,00,00,000 (Five Hundred Crores only) 
Preference Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) each. The Paid-Up Share Capital of the Company is 
Rs. 6100,00,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty-One Hundred Crore only) divided into 610,00,00,000 (Six 
Hundred Ten Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 

Issue of Equity Shares: 

During the year under review, the Company has not issued equity shares. 

Warrants: 

The Company had issued 350,00,00,000 warrants having face value of Rs. 10/- at an issue price of 
Rs. 0.02/- each to JSW Steel Limited and JSW Shipping & Logistics Pvt Limited on 24 th March, 
2021. 

Subsidiary of JSW Steel Limited: 

Pursuant to the conversion of OFCDs, JSW Steel Limited holds 83.28% equity and JSLPL holds 
16.72% equity in the Company. Subsequent to the aforesaid conversion, the Company has now a 
Subsidiary of JSW Steel Limited. 

a) Issue of Equity Shares with Differential Rights 

The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence no information as per 
provisions of Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 

b) Issue of Sweat Equity Shares 

The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence no 
information as per provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Act read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies 
(Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 

c) Issue of Employee Stock Options 

The Company has not issued any equity shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme during the 
year under review and hence no information as per provisions of Section 62(1)(b) of the Act read 
with Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 

10. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 
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1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

a) COMPOSITION & CONSTITUTION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

The Board of your Company currently comprises of five Directors, namely Mr. Anil Kumar Singh 
(DIN: 02059903), Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair (DIN: 08568679), Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta 
(DIN: 02339000), Mr. Anunay Kumar (DIN: 01647407), Independent Director and Dr. Rakhi Jain 
(DIN: 07138042), Independent Director. 

According to the provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Manoj Kumar 
Mohta (DIN: 02339000) is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible have offered himself for reappointment. The necessary resolution proposing the 
appointment of aforesaid Director has been incorporated in the Notice of the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting for your approval. 

b) BOARD MEETING & ATTENDANCE: 

During the period under review, meeting of the Board of Directors was held 4 times on 
24.05.2022, 15.07.2022, 14.10.2022 and 13.01.2023. The detail of the participation of Directors 
thereat is enumerated as below: 

Sr. Name of Director No. of Meeting held No. of Meeting 
No. during tenure Attended 

1.. Mr. Anil Kumar Singh 04 04 
2. Mr. Manoi Kumar Mohta 04 03 
3. Mr. Divyakumar 04 04 

Vimalkumar Bhair 
4. Mr. Anunay Kumar 04 04 
5. Dr. Rakhi Jain 04 04 

The intervening gap between the Board meetings was within the period prescribed under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

c) DECLARATION BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Board comprised of Mr. Anunay Kumar and Dr. Rakh~ Jain as Independent Directors. The 
Company has received the necessary declaration from each of the Independent Directors in 
accordance with Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he/she meets the criteria of 
independence as laid out in Section 149(6) of the Act. The Independent Directors had 01 (One) 
Meeting during the period under review. 

d) CHANGES IN KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

During the period under review, there is no change in Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the 
Company. 

11. COMPOSITION OF VARIOUS BOARD COMMITTEES 

i. Audit Committee 

Audit Committee comprises of Mr. Anunay Kumar as Chairman, Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar 
Bhair and Dr. Rakhi Jain as members of Audit Committee. The Board has approved the charter 
for the functioning of the Audit Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the 
Committee. 

During the period under review, meeting of the Audit Committee was held 05 times on 
24.05.2022, 15.07.2022, 14.10.2022, 13.01.2023 and 30.03.2023. The detail of the 
participation of members thereat is enumerated as below: 
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Sr. Name of Director No. of Meeting No. of Meeting 
No. held during tenure Attended 

1. Mr. Anunav Kumar OS 05 
2. Mr. Divvakumar Vimalkumar Bhair OS 05 
3. Dr. Rakhi Jain 05 05 

ii. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr. Anunay Kumar as Chairman, Mr. Anil 
Kumar Singh and Dr. Rakhi Jain as members of the Committee. The Board has approved the 
charter for the functioning of the Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to 
the Committee. 

During the period under review, meeting of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee was held 
02 times on 24.05.2022 and 15.07.2022. The detail of the participation of members thereat is 
enumerated as below: 

Sr. Name of Director No. of Meeting held No. of Meeting 
No, during tenure Attended 

1. Mr. Anunav Kumar 02 02 
2. Mr. Anil Kumar Singh 02 02 
3. Dr. Rakhi Jain 02 02 

iii. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of Dr. Rakhi Jain as Chairperson, Mr. Anil 
Kumar Singh and Mr. Anunay Kumar as members of the Committee. The Board has approved the 
charter for the functioning of the Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to 
the Committee. 

During the period under review, the meeting of the CSR Committee of Board of Directors was 
held 01 times on 24.0S.2022. The detail of the participation of members thereat is enumerated 
as below: 

Sr. Name of Director No. of Meeting No. of Meeting 
No. held during tenure Attended 

1. Dr. Rakhi Jain 01 01 
2. Mr. Anil Kumar Sinqh 01 01 
3. Mr. Anunav Kumar 01 01 

iv. Finance Committee 

The Finance Committee of the Board of Directors comprises of Mr. Anil Kumar Singh as 
Chairman, Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta and Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair as members of the 
Committee. The Board has approved the charter for the functioning of the Committee. The 
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 

During the period under review, the meeting of the Finance Committee of Board of Directors was 
held 01 times on 31.05.2022. The detail of the participation of members thereat is enumerated 
as below: 

Sr. 
No. 

1. 
2. 

Name of Director 

Mr. Anil Kumar Sinoh 
Mr. Mano· Kumar Mohta 

No. of Meeting 
held during tenure 

No. of Meeting 
Attended 

01 
01 
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I Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair 01 01 

v. Risk Management Committee 

Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors was constituted on May 24, 2022 and 
presently comprises of Mr. Anunay Kumar as Chairman, Mr. Anil Kumar Singh and Dr. Rakhi Jain 
as members of the Committee. The Board has approved the charter for the functioning of the 
Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 

During the period under review, the meeting of the Risk Management Committee of Board of 
Directors was held 02 times on 12.01.2023 and 21.03.2023. The detail of the participation of 
members thereat is enumerated as below: 

Sr. Name of Director No. of Meeting No. of Meeting 
No. held during tenure Attended 

1. Mr. Anunay Kumar 02 02 
2. Mr. Anil Kumar Sinqh 02 02 
3. Dr. Rakhi Jain 02 02 

vi. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Board of Directors was constituted on May 24, 2022 and 
presently comprises of Dr. Rakhi Jain as Chairperson, Mr. Anunay Kumar and Mr. Anil Kumar 
Singh as members of the Committee. The Board has approved the charter for the functioning of 
the Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 

During the period under review, the meeting of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of 
Board of Directors was held 01 time on 12.01.2023. The detail of the participation of members 
thereat is enumerated as below: 

Sr. Name of Director No. of Meeting No. of Meeting 
No. held during tenure Attended 

1. Dr. Rakhi Jain 01 01 
2. Mr. Anunav Kumar 01 01 
3. Mr. Anil Kumar Singh 01 01 

12. HOLDING & SUBSIDIARY COMPANY; 

JSW Steel Limited holds 83.28% equity and JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited holds 16.72% 
equity in the Company. The Company is now a Subsidiary of JSW Steel Limited. 

Bhushan Power & Steel Limited is wholly owned subsidiary of your Company w.e.f. March 26, 
2021. 

During the period under review, West Waves Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited has been 
amalgamated with your Company w.e.f. May 07, 2022. 

Presently, the Company neither has any Joint Venture nor Associate company. 

13,NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE SUBSIDIARIES, 
JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

The Company had filed an application with Regional Director, Western Region, Mumbai for approval 
of Amalgamation Scheme of West Waves Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited with the 
Company. Regional Director, Western Region, Mumbai vide its order dated May 06, 2022 has 
approved the Amalgamation Scheme of the Company and accordingly West Waves Maritime & 
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Allied Services Private Limited has been merged with the Company w.e.f. May 07, 2022 and 
accordingly ceased to be wholly owned subsidiary. 

No other companies have become or ceased to be subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate 
companies. 

14.PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE SUBSIDIARY COMPANY: 

The members may refer to the financial statements forming part of the Annual Report as required 
under the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 for financial position of all 
Subsidiaries. 

A statement containing salient features of the financial statements of the Subsidiary Company in 
Form AOC-1 is given in 'Annexure-A' to this Report. 

15. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM & INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:_ 

a) Overview 

The Company has a robust system of internal control, commensurate with the size and nature of 
its business and complexity of it operations. 

b) Internal Control: 

The Company has a proper and adequate system of Internal Control. 

c) Internal Audit: 

The Company has a strong and independent internal audit function that inculcates global best 
standards and practices of international majors into the Indian operations. The Internal Audit 
team consists of professionally qualified accountants and engineers at the group level. The 
Internal Auditors reports directly to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

d) Audit Plan and Execution 

At start of the year, the Internal Audit Department prepares an Annual Audit Plan after 
considering Business and Process Risks. The frequency of the audit is decided by risk ratings of 
areas/functions. The audit plan is carried out by the Internal team and reviewed periodically to 
include areas that have assumed significant importance in line with the emerging industry 
trend. 

e) Internal Financial Controls 

As per Section 134(5)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors have an overall 
responsibility for ensuring that the Company has implemented a robust system and framework 
of internal financial controls. 

The Company has already developed and implemented a framework for ensuring internal 
controls over financial reporting. During the year, controls were tested and no reportable 
material weakness in design and effectiveness was observed. 

16. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS' REPORT: 

A. STATUTORY AUDITORS:_ 

M/s. Shah Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 109574W) has been 
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company in the 01'' Annual General Meeting for a 
period of 5 years until the conclusion of 6 th Annual General Meeting to be held in the calendar 
year 2024. 
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Comment on Auditors' Report: 

The report of the Auditors along with notes to Schedules forms part of this Annual Report. 
The observations made by the Auditors in the Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and 
therefore do not call for any further comments. 

The Auditors' Report for the year under review does not contain any qualification, 
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. 

No fraud has been reported by the Auditors under Section 143( 12) of the Companies Act, 
2013 requiring disclosure in Board's Report. 

B. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS: 

In terms of Section 204 of the Act, Board of Directors of the Company in their Meeting held 
on December 01, 2021 had appointed M/s. Sunil Agarwal & Co., Practicing Company 
Secretaries, as secretarial auditor to conduct a secretarial audit of the Company for the 
financial year 2022-23. 

The Secretarial Audit report for financial year 2022-23 is annexed to this report in form MR-3 
(Annexure - Bl). The Secretarial Audit report for financial year 2022-23 of Bhushan Power 
& Steel Limited, wholly owned Subsidiary of the Company is also annexed to this report in 
Form MR-3 (Annexure - B2) 

The Board, at its meeting held on May 10, 2023 has on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee appointed M/s Sunil Agarwal & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, as 
Secretarial Auditor to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 
2023-24. 

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

All related party transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies 
Act, 2013 during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and on an arms' length 
basis and are in accordance with provisions of Section 177, 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
details of contracts or arrangement as prescribed in Form AOC-2 attached as Annexure - C. 

Suitable disclosure on related party transactions, as required by the Accounting Standards has 
been made in the notes to the Financial Statements. 

18, PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS U/S 186: 

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the financial statements. 

19. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS: 

During the year under review, the Company had filed an application with Regional Director, 
Western Region, Mumbai for approval of Amalgamation Scheme of West Waves Maritime & Allied 
Services Private Limited with the Company. Regional Director, Western Region, Mumbai vide its 
order dated May 6, 2022 has approved the Amalgamation Scheme of the Company and accordingly 
West Waves Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited has been merged with the Company w.e.f. 
May 7, 2022. 

No other orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern 
status and company's operations. 

20. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 
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The Disclosures pertaining to particulars of employees as required in terms of the Section 197(12) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are not applicable to the Company and hence, the disclosure 
on particulars of employees in terms of the aforesaid Section and Rules is not attached to the 
Directors' Report. 

21. SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND 
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013; 

Being part of JSW group, your Company follows an Anti-Sexual Harassment JSW Group Policy in 
line with the requirements of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up at group level 
to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. No complaints pertaining to sexual 
harassment were received during the FY 2022-23. 

22. WHISTLE BLOWE~ POLICY / VIGIL MECHANISM 

The Company has in place a mechanism in the form of the Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism 
to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any. 

23. RISK MANAGEMENT: 

The Company has in place a mechanism to inform the Board members about the risk assessment 
and mitigation plans and periodical reviews to ensure that the critical risks are controlled by the 
management. 

24. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy is available on the website of the Company. Annual report 
on Corporate Social responsibility is enclosed as Annexure - D. 

25. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

The applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e., SS-1 and SS-2, relating to 'Meetings of the Board of 
Directors' and 'General Meetings', respectively, have been complied with by the Company during 
the financial year under review. 

26. BOARD EVALUATION 

The Board carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, the performance of the 
Independent Directors individually as well as an evaluation of the working of the Committees of the 
Board. The performance evaluation of all the Directors was carried out by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent 
Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. 

27. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

The Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity, particulars under section 134(3)(m) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, regarding the conservation of energy, technology absorption are not 
applicable. 

There were no foreign exchange earnings/ outgo during the year under review. 

28. COPY OF ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, copy of the 
Annual Return of the Company prepared in accordance with Section 92(1) of the Act read with Rule 
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11 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is placed on the website of the 
Company and are accessible at the web-link: https:ljwww.jsw.ln/qroups/piombino-steet-l imited . 

29, DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

Pursuant to the requirement clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 
2013, your Directors confirm that: 

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

b) such accounting policies have been applied consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for 
that period; 

c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; and 
e) proper systems were devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 

and such systems are adequate and operating effectively . 

APPRECIATION: 

Your Directors would like to express their appreciation for co-operation and assistance received 
from Government authorities, financial institutions, banks, vendors, customers, shareholders and 
other business associates during the year under review. The Directors also wish to place on record 
their deep sense of appreciation for the committed services by all the employees of the Company. 

Place: lharsuguda 
Date: May 10, 2023 

For and on behalf of the 
Board of Directors of Piombi o Steel Ltd. 

umar Singh 
Chairman 

DIN: 02059903 
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ANNEXURE A 

FORM NO. AOC-1 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Part "A": Subsidiaries 
( in Lakhs) 

SI. No. 1 (One) 
Name of the subsidiary Bhushan Power & Steel Limited 
The date since when subsidiary was acquired 26.03.2021 
Financial Year ending on 31.03.2023 
Reoorting Currency INR 
Exchanae Rate on the last day of the financial vear N.A 
Share capital 10 000.00 
Reserves & Surplus 12 03 642.00 
Total Assets 23 84 193.00 
Total Liabilities 23 84 193.00 
Investments Nil 
Turnover 20 07,715.00 
Profit/Closs) before tax 16,030.00 
Provision for tax Nil 
Profit/Closs) after tax 16,030.00 
Proposed Dividend Nil 
% of shareholding 100.00 
* The WWMASPL was acquired on 24 November 2021 and got amalgamated with Piombino Steel Limited 
on 1 December 2021 pursuant to order dated 6 May 2022 of Regional Directorate (WR) of Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs thereby approving the scheme of amalgamation. 

Notes: 

1. No subsidiary has been liquidated or sold during the year. 

Place: Jharsuguda 
Date: May 10, 2023 

For and on behalf of the 
Board of Directors of Piom:]s7 Ltd, 

Anil l?.:Singh 
Chairman 

DIN:02059903 
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No. 

No. 

1. 

2. 
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ANNEXURE C 

FORM NO. AOC-2 
(Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the company 
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto 

1. Details of contracts or arranqements or transactions not at arm's lenqth basis:-
Name(s) of Nature of Duration of Salient terms Justification date(s) Amount Date on which 
the related contracts/ the of the for entering of paid as the special 
party and arrangement contracts I contracts or into such approv advance resolution was 
nature of s/ arrangeme arrangement contracts or al by s, if any passed in general 

relationshi transactions nts / s or arrangement the meeting as 
p transaction transactions s or Board required under 

including the transaction first proviso to 
value if any section 188 

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (q) (h) 
(Nil) 

( All contracts or arranaements or transactions with related oarties were at arm's lenath basis) 

2. Details of material contracts or arranqement or transactions at arm's length basis:-
Name(s) of Nature of Duration of the Salient terms of date(s) of Amount paid as 
the related contracts/ contracts / the contracts or approval by advances, if any 
party and arrangements / arrangements arrangements or the Board 
nature of transactions / transactions transactions 

relationship including the 
value, if any 

JSW Steel Trading of Steel Annual Rs. 49.89 Crores Approved by Nil 
Limited Products Audit 

Committee 
JSW Steel Trading of Steel Annual Rs. 23.38 Crores Approved by Nil 
Coated Products Audit 
Products Committee 
Limited 

Note: Refer the related party transactions under Ind AS at Note No 25 of the financial statements of 
2022-23. 

Place: Jharsuguda 
Date: May 10, 2023 

For and on behalf of the 
Board of Directors of Piombino Steel Ltd. 

':/ 

An& :.Singh 
Chairman 

DIN:02059903 
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Annexure D to Directors Report 
Annual Re ort on Cor orate Social Res onsibilit Activities 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company. 

CSR policy, reflecting ethos of the Company, broad areas of CSR interest and overview of 
activities, proposes rural focus and woman empowerment. 

Policy states the list of activities/projects undertaken/to be undertaken in future. 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

SI. Name of Director Designation / Number of Number of meetings 
No Nature of meetings of of CSR Committee 

Directorship CSR attended during the 
Committee year 
held during 

the vear 
1. Dr. (Mrs.) Rakhi Chairperson 01 01 

Jain 
2 . Mr. Anil Kumar Member 01 01 

Singh 
3 . Mr. Anunay Kumar Member 01 01 

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects 
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company . 
www .jsw.in//groups>piombino-steel-limited. 

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects 
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable Not Applicable 

5. (a) Average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of Section 135 . 22 Cr 

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of Section 135 
44,00,000 /-

( c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous 
financial years. Nil 

(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any Nil 

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]. 44,00,000/-
6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): 

44,00,000/-
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : Nil 

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable. Nil 

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]. 44,00,000/-

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: 

Total Amount Amount Uns ent in Rs. 
Spent for the Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund specified 

Financial Year. to Unspent CSR Account under Schedule VII as per second proviso to 
(in Rs.) as sub-section (6) of sub-section(S) of Section 135 

Section 135. 
Amount. Date of Name of Amount. Date of transfer. 

transfer. the Fund 
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7. 

8 . 

Website: http ://~ .j w.in/group:/piombino- te I-limited 

44,00,000/- 1 Nil NA NA NA NA 

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any : 

SI. No Particular Amount (in Rs) 

(1) (2) (3) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company 44,00,000 

as oer sub-section (5) of section 135 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 44,00,000 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)- Nil 

( i) 1 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or Nil 

programmes or activities of the previous Financial 

Years, if any 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Nil 

Years [(iii)-(iv)l 

Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial 
Years: 

1 2 3 4 5 6 
SI Pro Amount Balance Amount spent Amount 
No cee transferred to Amount in in the Financial transferred to a 

din Unspent CSR Unspent CSR Year (in Rs) Fund as specified 
g Account Account under under Schedule 
Fin under sub- sub - section VII as per 
anci section (6) of (6) of Section second proviso 
al Section 135 135 (in Rs) to sub -section 
Yea (in Rs) (5) of Section 
r(s) 135, if anv 

Amount Date 
(in Rs) of 

Tran 
sfer 

1. FY- NIL NIL NIL NIL NA 
1 

2 . FY-
2 

3. FY-
3 

Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social 
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: 

No 

If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created / acquired : 

7 
Amount 
remainin 
g to be 
spent in 
succeedi 
ng 
Financial 
Years (in 
Rs) 

NIL 

8 
Defici 
ency, 
if any 

NA 
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Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social 
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: 

SI. Short Pin code of Date of Amount Details of entity/ Authority/ 
No . particulars of the creation of CSR beneficiary of the registered 

the property property amount owner 
or asset(s) or asset(s) spent 
[including 
complete 
address and 
location of 
the propertvl 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) 
CSR Nam Registere 
Registratio e d address 
n number, 
if 
applicable 

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no. house no. 
Municipal Office/Municipal Corporation/Gram Panchayat are to be specified and also the area of 
the immovable property as well as boundaries) 

9 . Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit 
as per sub-section (5) of Section 135. Not Applicable 

For and on behalf of the ard of Directors 

/"\,~¥- 1/ 
~~ Anil 
Dr. ~ ilain 

(Chairperson CSR Committee) 



Shah Gupta & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Members of Piombino Steel Limited 

38, Bombay Mutual Building, 
2nd Floor, Dr. D. N. Road, Fort, 
Mumbai - 400 00 I. 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

Tel. : +91(22) 2262 2000/2262 3000 
Email : contact@shahgupta.com 
Web : www.shahgupta.com 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Piombino Steel Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the balance sheet 

as at March 31, 2023, and the statement of profit and loss, (including the statement of other comprehensive income), the cash flow 

statement and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including 

a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the standalone financial 

statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 

statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair 

view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 

2023, and its profit and other comprehensive income, its cash flow and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 

sub-section (10) of Section 143 of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities 

for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 

the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 

to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report 

thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 

so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements, or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 

to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of the Management and Board of directors for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are is responsible for the matters stated in sub-section (5) of Section 134 of the 

Act with respect to t e-·Jjj'ef>i!,~1 t) of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, 

profit/loss and fl ncial per.focma,n ~ :- nc luding other comprehensive income, change in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
. \ 

accordance wit ·.t he.acrnunting printl'p generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified 

under section f33 of the Act re~d with l ~ . Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also 
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includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 

the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 

policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 

to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 

level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 

audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances. Under clause (i) of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 

whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 

made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting in 

preparation of standalone financial statement and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 

the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 

audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 

cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 

We communicate with those char~ed with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
I. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of 

sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 

of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purposes of our audi t. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books. 

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including the statement of other comprehensive income), the cash flow 

statement and statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 

133 ofthe Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of 

Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of sub-section 

(2) of Section 164 of the Act. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B. 

g. The Company has not paid / not provided for managerial remuneration in the books of accounts. Accordingly, provisions of 

Section 197 of the Act is not applicable to the Company. 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule (11) of the Companies (Audit 

and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position in the standalone financial 

statements - Refer Note 29 of the standalone financial statements; 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 

foreseeable losses; and 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Company. 

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or 

loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 

Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 
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• directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 

• provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are either material 

either individually or in aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign 

entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company 

shall, 

• directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate 

Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or 

• provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate on the circumstances, 

nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representation under sub-cluse (i) and (ii) of 

Rule ll(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

v. The Company has not declared and paid dividend during the year. 

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, for maintaining books of account using accounting software 

which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2023, and 

accordingly, reporting under Rule ll(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2023. 

For SHAH GUPTA & CO., 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 109574W 

~ 
Parth P Patel 

Partner 

M. No.172670 

UDIN: 23172670BGXTNJ369 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: May 10, 2023 
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to the Members of 

Piombino Steel Limited of even date) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(a) (A) The Company does not have property, plant and equipment's and accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (i) (a) 

(A) of the Order is not applicable. 

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, the 

Company does not have any Intangible assets and accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (i) (a) (B) of the Order is 

not applicable. 

(b) The Company does not have property, plant and equipment's and accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (i) (b) of the 

Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 

Company, the Company does not hold any immovable property during the year. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 

(i) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets during 

the year. 

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are 

pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 

1988) and Rules made thereunder. 

(a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management during the year and, 

in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by Management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed 

on physical verification of inventory by the Management, as compared to book records were not material and have been 

appropriately dealt with in the books of account. No discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory 

were noticed in respect of such physical verification. 

(b) During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate from 

banks and financial institutions and accordingly, the question of our commenting on whether the quarterly returns or 

statements are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company does not arise. 

(iii) The Company has not made any investments, granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances in nature of loans, or stood guarantee, 

or provided security to any parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b),(iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(e) 

and (iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(Iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments, guarantees and 

securities granted during the year in respect of which provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable to the Company. 

Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are 

deemed to be deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73 to Section 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under 

to the extent notified. 

(vl ) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Act for any 

of the products by the Company. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records of the company examined by us, the Company 

is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, 

employees' state insurance, income tax, service tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable 

to it. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 

income tax, service tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues which were outstanding, at the year 

end, for a year of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, goods and 

service tax, income tax; duty of excise, duty of excise, value added tax, and cess which have not been deposited on account 

of any dispute. 
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viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there is no income 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been 

recorded in the books of account. 

(ix) 

(x} 

(xi) 

(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, the Company 

has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender. 

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the 

Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 

authority. 

(c} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the money raised by way of the term loans 

have been applied by the Company during the year for the purpose for which it was raised. 

(d} According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an overall 

examination of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company, the Company has not obtained any short-term loans 

during the year. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (ix} (d} is not applicable to the Company. 

(e} According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the Financial Statements of the 

Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 

obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 

(f} According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the Company 

has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

(a} The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments} 

during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 (x) (a} of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 

the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 

debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (x) (b} of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally 

accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come 

across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we 

been informed of any such case by the Management. 

(b} During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally 

accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, a report under sub­

clause (12} of Section 143 of the Act, in Form ADT-4, was not required to be filed. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xi} 

(b} of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(c} During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance with the generally 

accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, and as represented to 

us by the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company. Accordingly, 

reporting under clause 3(xi)(c} of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xii) As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the reporting under clause 3(xii} of the 

Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xiii} According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures performed by us, transactions with 

the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in 

the notes to the standalone financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv} (a} The internal audit of the Company is covered under the group internal audit pursuant to which an internal audit is carried 

out every year. In our opinion, the Company's internal audit system is commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

(b} The reports of the Internal Auditor for the year under audit have been considered by us. 

(xv} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the 

Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with Directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, reporting 

under paragraph 3 (xv) of the Ord.er is not applicable to the Company. 



(xvi) (a) The Company's financial assets are more than SO per cent of its total assets (netted off by intangible assets) and income 

from financial assets is more than 50 per cent of the gross income. Accordingly, the tests for determining 'Principal Business' 

mentioned in Reserve Bank of India, non-banking financial company (NBFC) regulations are met. As informed to us, the 

Company is in the process of obtaining experts advice for complying with the registration under Section 45-IA of the Reserve 

Bank of India Act, 1934. 

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial/ housing finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration 

(CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 

(xvi) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. 

Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(d) We have been informed by the management that as per the definition of Group under Core Investment Companies (Reserve 

Bank) Directions 2016, there is one Core Investment Company (CIC) which is registered and three CICs which are not 

required to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India, forming part of the promoter group. 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, reporting under clause (xviii) is not 

applicable to the Company. 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios (Also refer Note lB (II) and Note 

33 to the Standalone Financial Statements), ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 

liabilities, other information accompanying the Standalone Financial Statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 

management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, 

which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of 

meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a year of one year from the balance 

sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our 

reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 

liabilities falling due within a year of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they 

fall due. 

(xx) (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) on other than ongoing projects requiring a 

transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (S) of 

Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of Order is not applicable for the year. 

(b) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a 

Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (6) of Section 135 of 

the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of Order is not applicable for the year. 

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone Financial Statements. Accordingly, 

no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report. 

For SHAH GUPTA & CO., 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 109574W 

~ 
Parth P Patel 

Partner 

M . No.172670 

UDIN: 23172670BGXTNJ369 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: May 10, 2023 
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial statements under Clause (i) of sub­

section (3) of Section 143 of the Act 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Piombino Steel Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 

2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control 

over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 

company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 

standalone financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under sub-section (10) of Section 

143 of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 

and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 

controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such 

controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting 

with reference to these standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 

the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Standalone financial statements 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements is a process 

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control 

over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 

to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of 

the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the standalone 

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company 

are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable 

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could 

have a material effect on the standalone financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Standalone financial statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial 

statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 

or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 

with reference to these standalone financial statements to future year are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 

financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 

procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, 

an adequate internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls 

were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial 

statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 

on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For SHAH GUPTA & CO., 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 109574W 

~ 
/ 

Parth P Patel 

Partner 

M. No.172670 

UDIN: 23172670BGXTNJ369 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: May 10, 2023 
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PIOMBINO mEl LIMITED 

Standalone Balance Sheet as at Man:h 31, 2023 

CIN No. - UZ7320MH2018PLO74653 

Partlculars 

I ASSETS 

Ill Non-<urrent assets 

(a) Investment ;n a subsidiary 

(bl Financial assets 

(I) Other financial assets 

le) Deferred tax assets (netl 

(d) Current tax assets (net) 

Total non-current assets 

(21 Current assets 

(al Inventories 

(b) Flnancial assets 

(I) Trade receivables 

1111 Cash and cash equivalents 

(lii) Other llnancial assets 

le) Other current assets 

Total current assets 

Total Assets 

H EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 

(bl Other equity 

Total Equity 

Uallllllles 
Ill Non-current Uabllltles 

(a) Flnanclal liabilities 

Ill Borrowings 

(II) Other financial llabllltles 

Total non-<urrent llabHlties 

(ZJ Current llabllltles 
(a) Financlal liabilities 

(1) Borrowings 

(Ill Trade payables 

(al Total outstandlnc due of micro and smaU enterprises 

(b) Total ouutandlnB due of creditors other than mlao and 
small enterprises 

(Ill) Other flnanclal llabllltles 

(bl Other current llabHlties 

Total current llabUltles 

Total lllbllltles 

Total Equity and Llabllltles 

See accompanylnl notes to the standalone flnanclal statements 

As per our attached report of even date 
For Shah Gupta & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 109574W 

Partner 
Membership No.: 172670 
UDIN: 23172670BGXTNJ7369 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 10 May, 2023 

Note No 

2 

3 

24 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

Kaustubh Kulllaml 
Chief Executive Officer 

As at 

March 31 2023 

8,550.00 

0.04 

23.84 

8,573.88 

4.18 

36.91 

0.03 

951.37 

24.93 

1,017..42 

9,S91..30 

6,092.92 

261.05 

6,353.96 

112.27 

6.09 

118.36 

2,481.36 

45.10 

592.51 

3,118.97 

3,237.33 

9,591.30 

Dlvyakumar Bhalr 
Director 

DIN: 08568679 

;'I 

Company Secretary 
M. No A15967 

Rs. In crores 
Ant 

Man:h 311 2022 

8,550.00 

0.27 

26.83 

8,577.10 

445.36 

4.23 

464.13 

15.02 

928.74 

9,505.84 

6,092.92 

93.00 

6,185.92 

2,525.22 

230.63 

2,755,85 

447.17 

116.46 

0.44 

564.07 

3,31.9,92 

9,505.84 

MohltGoyal 
Chief Financial Officer 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year anded Marth 31, 2023 

ON No, • U27320MH2018PLC374653 

Partlallan 

I. Revenue from operations 
11. Other Income 
Ill, Total I-11+11) 

IV. Expe-
Purdlase of stock-In-trade 
Finance costs 
Chanp In lnYentory of Stock-In trade 
Other expenses 
Total expenses 

V. Profit before tu (RI-N) 

VI. Tu. eJ!PeflM/(aadlt) 
Cumnttax 

Defenedtn 

W. Prvflt for the year (V-VI) 

VIII. Otllar a,mpqllenslve In-./ (loas) 

IX. Total ClllllllftMllll lnco.- for the yw (Vll+WI) 

X. Eamlnp perequlty lhant of Rs. 10 udl 
Basic 
DUuted 

5H accompanVl!II notes ID the ltandllDM ftnandll statemenb 

Al per our attached report of even date 
For Shih Gupta a Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Rrm Reptratlon No.: 109574W 

~ 
P1trth P P1l1I 
Partner 
Membership No.: 172670 
UOIN: 23172&70BGXTNJ7369 
Pi.te: Mwnbal 
Date: 10 May, 2023 

Note No. 

18 
19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

23 

KnlblbllKulraml 
Chief Executive Officer 

Rs. In uores 
For the year ended For the year~ 

Mardi 31. 2023 March 31, 2022 
45.46 560.36 

537.94 507.00 

5U.40 ______ 1a..,067_ .3_&_ 

49.89 
311,98 

(4.18) 

1.02 
358.71 

224.69 

56.69 

10.04) 
56.65 

161.04 

161.04 

0.28 
0.28 

559.55 
434.98 

1.97 
996.50 

70,86 

26.39 
(40.90) 

(14.52) 

as.aa 

85,ill 

0.21 
o.oe 

For and on behalf of the IIOll'd~ f rs 

___,, • I 

Dlvyakumar lllelr An~ mar lnth 
Director Director 

DIN: 08568679 DIN: 02059903 

l"JmiY' 
MohltGoyal 

Chief Flnandal Officer 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023 

CIN No. - U27320MH2018PLO74653 

Pa rtlcu la rs 

A. Cash flow from operating activities 

Profit before tax 

Adjustments fat : 

Finance costs 

Interest Income 

Lou from oporatiog adMUes 

Ch1111es In wurld,. capital 

Adjustments for: 

Decrease/(lncrease) In trade receivables 

(Decrease) in other assets 

(Dem,ase)/lncrease In trade payables and other Uabilltles 

cash aenerated/(used) In operations 
Direct taxes paid 

Net cash used In opentlnc actlvlUes (A) 

a. Cash flow from lnvestflll Kthrittes 
Investment In equity shares 

Net aish used In lnvutmc tiC'IM\Jft IB) 

C. Clsh flow from hncm, activities 
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 

Anance costs paid 

Annual fees paid 

Net cash pne,ated/(used In) flnancilll activity (C) 

Net decreMe In aish and cash~ (A+Bt<:I 

Cash and cash equivalents at the bepnnlnc of the year 
Cash and cash equlvalents recelved on acquisition (refer note 301 

cash and cash equivalents at lhe end of the ye~r 

Note, 

L The statement of cash flows is prepared using the "indirect method" set out In Ind AS 7 •statement of Cash Flows• 

II. Reconr.lllollons JW(I of cash flows 
PIRICIIUHS 

llalllnce as on Mardi 31, 2022 

Un1mnnlnd upfront fu, 
L01n rrom • ralJted party 

l11■ra as on Mardi 31. 2023 

See ■-pUlyl .. - to the standalon• ftnanclal stat-

As per our attached report of even dat1 
For Sllah Gupta & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registrlltlon No.: 109574W 

Partner 
Membership No.: 1n&10 
UDIN: 231n670BGXlll.l7369 
Place: Mumbai 
Dote: 10 May, 2023 

Borrowlnp 

2.525.22 
12.14 

56.27 

Z.S!B.&J 

Kaustubh Kullwnl 
Chief Executive Officer 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Equity 

224.69 

31198 

(537.!M) 

11.zn 

408.12 

36,58 

(402.52) 

40,91 
(53.701 

(12.78) 

56.27 

(47.69) 

1.51 
l• .llll 

4.23 

6.092.92 

6,092.92 

Dlvyakum■r Bllalr 
Director 

DIN: 08568679 

Rs. In crores 

For the year ended 
March 31, ZOZ2 

Total 

70.86 

434.98 

(507.00) 

(1.16) 

(435.18) 

13.80 

393.90 

(28.64) 

(1.25) 

(29.90) 

(0.31) 

(D.31) 

56.00 

(37.501 

(43.75) 

(ZS.lSj 
(SSAS) 

59.66 

0,03 

4.23 

---
8.611.J.4 

12.14 

56.27 

a,&•.ss 

Mohlt6oyal 
Chief Flnandal Officer 



(a) Equity share caphal 

PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Standalone Sbtlment of chancet In oqulty for lh1 YIM ended March 31, 2023 

ON No.• U27320MHl011Pt.C3741iSJ 

Particulars Rs In aores 
As at March 31, 2021 1,667.29 

Shu .. i..ued durlnt theyar 2,797 55 

Reclas5ification of equity component within equity 1,628.08 

As at Mllrdi 31, 211ZZ 6,092.92 

Shara is5Ued durins the year 

Reclauif1<1llon of equity component within equity 

As at March 31, 2023 

(bJ Oth■r OIIU~ 

Partlculars 

Nature 

Opffllnl bala,-•atAprill, 2021 

Profit for the yur 

Arisins on account for business combination (refer nolll 30) 

Revo,wl of deferred tax liability on conversion of OFCDI 

Reclassiflcallon of equity compontnt wtlhln equity 

Casini balance as at Msdl 31, 2022 

Profrt for the period 

Transfer to debenture redemption reserve 

Cosine balance as at -di 31, 2023 

see accampanylna ..-to the llandlllone ftn■nclal --

As par our 1t1Kh■d report of even date 
For Shah Gupta • co. 
Chartered Accauntants 
f'lffll R91lstralion No.: 109574W 

Partner 
Membership No.: 172670 
UDIN: 2.3172670BGXTNJ7369 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 10 May, 2023 

Equity com,-,tof 
financial lnstruman1I Retalnadumlnp 

1,322.91 (6.84) 

15.38 
. 

305.17 

(1,621.01) 
. .,..~ 

1611.~ 

1246.58) 
. . 

IIHllvH asurplu• 

Debetlrura ReillfflPdon - -
. 
. 
. 
. 
. 

246.51 

Z4li.5I 

Capitol llllaWI on acmunt 
of lhulnfls com bin-

1 

0.47 1 

0.'7 

. 
0.47 

r~ 
,.-. 

ICaunubh Kulkarni 
Chief Executive Officer 

6,092.92 

Rs. lncrores 

Maney received qalnst 
Tatel 

share warranu 

I 
1,316.07 

85.38 

0.47 

30517 

14.00 .:. 61.S C·S 

14.00 93.01 

168.04 

14.00 l.61.05 

For and:" ~ I of the '::JI'':"'• 
Dhryalaanar lh■lr ~ 

Director Director 
DIN: 01568679 DIN: 02059903 

comi,any Soae,:a,y 
M.No.Al5~57 

{f)/n'r 
MohitGoyal 

Chief Financ,il Officer 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

General Information 

Piombino Steel Limited ("the Company") is incorporated in India on September 21, 2018 under the 
Companies Act, 2013 with its registered office located at 6th Floor, Grande Palladium, 175, CST Road, 
Kolivery Village, MM RDA Area, Kalina, Santacruz East, Mumbai 400098. 

The Company is engaged in the business of buying, selling and otherwise trading or dealing in steel and 
its allied products, iron ore, coal, coke, brick-earth, ores, minerals and mineral substance, alloys and 
metal scrap of all kinds. 

lA. Recent accounting pronouncements: Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or 
amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued 
from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2023, as below: 

(a) Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose 
their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for 
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023 . The Company has 
evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the standalone financial 
statements. 

(b) Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has 
introduced a definition of 'accounting estimates' and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities 
distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for 
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has 
evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its standalone financial statements. 

(c) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition 
exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary 
differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 
April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its standalone 
financial statement. 

1B. Significant accounting policies 

I. Statement of compliance: 

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 
2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in 
Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as "Standalone Financial Statements") have 
been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended from time to time, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") to the extent notified, 
guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. 

The Standalone Financial Stater __ . t.s 9.9ve been approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting held 
on May 10, 2023. • 

~ 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

II. Basis of preparation and presentation: 

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain 
financial instruments measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period as explained in the 
accounting policies below. which are consistently followed except where a new accounting standard or 
amendment to the existing accounting standards requires a change in the policy hitherto applied. 
Presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, "as amended", as 
applicable to the Standalone Financial Statements have been followed. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is 
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an 
asset or a liability, the Company takes in account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market 
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the 
measurement date. 

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1,2, or 
3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the 
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows: 

• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
the entity can access at the measurement date; 

• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR') in crore rounded off to two 
decimal places as permitted by Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 except when otherwise stated . 

Current and non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current 
classification. 

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

• it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal 
operating cycle. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

• it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or 
• it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 

for at least 12 months after the reporting date. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 
• it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle; 
• it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
• it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or the Company does not have an 

unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting 
date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the 
issue of equity instruments do not affect its cla .sifh;a;tl'on. 

I • 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. / F-



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in 
cash and cash equivalents 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only. 

Further, the directors of the Company have given consideration to the liquidity of the Company having 
regard to its current liabilities exceeding current assets by Rs. 2,101 .55 Crores as at March 31, 2023 
mainly on account of redemption of non-convertible debentures alongwith the premium accrued 
thereon. The Company plans to meet the said deficit for the forthcoming year by receiving the financing 
from the Parent Company. Having regard to the above, the financial statements have been prepared on 
a going concern basis. 

Ill. Revenue recognition 

Sale of Goods 

The Company recognizes revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred to the 
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in 
exchange for those goods or services. 

Revenue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price 
concessions, incentives, or other similar items in a contract when they are highly probable to be provided. 
The amount of revenue excludes any amount collected on behalf of third parties. 

The Company recognises revenue generally at the point in time when the products are delivered to 
customer or when it is delivered to a carrier for export sale, which is when the control over product is 
transferred to the customer. In contracts where freight is arranged by the Company and recovered from 
the customers, the same is treated as a separate performance obligation and revenue is recognized when 
such freight services are rendered. 

Interest income 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will 
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on 
a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which 
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial 
asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

IV. Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, 
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or 
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their 
intended use or sale. 

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are 
incurred. 

V. Taxes: 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Current tax 

Current tax is the amount of expected tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as determined 
in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities in the Standalone Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary 
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent 
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary 
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary 
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and 
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, 
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition 
of goodwill. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting year and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part 
of the asset to be recovered. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date 
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the 
deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year in 
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting year. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity 
and the same taxation authority. 

Current and deferred tax for the year 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are relating to items that are 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred 
tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current 
tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included 
in the accounting for the business combination. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 
authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

VI. Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Cost of raw materials include cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. Cost of f.inished goods and work in progress include cost of direct 
materials and labor and a propoJtion ' Of m·ar.i ·acturing overheads based on the normal operating 
capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost oftr-a~ ed goods include purchase cost and in~;fra fre~ght. 

• I-#:·~ -~-8) 
I ,\ 
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PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Costs of inventories are determined on weighted average basis. Net realisable value represents the 
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make 
the sale. 

VII. Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive}, as a result 
of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be 
required to settle such an obligation. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surround ing 
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present 
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value 
of money is material}. 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 
from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will 
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

VIII. Investment in subsidiary: 

Investment in subsidiary is shown at cost in accordance with option available in Ind AS 27, 'Separate 
Financial Statements'. Where the carrying amount of an investment in greater than its estimated 
recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount and the difference is 
transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. On disposal of investment, the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

IX. Financial instruments: 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than 
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL} are 
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on 
initial recognition . Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in Standalone Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

Financial assets 

a) Recognition and initial measurement 

A financial asset is initially recognised at fair value and for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised 
on the trade date, which is the dt i crtr ~"vl1rnh the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 

of the instrument. €:=-~ ,_ ~ 
[~: 1> 0 ~' 
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PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

b) Classification of financial assets 

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition and subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair 
value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit and loss. A financial asset 
is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated at FVTPL: 

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual 
cash flows; and 

• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

A debt instrument is classified as FVTOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
recognised at FVTPL; 

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and 

• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held 
for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind 
AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an 
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The 
Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 
recognition and is irrevocable . 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL. 
In addition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise 
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates 
or significantly reduces and accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting year, with any gains and 
losses arising on remeasurement recognized in statement of profit and loss. The net gain or loss recognized 
in statement of profit and loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is 
included in the 'other income' line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized when : 

• The Company's right to receive the dividends is established; 
• It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividends will flow to the entity, 
• The dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of 

dividend can be measured reliably. 

c) De recognition of financial assets 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

d) Effective interest method 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of 
allocating interest income over the relevant year. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an 
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through 
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter year, to the net carrying 
amount on initial recognition . 

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets 
classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognized in statement of profit and loss and is included in the 
'Other income' line item. 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

a) Classification as debt or equity 

Debt and equity instruments issued by a company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity 
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial 
liability and an equity instrument. 

b) Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds 
received, net of direct issue costs. 

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No 
gain or loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of 
the Company's own equity instruments. 

c) Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities 'at FVTPL' or 'other financial liabilities' . at FVTPL 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL: 

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is 
designated as at FVTPL. 

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: 

• It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or 
• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages 
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking; or 
• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument. 

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial 
recognition if: 
• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that 
would otherwise arise; 
• the financial liability fo ~ s part.Q_fl a gi;_oup of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, whi_ch is 
managed and its performance is evaluat e'd on a fair value basis, in accordance with ~t~e Gh- p 's 

/, .: 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided 
internally on that basis; or 
• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the 
entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109. 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement 
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in Statement of Profit and 
Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. For Liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk 
are recognized in OCI. 

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

d) Derecognition of financial liabilities 

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with 
substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and 
the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing 
financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as 
an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid 
and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

X. Segment reporting: 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision maker. The Board of directors of the Company has been identified as the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker which reviews and assesses the financial performance and makes the strategic 
decisions. 

XI. Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits 
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent consists of cash and short­
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral 
part of the Company's cash management. 

XII. Earnings per share: 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year is ad ·.Y:s-te-~r~t easury shares, bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue 
to existing shareholders, shar -~Ii ·anGl' f-eve·t share split (consolidation of shares) . 

"' 
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Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, 
interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive 
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic 
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on 
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares including the treasury shares held by the Company 
to satisfy the exercise of the share options by the employees. 

XIII. Business Combination 

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control shall be accounted for 
using the pooling of interest method. 

lC. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements: 

In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 1 above, the Company is required 
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that 
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis . Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year, 
or in the year of the revision and future year, if the revision affects current and future year. 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty: 

Impa irment of investments in subsidiary 

Determining whether the investments in subsidiaries are impaired requires an estimate in the value in 
use of investments. In considering the value in use, the Directors have anticipated the discount rates and 
other factors of the underlying businesses / operations of the investee companies. Any subsequent 
changes to the cash flows due to changes in the above mentioned factors could impact the carrying value 
of investments. 

Taxes 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is 
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely 
timing and the level of future taxaqJe profits together with future tax planning strategies . 
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2. Investment in Subsidiaries 

Particulars 

Unquoted 

Investment at cost 

(a) Investment in equity instruments 

Subsidiary 

Bhushan Power & Steel Limited (Face value of Rs. 10 each) 

(b) Investment in compulsory convertible debentures (CCDs) 

Subsidiary 

Bhushan Power & Steel Limited (Face value of Rs. 10 each) 

Total Investment 

Less: Aggregate amount of provison for impairment in value of investments 

Total 

Aggregate carrying value 

Notes 

Rs. in crores 
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount 

100,000,000 100.00 100,000,000 100.00 

8,450,000,000 8,450.00 8,450,000,000 8,450.00 

8,550,000,000 8,550.00 8,550,000,000 8,550.00 

8,550.00 8,550.00 

8,550.00 8,550.00 

a) The CCDs shall have a term of 5 (five) years commencing from the date on which the CCDs are issued and allotted i.e. March 25, 2021. The CCDs holders are entitled to receive a 
coupon on an annual basis at the rate of 6% per annum from the date of issue and allotment of CCDs. The CCDs coupon shall be payable on end of quarter from commencement of 
each subsequent quarter in which the interest became due. Each CCD is convertible at any time during the CCD term into one equity shares of face value of Rs. 10.The holder of CCDs 
subject to their discretion shall have the right to direct the company to convert any or all the CCDs at any time during the CCD term. 

b) The Company's investments in CCD's of Bhushan Power & Steel Limited amounting to Rs.8,450 crores were classified as fair value through profit and loss in the earlier years. In terms 
of para 2.l(a) of Ind ASs 109, investment as 'interest in subsidiaries' are scoped out from measurement principles of Ind AS 109. Accordingly, this investment basis Ind AS 109 and the 
terms should be treated as part of 'interests in subsidiaries' and carried at cost less impairment other than Ind AS 109. During the year, based on technical note from expert obtained 
by the Company, it has reclassified the said investments 'from Investment in Subsidiary at FVTPL to Investment in Subsidiary at Cost. 

3. Other non-current financial assets 

Particulars 

Security deposit 

4. Current tax assets (Net) 

Particulars 

Tax Deducted at Source (net of provision for tax amounting to Rs. 23.49 crores, [31 March 2022· Rs. 26.39 crores]) 

5. Inventories 

Particulars 

Stock•in-trade• 

• Pertains to stock-in-transit of Rs 4.18 crores (31 March 2022 : NIL) 

6. Trade receivables 

Particulars 

Trade Receivables considered good • Secured 

Trade receivables considered good • Unsecured 
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 

Trade Receivables• credit impaired 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

As at 

March 31, 2023 
23.84 

23.84 

As at 

March 31, 2023 
4.18 

4.18 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

36.91 

36.91 

Rs. in crores 

As at 

March 31, 2022 
0.27 

0.27 

Rs. in crores 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

26.83 

26.83 

Rs. in crores 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

Rs. In crores 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

445.36 

445.36 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as at March 31 2023 
Particulars 

Undisputed trade receivables· considered good 

Undisputed trade receivables • which have significant increase 
in credit risk 

Undis uted trade receivables• credit im aired 

Dis uted trade receivables • considered ood 

Disputed trade receivabl nt increase in 
credit risk 

Dis uted trade recei 

Not yet due 

36.91 

Less than 6 

months 
6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total 

36.91 
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Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as at 31 March 2022 

Particulars less than 6 
Not yet due 

months 
6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total 

Undisputed trade receivables - considered good . 445.36 445.36 

Undisputed trade receivables - which have significant increase - -
in credit risk 

Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired -
Disputed trade receivables - considered good - - -
credit risk . - - -
Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired - . . . 
The credit period on sales of goods ranges from 7 to 90 days with or without security. Trade receivables does not include any receivables from directors and officers of the Company. 
Details of trade recei vables from related parties has been described in note 25. 

7. Cash and cash equlvalcnts 

Particulars 

Balances with bank 

in current accounts 

8. Other current financial assets (unsecured) 

Particulars 

Interest receivable on CCDs 
Other financial assets 

Security deposit 

Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables 

9. Other current assets 

Particulars 

Balance with government authorities 

Others 
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables 

10. Equity share capital 

Particulars 

(a) Authorised: 
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 

(b) Issued and subscribed 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year, fully paid up 

As at March 31, 2023 

No. of shares Amount 

12,000,000,000 12,000.00 

2,000,000,000 1,667.29 

0.03 4.23 
0.03 4.23 

Rs. in crores 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

951.09 463.87 
0.01 0.26 
0.27 

951.37 464.13 

Rs. in crores 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

24.93 15.00 
0.02 

24.93 15.02 

Rs. in crores 
As at March 31, 2022 

No. of shares Amount 

12,000,000,000 12,000.00 

2,000,000,000 1,667.29 

Add: Shares issued pursuant to conversion of optionally fully covertible debentures (OFCDs) 

Add : Reclassification of equity component within equity 

4,100,000,000 2,797.55 

1,628.08 

4,100,000,000 2,797.55 

1,628.08 

Outstanding at the end of the year, fully paid up 6,100,000,000 6,092.92 6,100,000,000 6,092.92 

(c) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares 

The Company has single class of equity shares. Each holder of equity shares is entitled for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to 
receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amount, in proportion to their shareholding. 

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company are set out below: 

Particulars 

JSW Steel Limited (JSW Steel) (including nominees) 

JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited 

(c Change in Promoter's shareholdln as on March 31 2023: 

Promoter Name 

JSW Steel Limited, the Haldi 
JSW Shi Ing & Logistics Priv 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

No. of Shares 

5,080,000,000 
1,020,000,000 

% of Shares 

83.28% 
16.72% 

No. of Shares 

5,080,000,000 
1,020,000,000 

% of Shares 

83.28% 

16.72% 

1---A_s_a_t _M_a_rrch_31_,_2_0_2_3 __ -,-----,-A_s_a_t_M_a_r.,.c_h_3_1,_2_0_2_2 ___ -, % change during the 
No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares year 

5,080,000,000 83.28% 5,080,000,000 83.28% 

1,020,000,000 16. 72% 1,020,000,000 16. 72% 

/?:. 

::i 
-~ 
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(J) f 

~ 

0.00% 
0.00% 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements 

11. Other equity 

Particulars 

Surplus/ (deficit) in retained earnings 
Capital reserve 

Money received against share warrants 

Debenture redemption reserve 

(a) Retained earnings 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

0.47 

14.00 

246.58 
261.05 

Rs. in crores 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

78 54 
0.47 

14.00 

93.00 

Retained earnings are the profits/(losses) that the Company has earned till date. It is a free reserve available to the Company. 

(b) Capital reserve 
Reserve is created primarily on merger (refer note 30) as per statutory requirement. This reserve is utilised in accordance with the specific provision of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(c) Money received against share warrants 

The Company has issued 3,500,000,000 share warrants each to JSW Steel and JSW Shipping respectively with a subscription price of Rs . 0.02 per warrant. The exercise period is five 
years from the days of issue of the warrants and the warrant holders at their discretion shall be entitled to purchase one equity share of the face value of Rs. 10 each at an exercise 
price of Rs 10. 

(d) Debenture redemption reserve 

The Indian Companies Act requires Companies that issue debentures to create a debenture redemption reserve from annual profits until such debentures are redeemed.Companies are 
required to maintain 10% as a reserve of outstanding redeemable debentures. Debenture redemption has been created to the extent of available reserve in the Company. 

12. Borrowings 

Particulars 

Non-current borrowings (Unsecured) 

(i) Debentures 

Borrowings through Non convertible bonds (NCBs) 

Less: Unamortised upfront fees on borrowings 

Less: Current maturities of long term debt from a related party classified as short term borrowings 

(ii) Term loans 

From related party 

(a) Borrowings through NCBs 

Particulars 

Non-Convertibles Bonds (NCBs) 

(b) loan from JSW Steel limited 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

2,500 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

2,500 

Rs. in crores 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

2,500.00 2,500.00 
(18.64) (30.78) 

2,481.36 2,469.22 
(2,481.36) 

2,469.22 

112.27 56.00 

112.27 2,525.22 

Term of repayment 

Unsecured NCBs of Rs. 10,00,000 each aggregating to Rs. 2,500 
crores and are redeemable on March 22, 2024 at a premium of 
9% to be compounded annually and payable at redemption. 

The Company has borrowed from JSW Steel amounting to Rs. 40,000,000 bearing an interest rate of 10.75% and is repayable on March 31, 2024 however as per management intention 
to extend the maturity by another two years, the same has been classified as non-current only. The principal and accrued interest thereon shall be unsecured obligations of the 
Company, and rank pari passu with any other unsecured and unsubordinated creditors of the Company. 

The Company has borrowed from JSW Steel amounting to Rs. 520,000,000 bearing an interest rate of 11.25% and is repayable on March 31, 2024 however as per management 
intention to extend the maturity by another two years, the same has been classified as non-current only. The principal and accrued interest thereon shall be unsecured obligations of 
the Company, and rank pari passu with any other unsecured and unsubordinated creditors of the Company. 

The Company has borrowed from JSW Steel amounting to Rs. 562,712,500 bearing an interest rate of 11.25% and is repayable on March 31, 2024 however as per management 
intention to extend the maturity by another two years, the same has been classified as non-current only. The principal and accrued interest thereon shall be unsecured obligations of 
the Company, and rank pari passu with any other unsecured and unsubordinated creditors of the Company. 

13. Other non-current financial liabilities 

Particulars 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 
Premium on redemption of non-convertible debentures 

14. Borrowings 

Particulars 

Current borrowings /. ' 

Current maturities of non convertible debenture (Refer note 12)' 

As at 

March 31, 2023 
6.09 

6.09 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

2,481.36 
2,481.36 

Rs. in crores 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

0.31 
230.32 

230.63 

Rs. in crores 

As at 

March 31, 2022 
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15. Trade payables 

Particulars 

(a) Total outstanding, dues of micro and small enterprises 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

Disclosure pertaining to micro, small and medium enterprises (as per information available with the Company] 

Description 

Principal amount due outstanding as at end of year 
Principal amount overdue more than 45 days 

Interest due on above and unpaid as at end of year 

Interest paid to the supplier 

Payments made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during the year 

Interest due and payable for the year of delay 

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at end of year 

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in 
succeeding year 

(b) Total outstanding, dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 

Payable for operational creditors 
Others 

Ageing as at March 31, 2023 

Particulars 

MSME 

Others 

Disputed dues - MSME 

Disputed dues - Others 

Ageing as at March 31, 2022 

Particulars 

MSME 
Others 

Disputed dues - MSME 

Disputed dues - Others 
Payables are normally settled within 180 days, 

16, Other current financial liabilities 

Particulars 

Interest accrued and due on borrowings 

Premium on redemption of non-convertible debentures 

17. Other current liabilities 

Particulars 

Statutory dues 

18. Revenue from operations 

Particulars 

Sale of traded goods 

Unbilled 

. 
0.13 
. 
-

Unbilled 

0.96 

. 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

45,10 

45.10 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 

. . 
43.94 1.03 . 

. 
-

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 

. . 
446.21 

. 

. . 

2-3 years 

. 

. 

. 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

116.46 
476,06 

592.52 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

45.46 

45.46 

Rs. in crores 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

447.17 

447 .17 

Total 

. 
45.10 

-

Total 

. 
447.17 

. 

. 

Rs. ln crores 

As at 

March 311 2022 

116.46 

116.46 

Rs. in crores 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

0.44 

0.44 

Rs. In crores 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

560.36 

560.36 
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Ind AS 115 (Revenue from contracts with customers) 
The Company has assessed and determined the following categories for disaggregation of revenue in addition to that provided under segment disclosure : 

Particulars 

Revenue from contracts with customer - sale of products 

Trading of steel products 

Total revenue from operations 

India 

Outside India 

Total revenue from operations 

Timing of revenue recognition 

At a point in time 

Total revenue from operations 

Contract balances 

Particulars 

Trade receivables 

19. Other income 

Particulars 

Interest Income earned on financial assets 

Other Miscellaneous Income 

20. Purchase of stock-in-trade 

Particulars 

Purchase of traded goods 

21. Finance costs 

Particulars 

Premium on redemption of non-convertible debentures 

Interest on borrowings 

Unwinding of interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 

Other borrowing costs 

22.Otherexpenses 

Particulars 

Legal and professional fees 

Miscellaneous expenses 

a) Remuneration to auditors Included In legal and professional Fees 
As Statutory audit fees (including limited reviews) 
For certification and other services 

b) Corporate social responslbllltly {CSR) 

I Particular 

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 

(b) Amount spent on: 

(i) Construction/ acquisition of assets 
1111 On purposes other than (I) above (fo r CSR proJects) 

(c) Details of related party transactions 

(d) Nature of CSR activities 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

45.46 560.36 
45.46 560.36 

45.46 560.36 

45.46 560.36 

45.46 560.36 
45.46 560.36 

Rs. in crores 

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

36.91 445.36 

Rs. In crores 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

537.92 507.00 
0.02 

537.94 507.00 

Rs. In crores 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

49.89 559.55 
49.89 559.55 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

245.73 227.12 
6.42 6.59 

12.14 157.32 
47.69 43.95 

311.98 434.98 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

0.51 0.57 
0.51 1.39 
1.02 1.97 

0.25 0.24 
0.04 

For the year ended 31 March ,2023 For the year ended 31 March ,2022 

In- Cash 
Yet to be paid in 

In-Cash 
Yet to be paid In 

cash cash 

0.44 . - . 

. 0.44 - -
Amount paid to JSW Foundation, a related party in relation to CSR 
expenditure(refer note 25 ) 

1. Public health infrastructure, capacity building & support programs 
2. Project management cost 
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23. Earnings per share 

Particulars 

Net profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders for the year (A) 

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of 
calculating basic earnings per share (B) 

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of 
calculating diluted earnings per share (C) 
Earnings per share 

Basic (Face value of Rs. 10 each) (A/B) 
Diluted (Face value of Rs. 10 each) (A/B) 

24. Income Tax 

A. Income Tax expense 

Particulars 

Current tax 

Deferred tax 

Total tax expense 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

168.04 

6,100,000,000 

6,100,000,000 

0.28 

0.28 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

56.69 
(0.04) 

56.65 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 

85.38 

4,044,383,562 

11,044,383,562 

0.21 

0.08 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 

26.39 

(40.90} 
(14.52) 

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit before tax at the statutory income tax rate to recognised income tax expense for the year indicated are as 

Particulars 

Effective tax rate reconciliation 

Profit before tax 
Enacted tax rate in India 

Expected income tax expense at statutory tax rate 

Tax effect of expenses not deductible in determining taxable profits 

Deferred tax assets not recognized 
Tax expense for the year 

Effective income tax rate 

B. Deferred tax asset (net) 

Deferred tax balance in relation to 

Others 

Total tax expense 

25. Related party disclosures as required by Ind AS 24 

A. Relationships 

1. Holding Company 

JSW Steel Limited (with effect from October 1, 2021) 

2. The investing party in respect of which the reporting enterprise is a Joint venture 

JSW Steel Limited (upto September 30, 2021) 
JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited (upto September 30, 2021) 

3. Subsidiary Company 

Bhushan Power & Steel Limited (with effect from March 26, 2021) 

West Waves Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited (with effect from November 24, 2021) 

4. Fellow Subsidiary Company 

JSW Steel Coated Products Limited 

Recognised 
As at 31-Mar-22 /reversed through 

profit and loss 

0.04 
0.04 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

224.69 

25.17% 

56.65 

0.04 

56.69 
25.23% 

Recognised 
/reclassified from 
other 
comprehensive 
income 

Asian Color Coated lspat Limited (amalgamted with JSW Steel Coated Products Limited with effect from February 24, 2023) 

JSW Vallabh Tinplate Private Limited 

~? 
f' p:, ,, 

t '·-S-80 ;:> [(? 1/< 

t~ ff\ y~ 
::.- '" 

/ ' c:,, q 

* 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 

70.86 

25.17% 

17.83 

8.55 

26.39 
37.24% 

Rs. in crores 

As at 31-Mar-23 

0.04 
0.04 
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S. Key Management Personnel 

Mr. Kaustubh Kulkarni (with effect from January 19, 2022) 

Mr. Moh it Goyal (with effect from January 19, 2022) 
Mr. Alok Kumar Mishra 

6. Board of Directors 

Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta (with effect from December 1,2021) 
Mr. Anil Kumar Singh (with effect from December 1,2021) 

Mr. Divyakumar Bhair (with effect from December 1,2021) 

Mr. Anunay Kumar (with effect from December 1,2021) 

Dr. (Mrs.) Rakhi Jain (with effect from December 1,2021) 
Mr. Bhushan Prasad (upto December 1,2021) 

Mr. Sundeep Jain (upto December 1,2021) 

Mr. Sriram K.S .N. (upto December 1,2021) 

7. Other related party 

JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited (with effect from October 01, 2021) 

West Waves Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited (upto November 23, 2021) 

B. Transactions with related parties 

Particulars 

Bhushan Power & Steel Limited 

Interest income 
JSW Steel Limited 

Loan received 

Finance costs 

Purchase of steel products 
Rent expense 

JSW Steel Coated Products Limited 

Trading of steel products 
Asian Color Coated lspat Limited 

Trading of steel products 

JSW Vallabh Tlnplated Private Limited 

Trading of steel products 
West Waves Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited 

Advance given 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on our behalf 

Finance costs 
JSW Foundation 

CSR expenditure 

Director Remuneration 

Remuneration to Kaustabh Kulkarni• 

"Rs. 1000 
Notes: 

1. Transactions are inclusive of taxes wherever applicable. 

Chief Executive Officer 
Chief Financial Officer 

Company Secretary 

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 

Independent Non-Executive Director 

Independent Non-Executive Director 
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

537.92 

56.27 

6.42 
41.81 

0.01 

23.39 

0.44 

0.00 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 

507.00 

56.00 

157.66 
663.65 

341.04 

63.06 

73.09 

0.05 
0.81 

181.12 

0.00 

2. The Independent Non-Executive Directors are paid remuneration by way of sitting fees. The Company paid to them by way of sitting fees during current year is • 0.018 crores 
(previous year ·0.012 crores), which is not included above. 

Terms and conditions 

Sales 

The sales to related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and in the ordinary course of business. Sales transactions are based on 
prevailing price lists and memorandum of understanding signed with related parties. For the year ended 31 March, 2023, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables 

relating to amounts owed by related parties 

Purchases 

The purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and in the ordinary course of business. Purchase transactions are 
based on made on normal commercial terms and conditions and market rates 

The transactions other than mentioned above are also in the ordinary course of business and at arms' length basis. 

I 



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED 

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements 

C. Balances with related parties 

Particulars 

Bhushan Power & Steel Limited 

Interest receivable 
JSW Steel Limited 

Loan outstanding 

Interest payable 

Trade payables 
JSW Steel Coated Products Limited 

Trade receivables 

Asian Color Coated lspat Limited 

Trade receivables 

JSW Vallabh Tinplated Private Limited 

Trade receivables 

JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited 

Interest payable 

JSW Foundation 

CSR expenditure 

26. Financial Instruments 

26.1 Capital Risk Management 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

951.09 

112.27 
122.08 
43.59 

23.38 

0.47 

0.44 

Rs. in crores 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

515.30 

56.00 
116,30 
445.65 

340.75 

31.51 

48.03 

0.47 

The Company maintains a strong credit rating through optimum mix of debt and equity. The principal source of funding of the Company is from inter corporate loans, capital markets 
and investors. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. The Company regularly considers other financing and refinancing opportunities to diversify 
its debt profile, reduce interest cost and elongate the maturity of its debt portfolio. The Company monitors its capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt, divided to total equity. Net 
debt includes, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents and current investments. 

Particulars 

Borrowings 
Less: Cash and cash equivalent 

Net debt 

Total equity 

Gearing ratio 

Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Company that are managed as capital and debt is defined as long and short term borrowings. 

26.2 Categories of financial instruments 

The accounting classification of each category of financial instruments and their carrying amounts are set out below: 

As at March 31, 2023 

Particulars 

Financial assets 

Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Other financial assets 

Total 

Financial liabilities 

Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 

Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 

Total 

As at March 31, 2022 

Particulars 

Financial assets 

Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Other financial assets 

Total 

Financial liabilities 

Long term borrowings 

Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 

Total 

Amortised cost 

36.91 
0.03 

951.37 
988.31 

2,593.63 
45.10 

598.60 
3,237.33 

Amortised cost 

445.36 
4.23 

464.40 
913.99 

2,525.22 
447.17 
347.09 

3,319.48 

Fair value through 
profit and loss 

Fair value through 
profit and loss 

As at 

Marsh 31, 2023 
2,593.63 

(0.03) 
2,593.60 

6,353.96 

0.41 

Total carrying value 

36.91 
0.03 

951.37 
988.31 

2,593.63 
45.10 

598.60 
3,237.33 

Total carrying value 

445.36 
4.23 

464.40 
913.99 

2,525.22 
447.17 
347.09 

3,319.48 

Rs. in crores 
As at 

March3.1, 2022 
2,525.22 

(4.23) 

2,520.99 

6,185.92 

0.41 

Rs. in crores 

Total fair value 

36.91 
0.03 

951.37 
988.31 

2,593.63 
45.10 

598.60 
3,237.33 

Rs. In crores 

Total fair value 

445.36 
4.23 

464.40 
913.99 

2,525.22 
447.17 
347.09 

3,319.48 
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27. Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments 

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets and other financi al li abilities !other than those specifically disclosed) are 
considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature. A significant part of the financial assets is classified as Level 2. The fair value of these assets is marked to 
an active market or based on observable market data, The financial assets carried at fair value by the Company are mainly investments in debt securities, accordingly, any material 
volatility is not expected. 

Details of financial assets/liabilities measured at amortised cost but fair value disclosed in category-wise 

Particulars 

Long term borrowings (Including current maturities) 

Carrying value 

Fair value 

27.1 Market risk management 

Level and valuation techniques 

Level 2, estimated by discounting 
expected future cash flows using a 
discount rate equivalent to the risk­
free rate of return adjusted for cred it 
spread considered by lenders for 

instruments of similar maturities. 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

2,593.63 

2,593.63 

Rs. in crores 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

2,525.22 

2,525.22 

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realisable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a 
financial instrument may change as a result of changes in interest rates, price fluctuations, liquidity and other market changes. Future specific market movements cannot be normally 
predicted with reasonable accuracy. 
27.2 Interest risk management 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is not exposed to 
interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at fixed interest rates. The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated in rupees with fixed rates of interest. 

27.3 Liquidity risk management 

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of financial distress or extraordinary high financing costs arising due to shortage of liquid funds in a situation where business conditions unexpectedly 
deteriorate and requiring financing. 
As at March 31, 2023 

Particulars 

Financial assets 

Trade receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Other financial assets 
Total 

Financial liabilities 

Long term borrowings 

Trade payables 

Other financial liabilities 

Total 

As at March 31, 2022 

Particulars 

Financial assets 

Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Other financial assets 

Total 

Financial liabilities 

Long term borrowings 

Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 

Total 

27.4 Credit risk management 

< 1 year 

36.91 
0.03 

951.37 

988.31 

2,481.36 

45.10 
592.51 

3,118.97 

< 1 year 

445.36 
4.23 

464.13 

913.72 

447.17 

116.46 

563.63 

1-5 years 

112.27 

6.09 

118.36 

1-5 years 

0.25 

0.25 

2,525.22 

230.63 
2,755.85 

> 5 years 

> 5 years 

0.02 
0.02 

Rs. In crores 

Total 

36.91 
0.03 

951.37 

988.31 

2,593.63 
45.10 

598.60 

3,237.33 

Rs. in crores 

Total 

445.36 

4.23 

464.40 

913.99 

2,525 .22 
447.17 

347.09 

3,319.48 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Currently, the Company has limited customer base. 
The Company selects customers after due diligence based on creditworthiness as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. 

28. Segment reporting 
The Company is in the business of coal and steel products trading activity, primarily operated in India and regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker for assessment of 

Rs. In crores 

Particulars 

Domestic 

Revenue from operations have been allocated on the basis of location of customers. 

b. Non-current assets 

All non-current assets of the Company are located in India. 

c. Customer contributing more than 10% of revenue 

Particulars 

JSW Steel Coated Products Limited 

Namco Industries Private Limited 
Apl Apollo Tubes Limited 
Elamrin Mercantile Private Limited 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

45.46 

45.46 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

23.39 
13.52 

36.91 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 

560.36 

560.36 

Rs. in crores 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 

560.36 

560.36 
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements 

29. Contingent Liabilities 

The Company does not have any contingent liabilities as on March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022 : NIL). 

30. Previous year's figures have been reclassified/regrouped, wherever necessary, to confirm with the current period classification in comply with requirements of the amended 
Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. 

31. West Waves Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company with effect from November 24, 2021, upon acquisition of its entire 
equity sharehold ing from Magnificient Merchandise and Advisory Services Private Limited for a premium of Rs. 9.17 per share. The Company had earlier availed financial assistan ce 
from West Waves Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited amounting to Rs. 2500 crores in relation to the acquisition of the Bhushan Power and Steel Limited. 

32. The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on the January 19, 2022 considered and approved the Scheme of Amalgamation pursuant to Section 233 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013, providing for the merger of its wholly owned subsidiary West Waves with the Company. The Regional Director of Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, Western Region vide order dated May 6, 2022 approved the scheme of amalgamation of West Waves with the Company. Pursuant to receiving all the necessary 
regulatory and other approvals, West Waves merged with the Company with effect from December 1, 2021. Accordingly, the Company in the previous year had accounted for the 
merger under the pooling of interest method as prescribed in Ind AS 103 - Business Combination of entity under common control. 

Particulars Amount In Rs. Crore 

Assets 

Loans 2500.00 
Other financial assets 155.59 
Trade receivables 0.01 
Cash and cash equivalents 0-03 
Other current assets 30.90 
Total (A) 2686.52 

Liabilities 

Borrowings 2500.00 
Other financial liabilities 155.34 

Trade payable 0.01 
Other financial liabilities 0.01 

Other current liabilities 30.38 

Total (B) 2,685.75 

Total identifiable net assets acquired at book value (C) = (A-8) 0.78 

Investments (D) 0.31 
Capital reserve arising on merger (C-D) 0.47 
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33. Ratio Analysis 

r SNo ~ 

" ' ~ "'" "' b•• I' Omol 

Ratios 

-1-

2 Debt Equity Ratio (In times) 

3 ~bl service coverage ratio (In times) 

4 R•1tm, on Equity 1%) 

Numerator Denominator FY 22·23 

Current 
Currenl A.5Sets 

Liabilities 

-
Total Total Equity 

M1rnw~•lnl<= •---+---- ,­
Profit before 
r ... E•ceptiOnal 
Items, Net Finance 
Depreciation , Charses 

Net Finance 

~-- - 1----
Average 

Profit after 1.. Shareholder's 

a 33 

041 

019 

268!1 

>- 1- _ _ e-'-q-'-u_itv-'---t----

5 lnventarv Turnover 

6 Debtors Turnover (In limes) 

--- -~- -
7 Trad!? payables turnover Un limes) 

8 Net capital turnove, (In times) 

9 Net Profit Margin "') 

10 Return on capitill employed f"I 

Cost of Goods Ave,ill• 

Sold ln"""t~ 

Gross sales 

Purchoses of 
stock-In-trade • 
chanae in 
11\VHll(IN 

Net Sales 

Net profit for 
the year 

Profit before 
ra-. Exceptional 
ttems, 
DeprMiation 
.nd Finance 
Cost 

Average 

Trade 
receivibll!s 

Averas" 
trade 
payables 

Working 
Capital 

Total Income 

capital 
employed 

21.88 

019 

0.19 

10.021 

28.11ft 

6.00ll 

FY 21_22 Chainge "Change Cha-'&t In ratio in excess of ZS% 
comp1tred to t~c.ecln year 

1 65 [I J1J 

041 (0 001 

1.16 (0971 

->-

1.86'11 0.82% 

2188 

2.46 (2.27) 

-
2.44 (2.26) 

l.S4 (1.56) 

800% 20.B1" 

5 Blll O 19!1 

::'.hona,t- is mainly du~ to; 
alO l9'K r«las.J1hc1ltoo of borrowings in th" 

c.urrcn, maturity .1nd repayment ha.sJ 
to be made in the next year 

-001% 

-
Olange ,s m•1nly due to 

-8J 59" iedauillcallon of borrowings In 1ho 
cvlfent m•turity ind , epayment ha,, 

to be made in the next year 

----
44 14

'11 Increase was primarily on account of 
Increase in profit ah.~ tax 

l00.00% Chonse is due to soods Ivins in the 
)nvontory durinl! the current vear. 
Quantum ol change is due to 

-92.28% dt!crease In turnover Is more than 
decre- in ~ reteivables. 

Quantum of cha,.e Is due to 
-92.40% decrNSe in purchases is mo,., than 

decrease 1n trade payables. 

Decrease was primarily on accoun\ 
-10141% of deaease in revenUI! from 

ooeratioM . .__ 
High« profit mM■in ■ttributable to 

260.tl'll Increase In profrt after tax and 
lntrease In total Income. 

- --- ._ +----+---- -+---------- -
11 Return on lnvestment11. 

.__.._ ________________ _ ~ 
NA_~.__NA _ _,_ __ NA __ ..__N_A _ _,__NA_ ~~-N_A __ .._ _________ _ 

Note: Above ratios are based on the ,tandllone llnanci1I statements of the Company 

• lhe Company has nellher mode any new invl?Stmenl. nor declared any dividend In the current year Further, all the inv1?Sments of the Company are unquoted Thus, this ratio ;, 
not applicable. 

34. Qualltatlve disdosures p-lnl"I to Schedule IN 

(I) lhe Company do not have Benaml property, where any proceeding has been Initiated or pending aaalnst the company for holding any Benaml property 
llil lhe Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off. 
(Ill) The Company do not h...,. any charges or satisfaction which Is yl?t to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory pe<lod. 
(Iv) Thi? Company have not traded or Invested In Crypto or Virtual Currency during the year ended March 31, 2023 

(v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or lrwested funds to any other person(s) or entlty(ll?S), Including forolgn entltll?S (lntermedlarll?S) with the understanding that the 
Intermediary shall: 
-directly or lndlrettly lend or lnvl?St in other persons or entltll?S idenllned In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Benef1Cfari1?S); 
-f)<ovlde any lllllantee, security or the like ID or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

(vi) The Company have not reteived any fund from any person($) or entlty(les), Including foreign entitles (Fundlns Party) with the understanding (whether retordl?d In writing or 
oth1rwlse ) that the Company shilll: 
-directly or Indirectly lend or invest In other p!?rsons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Fundlna Party (Ultimate Beneflciarl1?S); 
-provide any guaranlH, security or the Dke on the behalf of the Ultimate Beneftclarll?S 
(Vii) lhe Company have not any sud\ transaction which Is not rtcorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed H Income during tile year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tu Act, 1961 (such as, s1?ar<h or any other relevant provlsklns of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 
(viii) The Company has complied wlth the number of layers prescribed under clau,e (87) of sl!Ctlon 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restr1ctlon on number of layers) Rules, 
2017. 
(Ix) The Company is not detlared wilful defaulter by and bank or financials institution or lender during the year 
(•I The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial Institutions for the specific purpose for which It was obtained. 
(xi) The are no title deeds as the Company does not i.a..,., any Immovable property. 
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